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Joint Labor/M anagement Safety Committees

Safety & Health Committees

Theprimary purposeof Joint Labor/ Management
Safety & Health Committeesisto provideaforum
to discusswaysby whichto reduce accidents,
injuries, andillnessesintheworkplace.
Management, unions, and employeescanal
becomeactively involvedin, and make positive
contributionsto, the Postal Service' ssafety &
hedlth program.

Committeemeetingsshould beheldinalocation
that allowsfor thefreeand open discussion of
program changes, regul ation or processes,
hazards, and unsafe conditions. Thesediscussions
should dlow individuaswith different areas of
expertiseto consder issuesand devel op effective
and cregtive solutions.

The concept of aJoint Labor/Management Safety
& Health Committee stressescooperationand a
commitment to safety and health asashared
responsibility. Thisisechoed in Section 1 of
Article 14 of theNational Agreement.
“Itistherespongbility of management to provide
safeworking conditionsinal present and future
installationsand to devel op asafeworking force.
Theunionwill cooperatewithand assst
management to liveupto thisrespongbility.”

Article 14 providestheguiddinesfor Joint Safety
& Healthcommitteesasfollows:

Section 3. Implementation

B. Thereshdl beestablished at the
Employer’sArealevel, an AreaJoint Labor/
Management Safety Committee, whichwill be
scheduled to meet quarterly. The Employer and
Union Representativeswill exchange proposed
agendaitemstwo weeks before the scheduled

meetings. If problemsor itemsof asignificant Area
nature arise between scheduled quarterly

meetings, either party may request aspecia
meeting of the Committee. Either party will have
theright to be accompanied to any Committee
meeting by technical advisors. Representation on
the Committee shall include onepersonfromthe
Unionand appropriate representativesfromthe
Pogtal Service AreaOffice. TheChairmanwill be
designated by the Employer.

C. TheEmployer will makeHealth Service
availablefor thetreatment of job related injury or
illnesswhereit determinesthey areneeded. The
Hedlth Servicewill beavailablefrom any of the
following sources. U.S. Public Hedlth Service;
other government or public medical sourceswithin
thearea; independent or privatemedical facilities
or servicesthat can be contracted for; or inthe
event funds, spacesand personnel areavailable
for such purposes, they may be staffed at the
ingalation. TheEmployer will promulgate
appropriate regul ationswhich comply with
applicableregulations of the Office of Workers
Compensation Programs, including employee
choiceof health services.

D. TheEmployer will comply with Section 19
of theWilliams-Steiger Occupational Safety and
Health Act.

Section 4. Local Safety Committee

At each postal installation having 50 or more
employees, aJoint Labor-Management Safety and
Hedlth Committeewill beestablished. In
ingtdlationshaving fewer than 50 mployees,

install ation headsare encouraged to establish
smilar committeeswhen requested by theUnion.
Whereno Safety and Health Committee exists,
safety and healthitemsmay beplaced onthe
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agendaand discussed at |abor-management
meetings. Thereshall beequal representationon
the Committee between the Union and
management. Therepresentation onthe
Committeeto be specifically determined by the
Employer and the Union shal includeoneperson
fromtheUnion, except ininstal lationswith two or
more APWU craftswhere up to two persons may
be designated by the Union, and appropriate
management representatives. The Chairmanwill
be designated by the Employer.

Itisrecognized that under some circumstances,
the presence of an additiona employeeemployed
at theingallation will beuseful to theloca Safety
and Health Committee because of that employee’s
gpecia expertise or experiencewith theagenda
item being discussed. Under these circumstances,
whichwill not normally beapplicableto most
agendaitems, the employee may, at therequest of
theUnion, bein attendance only for thetime
necessary to discussthat item. Payment for the
actua time spent at such meetingsby the
employeewill beat theapplicablestraight-time
rate, providing thetime spentisapart of the
employee sregular workday.

Section 5. Subjectsfor Discussion

Individud grievances may be madethe subject of
discussonduring Loca Safety and Hedlth
Committee meetings, in accordancewith Article
14, Section 2.

Section 6. Employee Participation

Itistheintent of thisprogramto insure broad
exposureto employees, to devel op interest by
active participation of employees, toinsurenew
ideas being presented to the Committee and to
make certainthat employeesinal areasof an
installation have an opportunity to be represented.
Atthesametime, itisrecognized that for the
program to be effective, itisdesirableto provide
for acontinuity inthe committeework from year

toyear. Therefore, except for the Chairman and
Secretary, the Committee membersshall serve
three-year termsand shall at the discretion of the
Union beeligibleto succeed themsalves.

Section 7. Local Committee Meetings

The Safety and Health Committee shall meet at
least quarterly and at such other timesas
requested by aCommittee member and approved
by the Chairmanin order to discusssignificant
problemsor items. Themeeting shall beon officia
time. Each Committee member shall submit
agendaitemsto the Secretary at |east three (3)
daysprior tothe meeting. A member of the Hedlth
Unitwill beinvited to participatein the meeting of
the Labor-Management Safety and Health
Committeewhen agendaitem(s) relateto the
activitiesof theHedth Unit.

Section 8. Local Committee
Responsibilities

A. The Committeeshall review the progress
inaccident prevention and hedlth at theinstallation;
determine program areaswhich should have
increased emphasis; and it may investigate major
accidentswhichresultindisablinginjuries. ltems
properly relating to employee safety and health
shall be considered appropriatediscussionitems.
Upon atimely request, information or records
necessary for thelocal Safety and Health
Committeetoinvestigatered or potentid safety
and hedlthissueswill bemadeavailabletothe
Committee.

In addition, the Committee shal promotethe
causeof safety and hedlthintheingtalation by:

1. Reviewingsafety and health suggestions,
safety training recordsand reports of
unsafeconditionsor practices.

2. Reviewinglocd safety and hedthrules.

Page 2
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3. Identifyingemployeeunsafework
practicesand asssting in enforcing safety
work rules.

4. Reviewingupdatedlist of hazardous
materidsusedintheinstalation.

5. ldentifying areasinwhichitisappropriate
to requirethe presence of an additional
personwhilemaintenancework
assignmentsare performed in hazardous
areasto ensure adequate safety
precautions.

Oncesuchwork assgnmentsareidentified, the
committeewill develop an on-the-job safety
review/anaysis(Form 1783) to document that an
additiona personwill beusedtoavoid or minimize
identified hazards.

The Committeeshall at itsdiscretionrender
reportsto theinstallation head and may at its
discretion makerecommendationsto the
installation head for action on mattersconcerning
safety and hedlth. Theingtallation head shall within
areasonable period of time advisethe Committee
that the recommended action has been taken or
advisethe Headquarters Safety and Hedlth
Committee and the President of thelocal Unionas
towhy it hasnot. Any member of the Committee
maly also submit awritten report tothe
Headquarters Safety and Health Committeeinthe
event the Committee' srecommendationsare not
implemented.

Upon proper written request to the Chairman of
the Committee, on-the-gpot inspection of
particular troublesome areas may be made by
individua Committee membersor aSubcommittee
or the Committeeasawhole. Such request shall
not be unreasonably denied. When so approved,
the Committee membersshall beon officia time
whilemaking suchinspection.

The Union representativesfromtheloca Safety
and Health Committee may participate onthe

annual ingpection, conducted by District safety and
hedlth servicespersonne inthemainfacility of
each Processing and Digtribution Center, Facility
and BMC, provided that the Union represents
employeesat themainfacility of the Processing
and Distribution Center, Facility or BMC being
inspected. In no case shall there be morethan one
(1) Unionrepresentative on suchinspections
except in 200 man-year facilitieswhereupto (2)
union representatives may participate.

The Union representativesfromtheloca Safety
and Health Committee may participate on other
ingpectionsof themainfacility of each post office,
Processing and Distribution Center, Facility,
BMC, or other installation with 100 or more man
yearsof employment intheregular work force,
and of anindividual station or branchwherethe
station or branch has 100 or more man years of
employment intheregular work force, provided
that the Union representsemployeesat themain
facility or station or branch and provided that the
Union representativeisdomiciled at themain
facility or station or branch to beinspected. If the
Unionrepresentativeto thelocal Safety and
Health Committeeisnot domiciled at themain
facility or station or branch to beinspected and if
the Union representsemployeesat themainfacility
or station or branch, at the Union’soption, a
representativefrom the Committee may participate
ontheinspection (at no additiona cost for the
Employer) or theUnion may designatea
representativedomiciled at themainfacility or
station or branch to beinspected to participate on
theinspection. In no case shall therebe morethan
one (1) Union representative on such inspections.

The Union representativefromtheloca Safety
and Health Committee may participate onthe
annua inspection of eachingdlation with lessthan
100 man yearsof employment intheregular work
force, where such Committeeexistsinthe
ingtdlation beinginspected. Inthoseingallations
that do not have a Safety and Health Committee,
theinspector shall afford the opportunity for an
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APWU bargaining unit employeefromthat
ingtalation to accompany him/her duringthese

ingpections.

B. Anappointed member of alocal committee
will receive an orientation by the Employer which
will indude:

1. Responghilitiesof the Committeeandits
members,

2. Bascdementsof the Safety and Hedlth
Program.

3. ldentification of hazardsand unsafe
practices.

4. Explanationof reportsand statistics
reviewed and anayzed by the Committee.

C. Whereaninvestigation board isappointed by
aVice-Presdent, AreaOperationsor aDistrict
Manager, Customer Servicesto investigate afatal
or seriousindustrial non-criminal accident and/or
injury, theUnion at theingtdlationwill beadvised
promptly. When requested by theUnion, a
representativefromthelocal Safety and Health
Committeewill be permitted to accompany the
boardinitsinvestigation.

D. Iningallationswhereemployeesrepresented
by the Union accept, handleand/or transport
hazardous materids, the Employer will establisha
program of promoting safety awarenessthrough
communicationsand/or training, asappropriate.
Elementsof suchaprogramwould include, but not
belimitedto:

1. Informationa postings, pamphletsor
articlesin Postal and AreaBulletins.

2. Digtributionof Publication52to
employeeswhosedutiesrequire

acceptance of and handling hazardous or
perishableitems.

3. On-the-jobtraining of employeeswhose
dutiesrequirethe handling and/or
transportation of hazardousor perishable
items. Thistrainingwill include, butisnot
limited to, hazard identification; proper
handling of hazardousmaterid's, persona
protective equipment availability and its
use, cleanup and disposal requirementsfor
hazardousmaterials.

4. All mailbagscontaining any hazardous
materids, asdefined in Publication 52, will
beappropriately identified so that the
employeehandling themail isawarethat
themailbag containsoneor more
hazardousmateria packages.

5. Persond protective equipment will be
made availableto employeeswho are
exposed to spillsand breakage of
hazardousmaterials.

Section 9. Field Federal Safety and
Health Councils

Inthosecitieswhere Field Federal Safety and
Health Councilsexist, onerepresentative of the
UnionwhoisonthelLoca Safety and Health
Committeein anindependent postal ingtallationin
that city and who servesasamember of such
Councils, will be permitted to attend the meetings.
Such employeewill beexcused fromregularly
assigned dutieswithout lossof pay. Employer
authorized payment asoutlined abovewill be
granted at the applicablestraight timerate,
provided thetime spent in such meetingsisapart
of theemployee' sregular work day.

(Thepreceding Article, Article 14, shall apply to
Trandtiond Employees)

Page 4
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ELM Sections816 and 817 al so set out
requirementsfor Joint Safety and Health
Committeesasfollows:

ELM Section 816 —Joint Labor -
M anagement Safety and Health
Committees

Reference Note:

For additional materia concerningthe
subject matter foundin 816, refer to Article
14 of the coll ective bargaining agreements.

Joint labor-management safety and hedlth
committeesmust be established and must function
inaccordancewith applicablecollective
baragaining agreements.

ELM Section 817—-Trainingand
Education

817.1 Management Training and Education
817.11 Supervisors

All supervisorsmust receive safety and
hedlthtrainingin accordancewiththe
curriculum established by Safety
Performance Management and Employee
Development. Local offices, digtricts, and/
or Headquartersprovidethistraining.

817.12 Executivesand Managers

Executivesand managersat theplant level
and above must be provided an
orientation that discussestheir

respongbility for:

a. Safety andhedth program commitment,
involvement, and accountahility.

817.2

817.3

b. OSHA compliance.

c. Elementscontainedinasafety and
hedlth program evauation.

d. Accidentinvestigation and reporting.

e. Sdfety and hedthtraining
requirements.

Safety and Health Staff Training and
Education

Safety and hedlth personnel must be
provided, a least annudly, professond
training and educationto enablethemto
carry outther bascdutiesandtofulfill their
rolesasadvisorsand consultantsto
management. Collaterd duty FSCsmust
asobetrained commensuratewiththeir
sdfety-rdated duties. Safety Performance
Management mandatespostd and/or
externd traning or curriculums, asnecessary,
toensurean effective safety staff and OSHA
compliance. Tomaintainther technica
proficiency, sefety and hedth personne are
encouraged to pursueprofessond

credential sand advanced educationand to
participatein professond safety and hedlth-
rel ated organi zations. Management mugt give
ahighpriority to supporting theseeffortsto
redizeaprofessond safety saff. Specidized
training not availablewithinthe Postal
Servicemay beauthorizedin accordance
with 740.

Joint Labor-M anagement Safety and
Health CommitteeOrientation

Each member of alocal committee must
receive an orientation by the Postal
Servicethat includes.

a. Responshilitiesof thecommitteeand
itsmembers.
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b. OSHA compliance.

c. Bascdementsof thesafety and health
program.

d. Identificationandanalyssof hazards
and unsafe practices, including job
safety anayses.

e. Explanation of reportsand statisticsto
bereviewed and analyzed by the
committee.

817.4 EmployeeGeneral Safety Orientation

All employees, including casua sand part-
timeemployees mustreceiveagenerd
sdfety and hedlth orientation and sufficient
onthe-jobtrainingto enablethemtofollow
safework practices, to recognize hazards,
andto understand the benefitsto begained
by following safework practices. Such
trainingmust asoindudeapplicablesafety
rulesand OSHA compliance, includingany
locd job safety andyssfor tasksassigned.
All employeesmust betrained asrequired
by OSHA standardsif their jobssorequire
(see817.5).

817.50SHA Required Training

For additional materia concerningthe
subject matter foundin 817.5, refer to:

Management Instruction EL-810-
2000-2, Bloodborne Disease
Exposure Control Plans.

Management Instruction EL-810-96-
1, Responseto Hazardous Materials
Releases.

Management Instruction EL-810-96-
2, Hazard Communication
Programs.

Management Instruction EL-810-g8-
1, Asbestos Containing Materials
Control Program.

Management Instruction EL-810-g9-
1, Lead Hazard Management.

Management Instruction EL-81 0-
2000-1, Hearing Conservation
Programs.

Handbook A S-556, Asbestos
Management Guide.

Management Instruction EL-810-g3-
1, Confined Space Safety

Current safety-related MM Os (e.g.,
L ockout/Tagout, Hazard
Communication, Persond Protective
Equipment), and memorandumsof
policy onthe Safety and Health

homepage.

817.51 Sandard Curriculum

Employee Development, in coordination
with Safety Performance M anagement and
other Headquartersfunctiona aress, is
respongiblefor devel oping, implementing,
and keeping current asafety and health
training curriculumto comply with OSHA
standardsand postal policies. Managers
and supervisorsat al levelsmust refer to
thiscurriculumand ensurethat al affected
employeesaretrained andthat trainingis
current and properly recorded.

817.52 Special EmphasisProgram Training

Specid emphadistraining programs must
bedeveloped and initiated by
Headquarters, areas, digtricts, plants, and
other officesasappropriate, in
accordancewith 721.22, to reducethe
principal causesof accidentsandinjuries

Page 6
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and occupationd illnessesand ensure
OSHA compliance.

817.53 HazardousM aterialsCommunication

and Training

Iningtalationswhere employeeshandleor
transgport hazardousmaterids, the
installation head must establishaprogram
of promoting safety awarenessthrough
communicationsor training, asappropriate
(seeMI-EL-810-96-1). Such aprogram
must include, but isnot limited to, the
folowingdements.

a. Posting of information, pamphlets, or
publication of articlesin posta
publicationssuch asareabulletinsand
useof distributed videoson
Hazwoper Awareness and Hazcomm
Awareness.

b. Didributionof Publication 52,
Acceptance of Hazardous,
Restricted, or Perishable Matter, to
employeeswhosedutiesmay require
acceptance or dispatch of hazardous
or perishableitems. Digtribution of
Handbook EL-81 2, Hazardous
Materialsand Spill Response, to
employeeswhosedutiesmay include
handling of hazardousmaterialsand
initial responseto spillsand leaks
(First Responder AwarenessLeve).
Acceptance and dispatch personnel
must use Tag 44, Sack Contents
Warning, to appropriately identify al
mailbags containing hazardous
materialsasdefined in Publication 52
so that an employee handling the mail
isawarethat the mailbag containsone
or more hazardousmaterids.

c. On-the-job awarenesstraining of
employeeswhosedutiesmay require
the handling or transportation of

817.6

817.7

hazardousor perishableitems. This
training mustinclude, but isnot limited
to, (1) hazard identification, (2) proper
handling of hazardousmaterids, (3)
persond protective equipment
availability anditsuse, and (4) cleanup
and disposal requirementsfor
hazardousmaterials.

Refresher Training

Motor vehicle, poweredindustria truck,
asbestos, hazardous materials, and other
refresher training programsmust be
developed and provided per OSHA
regulationsand postal policies. Such
programs must al so be used for correction
of improper work practicesbefore
accidentsresult and/or for improvement
training following an accident.

New or Additional Equipment and
TechniquesTraining

Training must be provided when new or
additiona equipment or techniquesare
deployed that may, if not properly used,
adversdly affect safeand hedthful working
conditionsand/or OSHA compliance.

817.8 OSHA Poster 2203, Job Safety and

817.9

Health Protection

Eachfacility must post OSHA Poster
2203, Job Safety and Health
Protection, inaconspicuousplace. This
poster outlines management
respongbilitiesand employee

respons bilitiesand rightsunder the OSH
Act. Both English and Spanish versions
areavailablefromthematerid distribution
centers.

Training Records

Recordsof safety and health training must
be maintained for each employee. These
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records must beretained to demonstrate
compliancewith Postal Servicepolicies
and OSHA requirements. Therecords
must beavailabletoalow inspectionina
timely manner by Postal Serviceand/or
OSHA officids. All safety training must
be recorded on Form 2548, Individual
Training Record (or equivaent), and/or
recorded intotheNational Training
Database.

Note: Documentation of safety talksand
safety related on-the-job training must be
maintained a thefecility level. These
recordsmust beavailableto allow
ingpectioninatimely manner.

Note: Other provisionsregarding safety and
health are set out in Article 14 and a Memo of
Understanding Re: Correction of Unsafe
Conditions. See pages 65-79.

OSHA/Employee Rights

What Islt and
How Does It Work?

The Occupational Safety and Health (OSH) Act
of 1970 created the Occupationa Safety and
Hedth Administration (OSHA) withinthe
Department of Labor and encouraged employers
and employeesto reduce workplace hazardsand
toimplement safety and health programs.

In so doing, thisgave employees many new rights
and respongibilities, including theright to do the
following:

* Review copiesof appropriate standards,
rules, regulations, and requirementsthat the
employer should haveavailableat the
workplace.

* Reguest information from theemployer on
safety and health hazardsin theworkplace,
precautionsthat may betaken, and
proceduresto befollowed if theemployee
isinvolvedinan accident or isexposed to
toxic substances.

» Haveaccessto relevant employee
exposure and medical records.

* Reqguest the OSHA areadirector to
conduct aninspectionif they believe
hazardous conditionsor violations of
standardsexist intheworkplace.

» Haveanauthorized employeerepresentative
accompany the OSHA complianceofficer
duringtheinspectiontour.

* Respondto questionsfromthe OSHA
complianceofficer, particularly if thereisno
authorized employeerepresentative
accompanying thecomplianceofficer on
theingpection “walkaround.”

* Observeany monitoring or measuring of
hazardous materialsand seetheresulting
records, as specified under the OSH Act,
and asrequired by OSHA standards.

» Haveanauthorized representative, or
themselves, review theLog and Summary of
Occupationa Injuries(OSHA No. 200) at a
reasonabletimeand inareasonablemanner.

* Object to the abatement period set by
OSHA for correcting any violationinthe
citationissued to theemployer by writingto
the OSHA areadirector within 15 working
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daysfrom the datethe employer receives
thecitation.

» Submit awritten request tothe Nationa
Institutefor Occupationa Safety and
Health (NIOSH) for information on
whether any substancein theworkplace
haspotentialy toxic effectsinthe
concentration being used, and havetheir
nameswithheld fromtheemployer, if s0
requested.

» Benoatified by theemployer if theemployer
appliesfor avariancefroman OSHA
standard, and testify at avariance hearing,
and apped thefinal decision.

» Havethdr nameswithheld fromtheir
employer, upon request to OSHA,, if they
sgnandfileawritten complaint.

» Beadvised of OSHA actionsregarding a
complaint and request aninformal review of
any decision not to inspect or toissuea
citation.

» FileaSection 11(c) discrimination
complaint if punished for exercisngthe
aboverightsor for refusing to work when
faced withimminent danger of death or
seriousinjury andthereisinsufficienttime
for OSHA toinspect; or fileaSection
31105 reprisa complaint (under the
Surface Trangportation Assstance Act
(STAA)).

OSHA Standardsand Wor kplaceHazar ds

Before OSHA issues, amendsor deletes
regulations, theagency publishestheminthe
Federal Register sothat interested personsor
groupsmay commen.

Theemployer hasalegal obligationtoinform
employeesof OSHA safety and health standards

that apply to their workplace. Upon request, the
employer must make available copiesof those
standardsand the OSHA law itsdlf. If more
informationisneeded about workplace hazards
than theemployer can supply, it can be obtained
fromthenearest OSHA areaoffice.

Under the OSH Act, employershaveagenera
duty to providework and aworkplacefreefrom
recognized hazards. Citationsmay beissued by
OSHA whenviolationsof standardsarefound and
for violationsof thegenera duty clause, evenif no
OSHA standard appliesto the particular hazard.

Theemployer also must display inaprominent
placetheofficial OSHA poster that describes
rightsand respong bilitiesunder the OSH Act.

Right to Know

Employersmust establishawritten,

comprehens ve hazard communication program
that includesprovisonsfor container labeling,
materia safety datasheets, and an employee-
training program. Theprogram must includealist
of the hazardous chemicalsin each work area, the
meanstheemployer usestoinform employeesof
the hazards of non-routinetasks (for example, the
cleaning of reactor vessels), hazards associated
with chemicalsin unlabel ed pipes, and theway the
employer will inform other employersof the
hazardstowhichtheir employeesmay be
exposed.

Accessto Exposureand Medical Records

Employersmust inform employeesof the
existence, location, and avail ability of their medical
and exposurerecordswhen employeesfirst begin
employment and at least annually theresfter.
Employersa so must providetheserecordsto
employeesor their designated representatives,
upon request. Whenever an employer plansto
stop doing business and thereis no successor
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employer to receive and maintain theserecords,
theemployer must notify employeesof their right
of accesstorecordsat least 3 monthsbeforethe
employer ceasesto do business. OSHA standards
requirethe employer to measure exposureto
harmful substances, theemployee (or
representative) hastheright to observethetesting
and to examinetherecordsof theresults. If the
exposurelevelsareabovethelimit set by the
standard, theemployer must tell employeeswhat
will be doneto reducethe exposure.

Cooper ative Effortsto ReduceHazar ds

OSHA encouragesemployersand employeesto
work together to reduce hazards. Employees
should discuss safety and health problemswith the
employer, other workers, and union
representatives (if thereisaunion). Informationon
OSHA requirements can be obtained fromthe
OSHA areacffice.

OSHA Inspections

If ahazard isnot being corrected, an employee
should contact the OSHA areaoffice having
jurisdiction. If theemployee submitsawritten
complaint and the OSHA areaor state office
determinesthat there are reasonable groundsfor
believing that aviolation or danger exists, the
officeconductsan inspection.

Employee Representative

Under Section 8(e) of the Act, theworkers
representative hasaright to accompany an OSHA
complianceofficer (dsoreferredtoasa
compliance safety and health officer, CSHO, or
ingpector) during aninspection. Therepresentative
must be chosen by theunion (if thereisone) or by
theemployees. Under no circumstancesmay the
employer choosetheworkers representative.

If employeesarerepresented by morethan one
union, each union may choose arepresentative.

Normally, the representative of each unionwill not
accompany theinspector for the entireinspection,
but will jointheinspection only whenit reachesthe
areawherethose union memberswork.

An OSHA inspector may conduct a
comprehensveingpection of theentireworkplace
or apartia inspection limited to certain areasor
aspectsof the operation.

Helping the Compliance Officer

Workershavearight totalk privately tothe
compliance officer onaconfidentia basiswhether
or not aworkers' representative has been chosen.

Workersare encouraged to point out hazards,
describe accidentsor illnessesthat resulted from
those hazards, describe past worker complaints
about hazards, and inform theinspector if working
conditionsarenot normal during theinspection.

Observing Monitoring

If health hazards are present intheworkplace, a
gpecia OSHA hedlth ingpection maybe conducted
by anindustrid hygienist. ThisOSHA inspector
may take samplesto measurelevelsof dust, noise,
fumes, or other hazardous materials.

OSHA will inform theemployeerepresentative as
to whether theemployer isin compliance. The
inspector asowill gather detailed information
about the employer’seffortsto control health
hazards, including results of teststheemployer
may have conducted.

Reviewing OSHA Form 200

If theemployer hasmorethan 10 employees, the
employer must maintain recordsof all work-
related injuriesand ilinesses, and the employeesor
their representative havetheright to review those
records. Someindustrieswith very low injury rates
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(e.g., insuranceand real estate offices) areexempt
fromrecord keeping.

Work-related minor injuriesmust berecorded if
they resulted inrestriction of work or motion, loss
of consciousness, transfer to another job,
termination of employment, or medica treatment
(other thanfirst-aid). All recognized work-related
illnessesand non-minor injuriesa so must be
recorded.

After an Inspection

At theend of theinspection, the OSHA inspector
will meet with theemployer and theemployee
representativesinaclosing conferenceto discuss
the abatement of any hazardsthat may have been
found.

If itisnot practica to hold ajoint conference,
separate conferenceswill beheld, and OSHA will
providewritten summaries, on request.

During theclosing conference, theemployee
representative may describe, if not reported
already, what hazards exist, what should be done
to correct them, and how long it should take.
Other factsabout the history of health and safety

conditionsat theworkplace may a so be provided.

Challenging Abatement Period

Whether or not the employer accepts OSHA's
actions, theemployee (or representative) hasthe
right to contest thetime OSHA alowsfor
correcting ahazard.

Thiscontest must befiledinwritingwiththe
OSHA areadirector within 15 working daysafter
thecitationisissued. The contest will bedecided
by the Occupationa Safety and Health Review
Commission. TheReview Commissonisan
independent agency and isnot part of the
Department of Labor.

Variances

Someemployersmay not beableto comply fully
with anew safety and hedth standard inthetime
provided dueto shortages of personnel, materias
or equipment. Instuationslikethese, employers
mayy apply to OSHA for atemporary variance
from the standard. In other cases, employersmay
be using methods or equipment that differ from
those prescribed by OSHA, but which the
employer believesareequal to or better than
OSHA'srequirements, and would qudify for
cong deration asapermanent variance.
Applicationsfor apermanent variance must

basi cdlly containthe sameinformation asthosefor
temporary variances.

Theemployer must certify that workershave been
informed of the variance gpplication, that acopy
hasbeen given to the employee srepresentative,
and that asummary of the application hasbeen
posted wherever noticesarenormally postedin
theworkplace. Employeesalso must beinformed
that they havetheright to request ahearing onthe
goplication.

Employees, employers, and other interested
groups are encouraged to participatein the
variance process. Noticesof variance application
arepublished inthe Federal Register inviting all
interested partiesto comment on the action.

Confidentiality

OSHA will not tell the employer who requested
theinspection unlessthe complainant indicatesthat
he or shehasno objection.

Review If No Inspection IsMade

The OSHA areadirector eval uatesthe complaint
from the employee or representative and decides
whether itisvalid. If theareadirector decidesnot
to inspect theworkplace, heor shewill senda
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certified | etter to thecomplainant explaining the
decisonandthereasonsfor it. Complainants
must beinformed that they havetheright to
request further clarification of thedecisonfromthe
areadirector; if still dissatisfied, they can appedl to
the OSHA regiona administrator for aninformal
review. Similarly, adecision by an areadirector
not toissueacitation after aninspection issubject
tofurther clarification fromtheareadirector and to
aninforma review by theregiona administrator.

Discrimination for Using Rights

Employeeshavearight to seek safety and health
onthejobwithout fear of punishment. That right is
spelled out in Section 11(c) of the Act. Thelaw
saystheemployer “shdl not” punishor
discriminate againgt employeesfor exercisng such
rightsascomplaining to theemployer, union,
OSHA, or any other government agency about
job safety and health hazards; or for participating
in OSHA inspections, conferences, hearings, or
other OSHA -related activities.

Althoughthereisnothinginthe OSHA law that
specifically givesan employeetheright torefuseto
performan unsafeor unhealthful job assignment,
OSHA!'sregulations, which have been upheld by
the U.S. Supreme Court, providethat an
employee may refuseto work when faced withan
imminent danger of death or seriousinjury. The
conditions necessary tojustify awork refusd are
very stringent, however, and awork refusal should
bean action taken only asalast resort. If time
permits, theunhealthful or unsafe condition must
be reported to OSHA or other appropriate

regulatory agency.

Workersbelieving they have been punished for
exercisng safety and hedlth rights must contact the
nearest OSHA officewithin 30 daysof thetime
they learn of thealeged discrimination. A
representative of theemployee' schoosing canfile
the 11(c) complaint for theworker. Following a

complaint, OSHA will contact the complainant
and conduct anindepth interview to determine
whether aninvestigationisnecessary.

If evidence supportsthe conclusionthat the
employee hasbeen punished for exercising safety
and healthrights, OSHA will ask theemployer to
restorethat worker’sjob, earnings, and benefits.
If theemployer declinesto enter into avoluntary
settlement, OSHA may takethe employer to
court. In such cases, an attorney of the
Department of Labor will conduct litigation on
behaf of theemployeeto obtainthisrelief.

Employee Responsibilities

Although OSHA doesnot cite employeesfor
violationsof their respongbilities, each employee
“shall comply withal occupationd safety and
hedlth sandardsand dl rules, regulations, and
ordersissued under the Act” that are applicable.
Employeeresponsibilitiesand rightsin stateswith
their own occupationa safety and health programs
aregenerally the sameasfor workersin states
covered by Federa OSHA. Anemployee should
dothefollowing:

* Readthe OSHA Poster at thejob site.

* Follow dl lawful employer safety and
health rulesand regulations, and wear or
use prescribed protective equipment while
working.

* Report hazardous conditionstothe
SUpervisor.

* Reportany job-relatedinjury or illnessto
theemployer, and seek treatment
promptly.

»  Cooperatewiththe OSHA compliance
officer conducting aningpectionif heor
sheinquiresabout safety and hedth
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conditionsintheworkplace.

* Exerciserightsunder theActina
respons blemanner.

Other Sourcesof OSHA Assistance-
Safety and Health Program Management
Guidelines

Effective management of worker safety and health
protectionisadecisivefactor inreducing the
extent and severity of work-related injuriesand
illnessesand their related costs. To assist
employersand employeesin devel oping effective
safety and health programs, OSHA published
recommended Safety and Health Program

Management Guiddines (Federal Register 54(16):

3904-3916, January 26, 1989). Thesevoluntary
guiddinesapply toal placesof employment
covered by OSHA.

Theguiddinesidentify four generd € ementsthat
arecritical to the development of asuccessful
safety and health management program:

*  Management commitment and employee
involvement,

*  Work dsteanayss,
» Hazard prevention and control, and
» Safety and hedthtraining.

The guiddinesrecommend specific actions, under
each of thesegenera elements, to achievean
effective safety and health program. A singlefree
copy of theguidelinescan be obtained fromthe
OSHA Publications Office, U.S. Department of
Labor, OSHA/OSHA Publications, PO. Box
37535, Washington, DC 20013-7535, by
sending asalf-addressed mail |abel withyour
request.

Electronic I nformation

Internet—QOSHA standards, interpretations,
directives, and additiona information arenow on
the World Wide Web at http://www.osha.gov.

Emergencies

For life-threatening situations, call (800) 321-
OSHA.. Complaintswill goimmediately tothe
nearest OSHA areaor state officefor help.

For further information onany OSHA program,
contact your nearest OSHA areaor regional
office
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Safety Enhancement Act

Postal Employees Safety
Enhancement Act

With the passage of the Postal Employees Safety
Enhancement Act (PESEA), the Postal Serviceis
now covered by OSHA under the samerulesand
standards asaprivate company. Thismeansthat
OSHA caninspect, citefor violationandlevy fines
initseffortsto correct workplace hazards.

What thismeansto APWU membersisthat now
OSHA can enforce standards by imposing fines
onthePostal Servicefor violationsof the OSHA
workplace standards.

Thenew legidation affordsAPWU atool to help
maketheworkplace safer. However, inorder to
increaseitseffectivenessan organized approachis
necessary. To expedite the process of making the
workplace safer, thefollowing generd procedures
areoffered:

1. Whenyou seeahazard or unsafe
condition, fileaPSForm 1767.

2. Notify APWU’sLocal Safety & Hedth
representative and the Local President.
For additional information on the hazard
and the procedures you can contact your
Area/Regional Safety & Hedth
Representative.

3. Ifthehazardisnot corrected or if the
responseyou get from management is
unacceptable, ask your Local Safety
Representativeto placetheissueonthe
Local Safety & Health Committee agenda.

4. Adgain,if theresponsefromthesafety
committeeisunacceptable, ask your Area

Safety Representativeto placetheissue
ontheAreaSafety & Health Committee
agendaand ask that an OSHA inspection
berequested. The APWU National
Safety & Health Representative should be
notified at thisstep.

Eachindividud circumstancewill dictatethetime
frameyou cons der acceptable. Remember that if
the hazard isconsidered imminent, and not
corrected after youfileal767, it may be
appropriateto contact OSHA immediately.
Discussthiswiththe APWU Loca Presdent and
Local and Area Safety Representatives. Y OU
ALWAY SHAVE THERIGHT TOCONTACT
OSHA AT ANY TIME. Thesesuggestionsare
not meant to take away or reducethisright, they
are provided to help correct ahazardous or unsafe
conditioninatimely manner. Remember OSHA is
not prepared to respondto alargeincreasein
requestsfor inspections.

APWU Regiona/AreaSafety & Hedlth
Representatives may be contacted through the
Regiond Coordinators offices.
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Employer Rights and Responsbilities

Followingan OSHA I nspection
What Happens?

Thissection containsimportant information
regarding an employer’srightsand responsibilities
under the Occupationa Safety and Health Act of
1970 (OSH Act, Public Law 91- 596, as
amended by P. L. 101- 552, November 5, 1990).

AnOSHA compliance safety and hedlth officer
(CSHO) conductsan inspection of an employer’s
workplace, inaccordancewiththe OSH Act.
After theinspection, the CSHO reportsthe
findingsto the AreaDirector who eva uatesthem.
If aviolation exists, OSHA will issuetheemployer
aCitation and Notification of Penalty detailingthe
exact nature of theviolation(s) and any associated
penalties (seealso OSHA 2098 OSHA
Inspections). A citationinformstheemployer of
thealleged violation, setsaproposed time period
withinwhich to correct theviolation, and proposes
theappropriatedollar pendties.

Thisinformation can and should beused asa
discussion guideduring an employer’sclosing
conferencewiththe OSHA complianceofficer.
For each apparent violation found during the
ingpection, the compliance officer hasdiscussed or
will discussthefollowingwiththeemployer:

* Natureof theviolation,

» Possibleabatement measuresyou may
taketo correct theviolative condition, and

» Possibleabatement datesyou may be
required to meet.

TheCSHO isahighly trained professiona who
can help theemployer recognizeand evauate
hazardsaswell as suggest appropriate methods of

correcting violaions. Tominimizeemployee
exposureto possible hazardous conditions,
abatement efforts should alwaysbegin assoon as

possible.

Thefollowing generd information definesthetypes
of violationsand explainsthe actionsan employer
may takeif it receivesacitation astheresult of an

ingoection.
What Arethe Typesof Violations?

Willful: A willful violationisdefined asa
violationinwhichtheemployer knew that a
hazardous condition existed but madeno
reasonableeffort to diminateit andinwhich the
hazardous condition violated astandard,
regulation, or the OSH Act. Penaltiesrangefrom
$5,000t0 $70,000 per willful violation, witha
minimum pendty of $25,000 for awillful serious
violation. For employerswho operate small
firms—thosewith 50 or fewer employees—inno
casewill the proposed penalty belessthanthe
statutory minimum, i.e., $5,000.

Serious. A seriousviolation existsswhenthe
workplace hazard could cause an accident or
illnessthat would most likely result in desth or
seriousphysical harm, unlesstheemployer did not
know or could not have known of theviolation. A
penalty of upto $7,000 for each violation may be
proposed.

Repeated: Anemployer may becitedfor a
repeated violationif that employer hasbeencited
previoudy for asubstantialy smilar conditionand
the citation hasbecomeafina order of the
Occupational Safety and Health Review
Commission. A citationiscurrently viewed asa
repeated violation if it occurswithin 3 yearseither
from thedatethat the earlier citation becomesa
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final order or fromthefinal abatement date,
whichever islater. Repeated violationscan bringa
fineof upto $70,000 for each suchviolation.

For purposesof determining whether aviolationis
repested, thefollowing criteriagenerdly apply:

1. Fixed Establishments: Citationsissued
to employershaving fixed establishments
(e.g., factories, terminals, stores) are not
normally limited to the cited establishment.
A multi-facility employer, for example, can
becited for arepeated violationif the
violationrecurred at any plant nationwide,
andif acitationisobtained and revealsa
repeated violation.

2. Nonfixed Establishments. For
employersengaged in businesseshaving
no fixed establishments(e. g., congtruction
sites, oil and gasdrilling Sites), repeated
violationsarealleged based on prior
violationsoccurring anywhere, and at any
of hisor her identified establishments
nationwide, based on employer history.

3. Longshoring Establishments. A
Longshoring establishment coversdl
Longshoring ctivitiesof asnglestevedore
withinany sngleportarea. Longshoring
employersaresubject torepeated violation
citationsbased onprior violaionsoccurring
anywhereinthenation.

4. Other MaritimeEstablishments:
Other maritimeestablishmentscovered by
OSHA gstandards(e. g., shipbuilding, ship
repairing) aregeneraly defined asfixed
establishments. (See 1 above.)

AVIOLATION CANBECITED AS
REPEATED IFTHEEMPLOY ERHASBEEN
CITED FORTHESAMEORA
SUBSTANTIALLY SIMILARVIOLATION
ANYWHERE IN THENATION WITHIN THE
PAST 3YEARS.

Other: A violationthat hasadirect relationship
tojob safety and health, but isnot seriousin
nature, isclassified as“ other.”

What Arethe Posting
Requirements?

When theemployer receivesaCitationand
Notification of Penalty, it must post thecitation (or
acopy of it) at or near the placewhere each
violation occurred to make employees aware of
the hazardsto which they may beexposed. The
citation must remain posted for 3working daysor
until theviolationiscorrected, whichever islonger.
(Saturdays, Sundays, and Federa holidaysare not
counted asworking days.) Theemployer must
comply with these posting requirementsevenif it
conteststhecitation.

The abatement certification documents—such as
abatement certifications, abatement plansand
progressreports—like citations, must be posted at
or near the placewheretheviolation occurred.

For moveable equipment found to beinviolation
and wheretheposting of violationswould be
difficult or impracticd, theemployer hasan option
toidentify theequipment witha“Warning” tag
gpecified inthe Abatement Verification regulation
29 CFR 1903.19(1).

Doesthe Employer Have Options?

Anemployer who hasbeen cited may takeeither
of thefollowing coursesof action:

1. If theemployer agreesto the Citation and
Notificationof Pendlty, it must correct the
condition by thedatesetin thecitation
and pay the penalty, if oneisproposed,

2. If theemployer doesnot agree, it has 15
working daysfromthedateit receivesthe
citationto contestinwriting any or all of
thefallowing:
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« Citation,
» Proposed penalty, and/ or
» Abatement date.

3. OSHA will informtheaffected employee
representativesof theinforma conference
or contest.

Beforedeciding on either of these options, an
employer may request an I nformal Conference
withthe OSHA AreaDirector to discussany
issuesrelated to the Citation and Notification of
Penalty. (Seelnformal Conferenceand
Settlement.)

How DoesAn Employer Comply?

For violationsan employer doesnot contest, it
must

(2) promptly notify the OSHA AreaDirector by
certified letter that it hastaken the appropriate
correctiveactionwithinthetimeset forthinthe
citation, and (2) pay any pendtiesitemized therein.

Thenatification an employer sendsthearea
director isreferred to as Abatement Certification.
For other-than-seriousviolations, asmplesigned

| etter identifying theinspection number, thecitation
item number and noting that theviolationwas
corrected by the date specified onthecitation. For
moreseriousviolations, i. e, Serious, Willful,
Repeat, or Failure- to-Abate, abatement
certification requiresmore detail ed proof.

If theemployer hasabatement questionsafter the
ingpection, the AreaDirector shal ensurethat
additiond information, if available, isobtained and
provided to theemployer assoon aspossible.

Employerscan dsofind guidance on abatement
verificationon OSHA sweb Steat http:/Amww.osha:
dc.gov/Publicationg/Abate/abate html.

When thecitation permitsan extended timefor
abatement, the employer must ensurethat
employeesare adequately protected during this
time. For example, thecitation may requirethe
immediate use of persona protective equipment
by employeeswhileengineering controlsarebeing
installed. When suchisthe caseand where
indicated onthecitation, theemployer must dso
provide OSHA with an abatement plan (stepsyou
will taketo protect employeesand correct the
hazards) and periodic progressreportsonits
actions,

The pendtiesitemized on the Citation and
Notification of Penalty are payablewithin 15
working daysof receipt of the pendty notice. If,
however, theemployer conteststhecitation or
pendty in good faith, abatement and payment of
penaltiesfor thoseitems contested are suspended
until the Occupational Safety and Health Review
Commissionreviewsitscaseand issuesafina
order. The Review Commissionisan independent
agency andisnot apart of theU. S. Department
of Labor. Thefina order of the Commissionwill
elther uphold, modify, or eliminatethecitations
and/or pendlties. Pendtiesfor itemsnot contested,
however, arestill duewithin 15 working days.
(For further details, seethe sectionon How to
Contest.)

What About an I nfor mal Conference
and Settlement?

Before deciding whether tofileaNotice of Intent
to Contest, an employer may request an Informal
Conferencewiththe OSHA AreaDirector to
discussthe Citation and Notification of Penalty.

Theemployer may usethisopportunity to do any
of thefollowing:

*  Obtainabetter explanation of the
violationscited;
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»  Obtain amore complete understanding of
the specific standardsthat apply;

* Negotiateand enter into an Informal
Settlement Agreement;

» Discusswaysto correct violations,

* Discussproblemsconcerningthe
abatement dates;

» Discussproblemsconcerning employee
safety practices,

* Resolvedisputed citationsand penalties,
(thereby eliminating the need for themore
formal proceduresassociated with
litigation beforethe Review Commisson);
and

*  Obtainanswersto any other questionsit
may have.

Anemployer isencouraged to take advantage of
the opportunity to havean Informa Conferenceif
it foreseesany difficultiesin complyingwith any
part of the citation. Please note, however, that
an Informal Conferencemust beheld within
the 15working day Noticeof Intent to
Contest period and will neither extend the 15
wor king day contest period nor taketheplace
of thefiling of awritten noticeif theemployer
desiresto contest. Employeerepresentative(s)
havetheright to participatein any Informal
Conference or negotiations between the Regional
Administrator or AreaDirector and theemployer.

If an employer agreesthat the cited violations
exist, butit hasavalid reasonfor wishingto
extend the abatement date(s), it may discussthis
withthe AreaDirector inan Informal Conference.
Heor she may issue an amended citation that
changesthe abatement date prior to theexpiration
of the 15 working day period without the
employer filingaNoticeof Intent to Contest.

If an employer doesnot contest within 15working
days, itscitation will becomeafinal order not
subject toreview by any court or agency. After
thisoccurs, the OSHA AreaDirector may
continueto providetheemployer withinformation
and assi stance on how to abate the hazards cited
initscitation, but may not amend or change any
citation or penaty which hasbecomeafina order.
The AreaDirector may only advisethe employer
on abatement methods or extend thetimeit needs
to abatetheviolation. (See Petition for

M odification of Abatement. )

Whenever aninformal conferenceisrequested by
the employer, by an affected employee, or by the
employeerepresentative, thepartiesshal be
afforded the opportunity to participatefully. If
either party choosesnot to participateinthe
informal conference, that party forfetsitsrightsto
be consulted prior to decisionsbeing madewhich
affect thecitations. If therequesting party objects
to the attendance of the other party, separate
informal conferencesmay beheld. During the
conduct of ajoint informal conference, separateor
privatediscussionsshall be permittedif either
party so requests. Informal conferencesmay be
held by any meanspractical.

How DoesAn Employer Contest
Citations?

If theemployer wishesto contest any portion of its
citation, aNotice of Intent to Contest must be
submitted inwriting within 15 working daysafter
receipt of the Citation and Notification of Penalty
evenif theemployer hasorally statedits
disagreement with acitation, penaty, or abatement
date during atelephone conversation or an
Informal Conference.

TheNoticeof Intent to Contest must clearly state
what isbeing contested— the citation, the pendlty,
the abatement date, or any combination of these

factors. Inaddition, the notice must state whether
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al theviolationsonthecitation, or just pecific
violations, are being contested. (For example, “I
wishto contest the citation and penalty proposed
for items3 and 4 of the citation issued June 27,
1990.”)

Theemployer’scontest must be madein good
faith. A contest filed solely toavoid responsibilities
for abatement or payment of penatieswill not be
considered agood-faith contest. A proper contest
of any item suspendsan employer’slega
obligation to abate and pay until theitem contested
hasbeen adminigtratively resolved. If theemployer
contestsonly the penalty, it must till correct dl
violationsby the datesindicated onthecitation. If
only someitemsonthecitation are contested, the
other items must be corrected by the abatement
date and the corresponding penaltiespaid within
15 daysof notification.

After theemployer filesaNoticeof Intent to
Contest, itscaseisofficialy inlitigation. If the
employer wishesto settlethe case, it may contact
the OSHA AreaDirector whowill giveit thename
of theattorney for OSHA handling your case. All
settlementsof contested casesare negotiated
between the employer and the attorney according
totherulesof procedure of the Occupationa
Safety and Hedlth Review Commission.

What isthe Contest Process?

If thewritten Notice of Intent to Contest hasbeen
filedwithin therequired 15working days, the
OSHA AreaDirector forwardstheemployer’s
caseto the Occupationa Safety and Health
Review Commission. TheCommissionassgnsthe
caseto anadministrativelaw judgewho usualy
will scheduleahearinginapublic placeclosetoits
workplace. Both employersand employeeshave
theright to participateinthishearingwhich
containsall thedementsof atria, including
examination and cross-examination of witnesses,
Theemployer may chooseto represent itself or be

represented by an attorney. Theadministrativelaw
judgemay affirm, modify, or eiminateany
contested itemsof thecitation or penalty.

Aswithany other legal procedure, thereisan
appeal sprocess. Oncetheadministrative law
judge hasruled, any party to the case may request
afurther review by thefull Review Commission. In
addition, any of thethree commissionersmay, on
hisor her own motion, bring the case beforethe
entireCommissionfor review. TheCommission’'s
ruling, inturn, may be appealed tothe U.S. Court
of Appedalsfor thecircuitinwhichthecasearose
or for thecircuit wheretheemployer hashisor her
principd office.

What Other StepsCan An Employer
Take?

Abatement dates are assigned on the basis of the
best information available at thetimethecitationis
issued. When an employer isunableto meet an
abatement date because of uncontrollableevents
or other circumstances, and the 15 working day
contest period hasexpired, theemployer may file
aPetitionfor Modification of Abatement (PMA)
withthe OSHA AreaDirector.

The petition must beinwriting and must be
submitted assoon aspossible, but no later than 1
working day after the abatement date. To show
clearly that the employer hasmadeagood-faith
effort to comply, the PMA must includeall of
thefollowing information beforeit can be
consdered:

»  Stepstheemployer hastakeninan effort
to achieve compliance, and datesthey
weretaken,

e Additional timeit needsto comply;

*  Whyitneedsadditiond time;
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* Interimstepstheemployeristakingto
safeguard itsemployeesagainst the cited
hazard () until the abatement;

* A certification that the petition hasbeen
posted, thedate of posting and, when
appropriate, astatement that the petition
hasbeen furnished to an authorized
representative of the affected employees.
The petition must remain posted for 10
working days, during which employees
may filean objection.

A PMA may be granted or opposed by the
OSHA AreaDirector. If itisopposed, it
automatically becomesacontested case before
theReview Commission. If aPMA isgranted, a
monitoring inspection may be conducted to ensure
that conditions are asthey have been described
and that adequate progresstoward abatement has
been made. Further information on PMAsmay be
obtained fromthe OSHA AreaOffice.

What About Variances?

Inmaking adetermination onapermanent variance,
OSHA reviewstheemployer’sevidenceand, where
gopropriate, arrangesavisttotheworkplaceto
confirmthecircumstancesof theapplication. If the
request hasmerit, OSHA may grant apermanent
variance. Find varianceordersdetall theemployer’s
specificresponghilitiesand requirementsandexplain
exactly how theemployer’smethod variesfromthe
OSHA requiremern.

Theemployer may aso apply for apermanent
variancefrom astandard if it can provethat its
present facilities or methods of operation are at
least as safe and healthful asthoserequired by the
OSHA standard.

If theemployer isunableto comply withanewly
promul gated standard because of the unavail ability
of materias, equipment, or professional or

technical personne, it may apply to OSHA for a
temporary variancefrom the standard.

Tobedigiblefor atemporary variance, theemployer
must put into forcean effective programfor coming
into compliancewiththestandard or regulationas
quickly aspossible. Inthemeantime, theemployer
must demongtrateto OSHA that dl avallablesteps
arebeing takento safeguard employees.

A temporary variancemay begrantedfor upto 1
year; it can berenewed twice, eechtimefor 6
months

Please note, however, that whenever an employer
appliesfor either atemporary or apermanent
variance, heor shemust inform employeesof the
application and of their right to request ahearing.

What Can EmployeesDo0?

Employeesor their authorized representatives may
contest any or al of the abatement dates set for
violationsif they believethemto beunreasonable.
A written Notice of Intent to Contest must befiled
withthe OSHA AreaDirector within 15working
daysafter theemployer receivesthecitation.

Thefiling of an employee contest does not
suspend theemployer’sobligation to abate.

Employeesa so havetheright to objecttoa
PMA.. Such objectionsmust beinwriting and
must be sent to the Area Office within 10 days of
serviceor posting. A decisionregarding the PMA
will not be made until theissueisresolved by the
Review Commisson.

What About Follow up I ngpectionsand
Failureto Abate?

If anemployer recelvesacitation, afollow up
ingpection maybe conducted to verify thet it hasdone
thefallowing:
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» Pogedthecitationasrequired,

» Correctedtheviolaionsasrequiredinthe
citation, and/ or

* Adequady protected employeesand made
gopropriate progressin correcting hazards
duringmulti ep or lengthy abatement
periods.

Inadditiontoproviding for pendtiesfor fallure-to-
post citationsandfallure-to-abateviolaions, the
OSH Act clearly statesthat theemployer hasa
continuing responsibility tocomply withthe OSH Act
and assureyour employeesof ssfeand hedthful
working conditions. Any new violationsdiscovered
during afollow upinspectionwill becited.

Toachieveabatement by thedate set forthinthe
citation, itisimportant thet abatement effortsbe
promptly initiated.

What If There AppearstoBe
Employer Discrimination?

TheOSH Act prohibitsemployersfrom discharging
or otherwisediscriminating againgt anemployeewho
hasexercised any right under thislaw, indludingthe
right to make safety and hedlth complaintsor to
request an OSHA ingpection. Complaintsfrom
employeeswhobdievethey havebeendiscriminated
agang will beinvestigated by OSHA. If the
investigation disclosesprobableviolationsof
employeerights, court action may follow.

Employeeswhobelievethey havebeendiscriminated
agang mugt filetheir complantswithin 30 daysof the
alegedact of discrimination. Toobtainfurther
information onthismetter, employeesmay contact
OSHA andinquireabout Section 11(c) procedures.

What About Providing False
| nformation?

All information reported to OSHA by employersand
employeesmust beaccurateand truthful . Providing
fd seinformation on effortsto abatecited conditions
or inrequired recordsispunishableunder the OSH
Act.

What Other Help DoesOSHA
Provide?

Voluntary Protection Programs(VPPs)

TheVoluntary Protection Programs (VPPs) are
designedtorecognizeand promoteeffectivesafety
and hedth program management. Inthe VPP,
management, labor, and OSHA establish
cooperativerdationshipsat workplacesthat have
implemented Srong programs.

Sitesagpprovedfor VPP sStar, Merit, and
Demondration programshavemet, and must
continueto mest, rigorousparticipation Sandards.
Bendfitsof VPP participationindudeimproved
employeemoativationtowork safely, leading to better
quality and productivity; lost workday caseratesthat
generally are 60 percent to 80 percent below
industry averages, reduced workers compensation
and other injury- andillness-rd ated codts, postive
community recognitionandinteraction; further
improvement and revitalization of aready good sefety
and hedlth programs; and partnershipwith OSHA.
VPPsand ongte consultation services, coupledwith
aneffectiveenforcement program, expand worker
protectionto help meet thegoalsof the OSH Act.

For additional information about theVV PP, contact
the VPP Manager inyour OSHA Regiona Office.
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S& H Arbitration Awards

ProceduresRequired for
BMC’sMedical Emergencies

ThePostal Service' sfailureto haveemergency
proceduresfor Stuationsinvolvingfirstaid,
accidents, heart attacks, etc. and to distribute
these proceduresto employeesat the Philadelphia
BMC violated the National Agreement, according
toaruling by Arbitrator Tanner. Thearbitrator
ordered that the union and management jointly
writeup aset of proceduresfor medical
emergenciesand jointly request from headquarters
that amedical unit beestablishedintheBMC
facility “pointing out theindustrid natureof the
work place and itsrecent experienceswith
problems of medical assistanceresponserates.”

Thiscase arose on October 15, 1994 after a
mail handler started coughing in therestroom of
the Philadel phiaBM C and began bleeding
profusaly from her mouth and nose. Several co-
employeesassisted her and were splashed with
her blood. Forty-five minuteslater two
emergency personnd arrived with astretcher and
took her tothehospital. Theemployee
subsequently died on November 1,1994. The
witnesseswho attempted to assist theemployee
made statementsindicating that therewas
insufficient help at the BM C for thisemergency, no
one knew what to do, no medical equipment was
available, and valuabletimewaslost. Thoughthe
BMC had amedical unit on site gpproximately 10
yearsago, the Postal Servicethen abolished all
medical unitsthroughout the country. Though
severa employeeswere exposed to blood from
theill employee, they did not receive prompt
medical attention after the
exposure and were not given blood testsuntil
approximately October 29, 1994.

A union steward testified that accident reports
on theincident were not completed until October

22 and sincetheincident, management had not put
emergency proceduresinto place.

The union argued that the Postal Service
violated Article 14 by not providing safeworking
conditionsfor theBMC employees. Inaddition, it
asserted that management did not comply with
directivesrequiring that employeeswho comeinto
contact with human blood should be examined by
aphysician and be cleared beforereturning to
work. To support thisassertion, it citeda
December 29, 1987 directiverelating to the
Handling of Biologicd and InfectiousMaterias
and the BMC Exposure Control Planaswell as
OSHA'sblood borne pathogens standard which
indicated that exposure could lead toinfection
from hepatitisB (HBV) or human
immunodeficiency virus(HIV) which causes
AIDS. Under OSHA'sstandard, theunion
argued, management wasobligated totell
employeeswhat to doif an exposureincident
occurs. Theunion’sgrievance sought corrective
actionincluding: 1. Management of theBMCto
go onrecord requesting that amedical unit be
established at theBM C; 2. Management meet
with the unionto agree on procedures designed to
provideemployeeswithimmediate medical
attention in emergencies; and 3. Anemployee
who assisted theill employeeto be paid acash
payment of $100for the safety violation.

The Postal Service contended that therewas
no contract violation and theissueof providinga
medical unit can only be addressed by postal
headquarters. The Manager of Distribution
Operationstestified that while an employeewho
assised theill employee should be commended
for her first aid efforts, paying her $100 would not
be appropriate. Heindicated that the employee
who assisted theill employeewas presently
employed asanursewith the Postal Service.

Thearbitrator said that management had an
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obligation to employeeswho assisted theill
employees and were splattered with blood to have
them tested immediately. However, testing did not
occur until two weekslater, shefound. Moreover,
shesaid that unrefuted evidence established that
therewereno proceduresin placeto handlean
emergency andthat “[c]learly thereisaneed for a
set of proceduresto befollowed.” She observed
that theBM Cisan*“industria setting with heavy
equipment, forklifts, tractor trailers, mechanized
equipment and other potential sourcesof injury.”
Shesaid that drafting proceduresfor emergencies
“should be asubject for the Safety Committeeand
the Labor Management Cooperation Committee.”
Arbitrator Tanner found that employeeswho
witnessed theill employeefelt hel plessand that
“[1]f for no other reason than moraleand
productivity, Management should beinterestedin
re-establishingamedica unit or havemedical
assstancereadily avallable.” Thearbitrator
declined to award $100 to the employee who
assisted theill employee because shesaid she
believesthat “ asahedth careprofessond, [she]
would rdinquishthemonetary payment infavor of
seeking meaningful emergency proceduresin
place, aswell asthe establishment of amedical
unit or another emergency arrangement.” (AIRS
#28720 -USPS# C90C-1C-C 95032356; 2/5/98)

L ack of Air Conditioning
Violated NA

ThePostal Service'sfalluretomaintainan
appropriatetemperature standard inthe Joliet,
[linois Post Office, because of thelack of air
conditioning, violated the National Agreement,
Arbitrator Nathan ruled. He ordered that
management immediately remedy theviolation by
ingalinganair conditioning systeminthefacility.

Though centrd air conditioning had been
installed inthe Joliet Post Office since 1966, the
main floor was subdivided and awall was erected
which separated the postal facilitiesfromtherest
of thefloor in 1991. Asaresult, thecooling
systemwasisolated from the postd facilitiesand

theworking side of thewindow areawas bl ocked
off fromany air flow or outsdeventilation. The
only air conditioning wasasmall very old window
unit whichwaslocated at | east 60 feet away from
thewindow areaand was operating at 2%
efficiency. Theundisputed evidence established
that during the summer of 1991, air temperatures
inthe downtown Joliet station went above 90
degreeson at least one occasion and were
between 80 and 90 degreeson several other days.
Asaresult of excessve hedat, two employees
becameill. After agrievancewasfiledin 1991
chalengingthelack of air conditioning, fanswere
installed but they merely circulated the hot air.

The Postal Servicefiled ananswer tothe
grievance stating that thefacility would be vacated.
However, thefacility wasnot vacated and the
condition continued into thesummer of 1992 when
asafety ingpection was conducted by aregional
safety engineer. Thesafety engineer statedinhis
report that there wasinadequate cooling at the
facility, no drinking water, no accessfor
handi capped persons, inadequate accessto toil et
facilities, pedling lead-based paint and possible
asbestos exposure dueto looseflooring. It
recommended that abatement of these conditions
be accomplished in an expeditiousmanner. The
locd union president testified that management had
promised that new air conditionerswould be
installed but that nothing had been done by the
timeof thehearing. Maintenance Series
Handbook M S-49, Energy Conservation and
M aintenance Contingency Planning, requiresthat
HVAC systemsbe set so that insidetemperatures
inworking areasregularly occupied rangefrom
65 degreesin the cold monthsto 78 degreesin the
warmmonths. Inaddition, 21982 letter fromthe
Assistant Postmaster General, Labor Relations
Department, to the President of the APWU stated
that it wastheintent of the Postal Serviceto
maintainthetemperatureat al facilitiesascloseas
reasonably practicableto aheating maximum of
65 degrees and acooling minimum of 78 degrees.

The Senior Safety Specidist for the South
Suburban District tetified that no postal safety
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standardsor rulesrequirethat existing facilitiesbe
air conditioned. According to thiswitness, the

M S-49 Handbook addressesthe setting of
thermostatsand doesnot requirethat all facilities
haveair conditioning. Heasserted that in normal
postal operations, theabsenceof air conditioning
should not result in safety and health problemsfor
anormal heathy person. The postmaster at Joliet
testified that Sincetaking over thispositionin
February 1994, he spokewith theunion
repeatedly about the Situation and agreed to install
alarger air conditioner inthe back area, would
provide employeeswith drinking water, and was
checking for lead paint. Hefurther stated that he
wasinformed that renovation of the post office
would occur oncethe project was open for
bidding.

Theunion argued that the Postal Service's
actionsviolated Article 14 of theNational
Agreement aswell as Section 811.4 of the EL M.
It asserted that the unsafe conditions have existed
with management’ sknowledgefor morethanthree
yearsand that management has not remedied the
problem despiteitssafety inspector’s
recommendation.

The Service countered that though it has
responsibility to provide safeworking conditions,
theprovision of air conditioningisnot part of this
requirement. Itarguedthat “[w]hiletheremay be
some discomfort dueto the absenceof air
conditioning, there hasbeen no evidence that mere
discomfort risestotheleve of unreasonable
working conditions.” Inaddition, management
contended that new |ocal management hasagreed
torenovatethe premisesand plansare underway
for thisproject.

Arbitrator Nathan rejected the Service's
arguments. He stated that the Postal Service had
“misse{d] thethrust of acollectivebargaining
agreement, and certainly theintent of Article 14.”
Hecited thefact that employeesbecameill
because not only did the building lack adequate air
conditioning but becausetheflow of theair was
completely cut off. Thearbitrator further stated
that in any event, regulations covering the Postal

Service“dorequireagenera environment of 78
degreesinthesummer inregularly occupied
working aress, subject to temporary and minor
variations’ and management hasacknowledged
thisrequirement since 1982.

Arbitrator Nathan then found that the
Service' sown safety specidist “ concluded that the
lack of cooling, a ong with anumber of other
unconscionable conditions(lack of drinking
water!), resulted in unsafe and unhea thy
conditions.” Heindicated that though management
suggested that planswere underway for amove or
renovation of thefacility, “itisnot unreasonable
[given thefact that no changes had been made
over threeyears| for the Union and thearbitrator
to express some skepticismregarding the
Postmaster’stestimony that plansare being put
outtohbid.”

Hethen determined that “ management must
takeimmediate actionto aleviatethe hedth and
safety threat to the employeesworkinginthe Joliet
Downtown Station.” Hedirected that asmall air
conditioner with 2% functiondity bereplaced with
aunit aspowerful asnecessary to cool the
working areaof 55 feet long and 20 feet wide. In
addition, he ordered that duct work be placed
fromtheair conditioner to thefront of the station
to cool thewindow area. (AIRS#23017 - USPS
#CT7C-4L-C 35592; 7/8/94)

Safety Violation Existed
Dueto Exposureto Sealant

ThePostal Serviceviolated the National
Agreement by exposing employeesto fumesfrom
asealant used on theworkroom floor, according
toaruling by Arbitrator Klein. She ordered that
the Service ceaseand desist in alowing employee
“exposuretofumes’ but denied arequest for
restoration of sick leave.

Thiscase arose after acontractor sprayed a
sedlant called“ Polyseal 4in 1" ontheconcrete
floor inawork area. TheMaterial Safety Data
Sheet (MSDS) indicated that the substance
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contains* solvent naphtha, chlorinated
hydrocarbon and carbontetrachloride’ and lists
theseitemsas* hazardous components’ which
may resultin“eyeirritation, skinirritation and
sengtization.” Symptomsof exposurearelisted as
“headaches, dizziness, drows ness, depression of
central nervoussystem, mild to severe pulmonary
injury and possibledeath.” EmployeesinalL SM
work location noticed an odor fromthe
congtruction areaand experienced symptoms
including eyeand throat irritation, nausea,
headaches, dizzinessand breathing problems. The
contractor had left two doorsopento the
workroom floor and the vaporsfrom the seal ant
seepedintothisarea. After management was
advised of the situation, the doorswere closed
and fanswere set up toincreaseventilationand air
circulation. Employeeswere permitted toleave
thebuilding and remained outsidefor 45 minutes
when they were directed to return to work.
Severa of them complained about thefumesand
seven empl oyeesrequested to go home dueto
exposureto the substance. Employeeswho went
homewereinstructed to usesick leaveto cover
their absences.

Theunionfiled grievanceson behalf of four
employeeswho went home sick because of the
fumesand another employeewho wasexposed to
thefumes. Both grievancescited violations of
Article14 and a Step 2, aviolation of Article 19
and requested that sick leave berecredited to the
employeeswho had usedit.

ThePostd Serviceargued that the grievances
werein arbitrable becausethey involved an
allegedjob-rdatedinjury whichisnot subject to
arbitral review. It asserted that OWCP has
exclusivejurisdiction over such mattersand an
arbitrator lacksauthority torestoresick leavein
thiscase. Inaddition, the Service contended that
unsafeworking conditionsdid not exist under the
circumstances. It cited thefact that of 100
employeesthat were on duty, only seven
employeeswent homefollowing exposuretothe
fumes. Moreover, the Serviceargued that
proceduresweretaken to ventilate the areabefore

spraying and as soon as management was notified
that aproblem existed, employeeswerea lowed
toleavethework areaand additional ventilation
wasprovided.

Theunion contended that these grievances
arose under Article 14 and thereforethe Postal
Service should not attempt to assert that this
involvesan OWCP matter. It argued that the
employeeswere exposed to hazardous materials
and suffered adversereactions. Theunion
mai ntai ned that management should have moved
theemployeesout of the affected areabeforethe
product was applied based on their knowledge of
the hazardous componentsand the potential for
severereaction. It sought restoration of sick leave
used by thegrievants.

Thearbitrator found that both grievanceswere
initiated as safety and health complaintsunder
Article 14 andthey clearly citeexposureto fumes
asthebasisfor an dlegation of an unsafeworking
condition. Shedetermined that since*the essence
of these grievancesrelatesto safety and hedlth as
well asManagement’srespong bilitiesunder the
termsof Article14,” they arearbitrable.

Arbitrator Kleinthen concluded that “[i]n
accordancewithitsresponsbility to provideasafe
working environment, Management should have
known fromreviewing theM SDSon Polysed 4in
1 that apotential for eye, skinand respiratory
problemsexisted duetothelist of ‘ hazardous
components andthe* health hazard data’” She
then found that postal employeesshould have
been moved out of the areabefore the sealant was
applied and should not have been required to
returnto the sasmework areaand again be
exposed tothefumes. Based ontestimony froma
safety specidist, Arbitrator Klein determined that
employeeswere exposed to thefumesfor
approximately two hoursbeforethe odor and the
potential for Sdeeffectswereminimized. She
rejected the Service sargument that sinceonly
seven employeerequested to go home, conditions
weresafe. Accordingly, sheruledthat aviolation
of Article 14 existedinthiscase. However, the
arbitrator declined to recredit sick leave onthe
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basisthat OWCP has solejurisdiction over work-
related injuries. (AIRS#24867-68 - USPS
#D90C-4D-C 92017805/ 92017813; 10/23/95)

Overloading Bulk M ail
ContainersViolated NA

ThePostal Service spracticeof alowing
mailhandlersto overload over-the-road Bulk Mall
Containers(BMCs) up to thetop of the containers
congtitutesaviolation of Article 14, Arbitrator
Marlatt ruled. Hedirected that supervisorswill
instruct mailhandlersthat loadingof BMC OTR
containersshould not exceed 12" from thetop of
the container, evenif they consst of light-weight
items.

Thiscasearose asaresult of motor vehicle
drivers complaintsthat mailhandlersareloading
BMCsup to thetop and sometimes over thetop
making it hazardousfor driverstotaketheBMCs
onto and off of truck beds. Theevidence
established that BM Cswelghed 385 pounds
empty and have amaximum cargo load of 1500
pounds. Pogtd officid stetified that mailhandlers
areinstructed not to load more than 48 sacksinto
aBMC and afull loaded mail sack weighsup to
35pounds. Driverstestified that BMCsare
overloaded at thetop so that theview ahead is
blocked and aretherefore exposed to injury while
pushing acontainer. The Postal Operations
Manua PO-502 at Section 241.62 statesthat an
employee must never overloadaBMC OTR and
heavy or dense piecesof mail should never be
loaded beyond the halfway point inacontainer. In
addition, thereisalabd attached to each container
12 inchesfrom thetop reading “ maximum sack
load height to thisline.” ThePostal Safety
manager testified that thislineisnot asafety
precaution but isintended to facilitate automated
unloading at Bulk Mail Centers.

Arbitrator Marlatt found that testimony of the
drivers*appearscrediblethat the containersare
being overloaded and that such overloaded
createsasafety hazard.” Hefound that “[u]nder
theregulationsin the PO-502 quoted above,

heavy loads such asmail sacksshould not extend
beyond the halfway point inthecontainer, anditis
not unreasonabl e that lighter |oads should stop
twelveinchesfromthetopto givethedrivers
better visibility and lower the center of gravity.”
(AIRS#15852 - USPS#S7V-3V-C 9468; 3/13/90)

Hazar dsin Welding and Paint
Storage Areas Ordered Abated

ThePostal Service' sstorage of paint 50 feet
fromwelding areas and use of welding screens
with holesand without ventilation at bottom
congtituted potential safety hazardswhich should
be corrected, according to aruling by Arbitrator
Stephens. He ordered that asafety specialist
inspect the screen and paint storage areasand
correct hazards.

Theunionfiledagrievancedlegingeight
violationsof Article14including paintinginthe
middle of the shop area; using toxic gluesand
polyurethaneinthe carpenters areawhereno
exhaust exists, asevere noisefactor vibrating off
of thewalls; inadequatelightinginthetool and
partsroom; arc welding in the shop without
protective covering around thearea; cluttered
scrap meta inthe shop; dirty unclean shop ares;
and 55 gallon drumsoutsidein an exposed area.
It asserted specificaly that toxic materidsand
paint were stored lessthan 50 feet from where
welding isbeing performed and use of screens
around thewelding areawith holesinthemwhich
would alow sparksto passthrough andignite
flammabl e paintsand contact cement usedinthe
carpenter shop. Theunionarguedthat it hadfiled
several Form 1767sciting these safety problems
and these d ertswereignored by management.

The Postal Service contended that the union
failed to meetitsburden of proving that aviolation
existed. It asserted that there were no standards
introduced to support theclaimed violations. In
addition, theunionfailed to supply light or noise
readingsfor itscomplaint about inadequatelighting
and excessivenoise. Moreover, 55 gallondrums
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stored outside contained floor wax and thereisno
ruleagainst storing such sealed drumsoutside.
Also, it asserted that there was nothing morethan
anorma amount of dust. Itssafety specidist
testified that screensinthewelding areameet the
regulationsfor such useand that paint or toxic
chemicalsstored inthe carpenter areaarefor daily
useonly and that most paint isstored inthe paint
room.

Thearbitrator found that theunionfailed to
meet itsburden of proving that therewas
inadequate lighting and the paint room hasan
exhaust hood. However, he credited testimony of
acarpenter that he paintsitemsinthemiddle of the
shop areaand if spraying isdoneusing oil based
paint, it might present ahazard in proximity to the
welding area. He determined that contact cement
was being applied in areaswheretherewas
adequateair conditioning and ventilation and this
condition did not present ahazard. Inaddition,
thearbitrator found that OSHA had recently
ingpected the areafor noise problemsand found
that noiselevelswerewithin acceptablelevels.

Arbitrator Stephens concluded, however, that
screensused inarc welding contained holesand
camedownall theway tothefloor rather than
providing at least two feet of adequate ventilation
fromthefloor level. Hethusordered that asafety
specialist ook at the screen arrangement to
determineif it met safety regulations. Heaso
found that the carpenter storespaint and glueina
metal cabinet 45 to 50 feet from the edge of the
welding areaand any potential hazard fromthis
condition should becorrected. (AIRS#400730
- USPS#3AT-3W-C 60234; 9/13/88)

Security Measures Ordered
for Unsafe Conditions

Unsafeconditionsat aposta facility warrants
ordering extend ve security measures, Arbitrator
Jacobsruled. Sheordered that remedia changes
beimplementedincludingingtalation of an
electronic security gate at the entrance of the
facility’sparking lot; hiring sufficient security guard/

guardsto cover all thehoursemployeesareat the
premisesand thefacility isopenfor business,
erection of abullet-proof partitioninthewindow
serviceares; ingtallation of survelllance camerasin
appropriate places; and provision of adequate light
intheparkinglotif itisnot available.

Thiscasearoseat the Santurce, Puerto Rico
postal facility. Theunionand management
stipulated that the post officeislocated in avery
dangerousarea. Theunion argued that derelicts,
drug addicts, prostitutes, beggars, and carjackers
were operating inthe areaof the Santurce station.
Employeeshad been subjected to attacks, armed
assaults, carjackingsand kidnapingsand their
personal vehicleswere exposed to damage and
theft. Theunion asserted that theseunsafe
conditionshad existed since 1987 and the station
should berelocated as expeditioudy aspossible.
Intheinterim, theunion maintainsthat an
€l ectronic gate should be placed inthe parking
area, security guards should be used and bull et-
proof glassshould beinstalled.

The Postal Service countered that it hasbegun
aprogram of rel ocating the Santurce station, but
that funding problemshad prevented new
construction until recently. It asserted that this
project will taketwo to three yearsto complete
and that the short term solutionisto erect an
electronic gate. Management further contended
that it hastherefore not been negligent in meeting
itsobligationsand inany event, security problems
canexisinany facility.

Thearbitrator ruled that the union succeeded
inmestingitsburden of proving that aviolation
existed. Sheagreed with theunion’scontentions
that “therecord warrantsafinding that nothing has
been donein the short or thelong term to remedy
the problem since 1987; that help isneeded
immediately.” Shefoundthat “athough
Management wasnot wilfully and ddiberately
negligent inresponding effectively toemployee
complaintsabout their working conditionsnor isit
unmindful of itscontractud obligationunder Article
14 of the Collective Bargaining Agreement to
provide safeworking conditionsinal present and
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futureingtallationsand to devel op asafeworking
force, it hasthusfar donenothing to turnthings
around.” Arbitrator Jacobsfound that “the
concernsof theUnionfor thelivesand safety of its
memberscannot wait until Management isready
to deal with the problem yearsdown theroad”
andthat “[i]tisanimplied obligationon
Management growing out of Article 14 to correct
theexisting problemsasexpeditioudy aspossble
andimminent-danger Situationsmust begiventop
priority.” Shethereforedirected thatimmediate
relief beprovidedincludingingtalation of an
electronic security gate, hiring sufficient security
guards, erection of abullet-proof partitioninthe
window serviceares, ingtalation of surveillance
cameras, and provision of adequatelightinginthe
parkinglot. (AIRS#24621 - USPS#A90C-4A-
C 93052707/ 93380; 6/8/95)

Safety Captain Program
Found toViolate NA

Theuse of aSafety Captain Programto
discussand settle safety and healthissueswith
management representativesviol ated the Nationa
Agreement, according to aruling of Arbitrator
Witney. Heordered that the Postal Service cease
and desi st from using the programin thismanner.

The Safety Captain Program, whichwas
ingtituted by management, involved craft
employeeswho volunteer assafety captainsin
each of theeleven unitsof the Cincinnati BMC.
Theprogram, whichwasin existencesince 1977,
involved the promotion of safety awarenessin
work areasby having safety captainsassist
employeesto recognize safety hazardsand report
these hazardsto supervision. However, theunion
president testified that in 1985 the program
changed so that safety captainsmet with
management representativesto discussand settle
safety issuesonamonthly basis. Theuniondid
not have any input inthisnew program. Theunion
subsequently filed agrievance challenging Safety

Captains representation of bargaining unit
employeesin meetingswith management
representatives.

Theunion argued that theitems presented and
discussed at these meetingsare contractua
mattersasdefined by Article 14 and no
contractua foundation existed for Safety Captain
meetingsused to discussand resolve these
matters. It contended that Safety Captainsare not
certified by the unionto represent bargai ning unit
employees. Theunionfurther asserted that the
proper forum for issuesdiscussed in the Safety
Captains meeting wasthe Safety and Health
Committee,

ThePostal Service contended that the Safety
Captain Program hasnot been used inlieu of the
Safety and Health Committee and thereforethere
wasno violation of Article14. Moreover, it
asserted that the union wasrequired to cooperate
withitin order to provide safeworking conditions,
and the Safety Captain Program wasintended to
meet thisobjective.

Reviewing the minutes of the Safety Captain
meetingsof February, March, April and July
1985, thearbitrator found that items di scussed
and resolved inthemeetingsheld with
management representativeswereclearly related
to employee safety and health. Hethen
determined that the Safety Captain program
violated thetermsof Article14. Hecited thefact
that with the exception of individua grievances,
“dl mattersrelating to safety and hedlth fall within
theexclusvejurisdiction of [the Safety and Health
Committee] for discussion and settlement.”
Moreover, “[iJn noway does Section 5[of Article
14] contempl atethe establishment of ariva
program for the discussion and settlement of safety
and healthissues,” thearbitrator said. Inaddition,
“thesenseof Article 14, contained in nearly seven
pagesof theNational Agreement, militatesagainst
Management’sunilatera establishment of a
program which competes, supplements, or
diminishesthe operation of the Safety and Health
Committee.”

Thearbitrator further reasoned that “ Article 1
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statesthat the Unionisrecognized by the
Employer asthe exclusive bargaining agent and
representative of all employeesinthebargaining
unitinal mattersof the Nationa Agreement,
includingissuesof safety and hedlth.” Therefore,
“[c]learly, tothe extent that Safety Captains
discussand revolve safety issueswith
Management, they improperly serveasthe
bargaining representative of employees’ and“[i]n
that way, the Safety Captain programinterferes
with and diminishesthecapability of theUnionto
serveasthe exclusive bargaining agent of the
employeesof thefacility,” accordingtothe
arbitrator.

Arbitrator Witney a so cited provisionsof the
ELM to support hisconclusions. “Section 814.1
c of the ELM providesemployeeswiththeright to
consult with Management through appropriate
employee representatives on safety and heath
matters,” thearbitrator said. “ Giventhat clear and
unambiguouslicense,” heobserved, “the Union
and only theUnion congtitutesthelegitimate
representative of theemployeesfor safety and
health matters.” Moreover, Section 816 of the
EL M requiresthe establishment of joint |abor-
management safety and health committeeswhich
aretofunctionin accordancewith collective
bargaining agreements. “Thesecommittees,
including thelocal Safety and Hedlth Committeeat
theCincinnati BMC, performtheexclusive
function for thediscuss on and determination of
safety and health matters,” the arbitrator stressed.

Arbitrator Witney then concluded that “[b]y
authorizing the discussion and settlement of safety
issuesby Safety Captain meetingswith
Management, the Employer violated Article 14 of
the National Agreement and the material
provisionsof the Employeeand Labor Relations
Manua.” “Under theseterms, the Joint Safety
and Health Committee hastheexclusive
jurisdictionto discussand settle matters of safety
and health,” according tothearbitrator. (AIRS
#10181 - USPS#CAT-4F-C 7516; 8/6/86)

Failureto ProvideHazardous
MaterialsTraining Violated NA

ThePostal Service sfailureto providetraining
in hazard identification and proper handling of
hazardous materialsto OCR and L SM operators
and al occupationally exposed Clerk Craft
employeesviolated the National Agreement,
Arbitrator Baldovinruled. Heordered that
management fully implement the Bloodborne
Disease Exposure Control program and Standard
Operating Proceduresfor HazardousMaterids,
Spillsor Leaks.

Thiscasearoseinthe Manasota, Florida
facility. During OCR operations, thegrievant and
another operator discovered ajamin the stacker
assembly. Thegrievant removed an envelope
marked* clinica specimen” that wascausingthe
jamand noticed that it wastornopenand a
wooden stick wasprotruding fromit. The
envelopeasowasmarked“UseUniversa
Precautions.” Thesupervisor wasinformed of the
situation and heinstructed the empl oyeestowash
their hands. Inaddition, acohol wassprayedin
theimmediate areawherethejam occurred. The
supervisor called themailer of theenvelopeand
found that it contained afeca samplethat was
being senttoalocal laboratory. Thegrievant and
the other operator requested that management
disnfect theentire OCR, but management wanted
to operatethe machine after only cleaningthearea
of thejam. After they had alengthy discussion
with management, it was agreed that the OCR
would becompletely disinfected. Thegrievant
contended that theletter was not properly
identified asbeing hazardous materialsand should
not have been processed through automated and
mechani zed equipmen.

Theunion asserted that mail processorsshould
be given hazardous materiastraining and any
hazardous materia sshould beidentified. It argued
that management wasnot in compliancewith
Article 14.8.D, the Bloodborne Disease Exposure
Control Plan, and the Hazardous M aterials Spill or
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Leak Standard Operating Procedures. Theunion
argued further that LSM operatorsare merely
ingtructed that if they discover aspill or anything
elsethey cannot identify they should leaveit done
and contact their supervisor. It contended that
clerk craft employeesshould receivetraining that
will dlow them to recognized potentialy hazardous
materias. ThePostal Service countered that the
normal clerk isnot at ahigh risk of exposureand
only needsto know to back off and call a
supervisor if apackage breaksopen.
Thearbitrator reasoned that theissuewas
whether employeesare occupationally exposed to
potentialy hazardous materialsand OCR
operatorsare occupationaly exposed even though
that exposure may beinfrequent. Hethenfound
that though management in Manasota, Floridahad
aBloodborne Pathogen Standard Exposure
Control Plan, the plan was merely posted onthe
bulletin board and appropriateinstructionand
training were not given to exposed empl oyees.
Thearbitrator determined that the Postal Service
had not met itsobligation of training employees
uponinitial assgnment and annually theresfter, as
required by the Bloodborne Disease Standard
Exposure Control Plan, the Standard Operating
Proceduresfor Hazardous Materials, and Article
14.8.D’srequirement to establish aprogram of
promoting safety awarenessthrough
communicationand/or training. Hefound aso that
the Postal Servicedid not comply withthe
Exposure Plan by writing anincident report,
evaluatingit, taking stepsto prevent future
occurrenceswherepossible, and offering
appropriate vaccinationsto employeessuch asthe
grievant and hisco-worker. Arbitrator Baldovin
stressed that “[1]ocal handling proceduresmust be
established to minimi ze hands-on contact with
mailed medical wastesand similar items” and
“[w]hereitisknownto Management that
particular identifiablebiologica materidsarebeing
processed through thelocd mail facility,
occupationally exposed employees, should, at a
minimum be made aware of the appearance of the
packaging so asnot to inadvertently comein

contact with the contentsthereof.” (AIRS#24705
- USPS#H90C-1H-C 93046894, 8/7/95)

Congested Dock Constituted
Safety Hazard

ThePostal Service sfaillureto maintain safe
working conditionson adock and on stairwells
congtituted aviolation of the National Agreement,
according to aruling by Arbitrator Cannavo. The
arbitrator directed that the Servicerespondtoal
future 1767s, maintain safeworking conditions
including conditionsfreefrom congestion onthe
dock, keep stairwellsclear, and refrainfromthe
use of powered equipment on the dock when
thereiscongestion.

Motor Vehicle employeesat the Queens
P& DCfiled PSForm 1767s, Reports of Hazard,
Unsafe Condition or Practiceforms, with
management in September 1996 because of
conditionson the Dispatch Platform on Tour 1 at
thefacility. Thereportscomplained of heavy
congestion of mail, mail palletsand BMC Post
Cons, blocking of exit stairwells, excessive
movement by personnel tow motors, fork liftsand
sdewindersin congested areas. They complained
of the possibility that severe accidents might occur
dueto employeesmoving postal equipment
through congested areas. When therewasno
management responseto thereports, six
grievanceswerefiled inwhich theunion requested
that the bulk mail operation be moved, stairways
be unblocked, employeesbe permitted towork in
safeworking conditions, and theareabe
unblocked so that employeescould movefregly
around the dock area.

Severa Motor Vehicle Operatorstestified
about unsafe conditionson the platform. One
employee offered adescription of an operation on
the platform which created unsafe conditionsfor
unloading trucks. Hesaid that mail handlerswere
performing aring operation on thedock which
involved using power equipment, including tow
motors, power jacks, big joesand floor jacks, and
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drivershad to avoid thisequipment aswell as
BMCsand Post Conswhileunloading. Heaso
said that stairswere alwaysblocked by floor
jacks, BMCsand Post Cons. Heindicated that in
September 1996 there was construction onthe
other side of the platform and that drivershad to
wait for an open bay between midnight and 2:30
AM sevendaysaweek. Heindicated that injuries
could occur because of thelimited spaceand the
Servicedoesnot give safety talksregarding
loading and unloading vehiclesor how to conduct
yourself onthedock. A steward testified that the
Postal Service never responded to the 1767sfiled
by the empl oyees, though Postal procedurewasto
giveananswer immediately. Another steward
indicated also that he spoketo the Supervisor of
Safety but that thisindividua merely responded
that therewas no wherefor thework to be moved
despitethe congestion.

The Service' sSafety Speciaist testified that
though therewas congestion onthe platform
because of construction, the Postal Service
banned powered equipment sinceit was crowded.
The Service' sresponseto thegrievanceat Step 1
wasthat dueto ongoing building repairsand
limited space, abull pen operation wasmoved to
the platform areawhich wasbeing watched by
supervisorsin chargeand noindustria powered
equipment was being used onthe platformto
avoid the chance of an accident. The Safety
Specidist testified that the breakdown operation
had been moved as of January 1998.

Theunion argued that the Servicewasin
violation of Articles 14, 19, and 39 of the National
Agreement. It asserted that Tractor Trailer drivers
areforced to contend withabull pen/ring
operationwheremail handlershave containerson
the dock and break down mail where driversback
intheir vehicles. Theunion argued further that the
driver’s Post Consand thering operationsblock
thedock. It maintained al so that witnessesalso
observed motorized equipment being used onthe
dock. Theunion contended that these conditions
congtituted unsafe working conditionsthat
employeesreported, but the Servicerefused to

respond or investigate these matters.

The Postal Service countered that though the
dock areawas congested, it did not cause unsafe
working conditions. It cited thefact that there
werenoindustria accidentsduring thetimeof this
grievance, and the Safety Specialist did not find
that therewere unsafe conditions. The Service
further argued that whilethebull pen operation
was being worked, driverswerenot unloading
their vehicles. Inaddition, it asserted that the bull
pen has now been rel ocated to the workroom
floor and the Safety Specialist found no blocking
of stairsandindustrialized equipment being used
whenhemadehisvist.

Citing provisionsthat areintended to provide
an expedited form of redressfor safety violations,
thearbitrator said that thelanguage of Article 14is
“clear and unambiguous’ and “reflectsthe
seriousnesswith which the Partiestake theissue of
health and safety.” Hethenfound that despitesix
drivers reportsof acongested dock areaand a
steward'stalk with asupervisor, management did
not take any action on these safety complaints.

“ Animmediateinvestigation wasnot conducted,
corrective action was not taken, even though there
was an acknowledgment by Management that
therewascongestion” and “[f]urthermore, no
written report was generated and no response was
madetothe1767,” thearbitrator said. “Thereis
no doubt that thefailure of Management to
respond to the shop steward’sinquiriesand the
1767swasadirect violation of Article 14 Section
2 of theNational Agreement,” thearbitrator held.

Thearbitrator rejected the Postal Service's
assertion that sincethe Safety Specialist found no
safety hazard, therewereno unsafeworking
conditions. Heagreed with theunion’switnesses
that they need not have safety training in order to
determinethat an unsafeworking conditionexigts.
Hethen found that the“ weight of theevidence
establishesthat athough powered equipment may
have been banned on the congested dock, it was,
infact used.” Headsofoundthat the Servicedid
not provide asafety talk regarding proceduresto
beusedin congested areas, though its Safety
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Specidistindicated that such asafety talk would
beimportant in order to ensure that employees
weremorecareful. Thearbitrator further
disagreed with the assertion that snceno industria
accidents had been reported, therewere no unsafe
working conditions. Thedraftersof Article14did
not intend that the partieswait for an accident to
occur to determinewhether asafety hazard exists,
thearbitrator said. Hefound also that thefact that
much of the congestion has been removed did not
render thegrievancesmoot. (AIRS#28947 -
USPS#A94V-1A-C97031901; 3/18/98)

Accident Prevention Program
Ruled Contract Violation

The Postal Service'sinstitution of an accident
prevention program entitled“ The Eagle
S.O.A.R.S” condtituted unilateral actionin
violation of theNationa Agreement, accordingto
aruling by Arbitrator McCabe. Thearbitrator
alsoruled that the program violated the Privacy
Act. Heordered that the Postal Service cease
and desist from implementing the program.

A Senior Labor Relations Specialist fromthe
Triboro District of New York informed the
President of the APWU’sHushing, N.Y. Local
that the Postal Servicewasimplementing an
accident prevention programcalled“ TheEagle
S.O.A.R.S”. Theprogram required that
“* empl oyees observed committing unsafe actswill
beissued an observationformand given
immediate on-stetraining viacorrectivereview of
theinfraction.”” It dsoinvolved placement of
S.O.A.R.S. formsinunit folders, recording of the
information being made at thelocal safety office,
andretainingtheformsasointheissuing
supervisor’spersona safety folder. Theunion
subsequently initiated agrievance protesting the
EagleS.O.A.R.S. program.

Theunion argued that the accident program
violated the Federa Privacy Act of 1974 and was
implemented unilaterally without congdering union
inputinviolationof Article5 of theNational

Agreement. ThePostal Service countered that in
ingtituting the program, it wascomplying withits
responsbilitiesunder Article 14 of the National
Agreement to provide safeworking conditions.

Thearbitrator held that the Postal Servicewas
required to bargain with theunion regarding any
changeinArticle 14. Insupport of thiscontention,
he cited Section 8(d) of the National Labor
RelationsAct referredtoin Article 5 of the
Agreement. That section prescribesthat “‘to
bargain collectively isthe performance of the
mutua obligation of theemployer and the
representative of the employeesto meet at
reasonabletimesand confer in good faithwith
respect to wages, hours, and other termsand
conditionsof employment,’” accordingtothe
arbitrator.

Hethen found that theEagle SO.A.R.S.
programwasachangeto Article 14 and therefore,
cannot beunilateraly imposed but “must be
negotiated at aNationd level.”

Thearbitrator further held that the Postal
Serviceviolated “the Federal Privacy Act by
introducing anew systemof forms. .. whichare
circulated to variouslevelsof management and
loosely controlled.” (AIRS#28597 - USPS
#A94C-1A-C 97053564; 12/18/97)

Directive Punishingfor Safety
I nfractionsRuled Violation

A district-widepolicy requiring that every
violation of asafety rulewill be punished by
impaosing discipline upon the offending employee
violated theNational Agreement, Arbitrator
Hardinruled. Heordered that thedirective be
rescinded with noticeto al bargaining unit
employeesof thisfact, and disciplineimposed
because of thedirective bevacated and
employeesbemadewhole.

Thiscase arose after the District Manager for
the Suncoast Digtrict of Floridaissued aJanuary
22,1996 directiveto postmastersand plant
managersthat any violation of asafety ruleor
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procedure”will result” indisciplinary action. The
ingtruction provided specificaly that violations of
safety rules, regardless of whether or not they
resultinaccidentsor injuries*‘which display
extreme carel essness by theemployeewill
normally resultin asuspensionregardiessof the
employee'spast record of accidents/injuries.””
Violationsof safety rules”*which display alesser
degree of carelessness. . . and with apast history
of at-fault accident(s)’”, according tothe
ingtructions, “* may warrant asuspension.”” With
no past record, they continued, “* aletter of
warningwill beconsidered.”” Thedirective
contained aparagraph which also stated in part
that “‘[d]isciplinary action must dwaysbe
correctivein natureand never punitive, therefore,
good objectivejudgment must be applied.””

Theuniongrieved thepolicy and asofiled an
unfair labor practice chargeagainst the Service. It
then attempted unsuccessfully to present the
grievanceto management at Step One. When
management failed to meet withtheunion, the
local union president signed the Step Two appeal
and delivered it tothe Postal Service's Step Two
designee on or about February 1, 1996. On
February 6, 1996, thelocal union’svice president
met with the Senior Labor Relations Speciaist for
the Suncoast District and the parties agreed that
thegrievancewould cover dl APWU craft
employeesinal Suncoast Digtrict offices
represented by the TampaAreaLoca. On
February 14, 1996, these parties met again for
Step Two proceedings. At that meeting, the
Senior Labor Relations Speciaist argued for the
first timethat the grievance was defective because
there had been no Step Onemeeting. Heaso
denied thegrievanceon the merits.

Theunion argued that management’sobjection
toarbitrability of thegrievancelacked merit. It
citedthefact that thelocal’s Clerk Craft Director
had made many effortsto present thegrievance at
Step One but management failed to respond.
Theresfter, thegrievancewas properly moved to
Step Two in accordancewith Article 15.4.c.
Then addressing the merits, the union asserted that

theingtructionsviolated the Agreement by
restricting progressive disciplineand other core
principlesof thejust cause provisoninArticle 16,
and by limiting the due processrights of
employeesunder Article 16, including theright of
employeesto meet with first-line supervisorsand
resolvetheir grievance. Inaddition, theunion
argued that theingtructionswerein conflict with
other provisionsof manualsand withthe Federa
Employees Compensation Act.

The Postal Service countered that the
grievancewasinarbitrable becauseit had not been
presented at Step One of thegrievance
procedure. It further argued that management was
exercising itspowersproperly by issuing the
directivein accordancewith Articles 3 and 14 of
theNational Agreement. Moreover, management
contended that theingtruction did not conflict with
Article 16'srequirementssinceit incorporated the
requirement that disciplinemust beimposed ona
case by case basisand must becorrectivein
nature.

Thearbitrator ruledfirst of al that the
grievancewasarbitrable. Heindicated that
testimony by thelocal’sClerk Craft Director that
he attempted to present the grievanceto four
different supervisorsat Step Onewas
uncontroverted. Therefore, theunion properly
moved the matter to Step Two when the Postal
Servicefailed to scheduleameetingwithinthetime
provided by the contract. Inaddition, the
arbitrator said that the Postal Service had waived
thisargument becauise of the parties’ meetings
between February 1 and 6 when the Senior Labor
Relations Specidist gavehisexplicit agreement
that thisgrievance could proceed asthe pattern
case. Moreover, hefurther reasoned that the
Servicewasa so estopped fromraisingthis
argument by itsrepresentationsto the National
Labor RelationsBoard, to obtain“ Collyerization”
of thecharge, that it waswilling to arbitrate this
dispute“* notwithstanding any contractud time
limitationsfor theprocessing of grievances ™.

Turning to themerits, Arbitrator Hardin ruled
that thedirective effected unilateral changesin
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established termsand conditionsof employment,
andviolated Articles 16 and 3 of the National
Agreement. Hefound that thememorandum
Setting out theingtructions* standing aone, is
strong evidencethat [the] directivewasintended
to changethe prior system of administering
disciplinefor violationsof safety rules.” Healso
found that testimony from witnessesof theunion
established that thedirectiveactualy resultedinan
increaseinthe use of suspensionsand other
disciplineto punish safety violations.

Thearbitrator further determined that the
directivewasinconsstent with Article 16, Section
1since“[t]heprincipleof progressivediscipline
requiresthat, in any instancewheredisciplineisto
beimposed, theleast disciplinethat will be
correctivemust beimposed.” “. . .[Just cause
requiresthat al disciplinebetailored to thefacts of
thespecificinstance,” thearbitrator said. Inthis
case, however, “[b]y requiring supervisorsto
impose advanced levelsof discipline, suspension
andlossof pay, inevery instance of specified
kindsof conduct (hitting fixed object, not fastening
seat belt beforevehiclemoves),” thearbitrator
continued, “thedirectivecameintoirreconcilable
conflictwith Article 16.”

Thearbitrator rejected the Service' sargument
that thedirectivedid not conflict with Article 16
because of languageinit providing that
“[d]isciplinary action must dwaysbecorrectivein
nature and never punitive...” Hecited thefact
that thislanguagefollows* otherswhichlay down
firmrules’ that areinconsstent with Article 16.

Specifically, theprovisionthat violation of a
safety rule**will result’” indisciplinary action
“withdrawsthetraditiond discretion of field
supervisontowithhold al discipline, or to conduct
anofficial discussion, seeArticle 16, Section 2,in
acasethat isjudged to be appropriate,” the
arbitrator said. Moreover, the provision that
violationsdisplaying“‘ extreme carelessnesswill
normally resultinasuspension...”” “grestly
diminishes—if it doesnot entirely eliminate— the
discretion of field supervisonto disciplinethrough
lettersof warning, even when such letterswould

befully corrective,” according to thearbitrator.

Thearbitrator then concluded that “ Article 3
doesnot allow such aunilatera revision of the
well-settled principles of just cause established by
Article16.”

Finaly, Arbitrator Hardin granted theunion’s
requested remedy. Findingthat theunion’s
Collyerized deferred unfair labor practicecharge
had merit, he stressed that “it seemsboth fair and
desirablethat the Award should containthe
essentia elementsof theremedy whichwould be
imposed by theNLRB under the Act.” Hethus
ordered that the Postal Service* cureitsbreach of
contract by rescinding thedirective, by notifying
theemployeesthat it hasdone so asdirected by
anarbitrator jointly chosen, and by making whole
those adversely affected.” (AIRS#27751 -
USPS#H94C-1H-C 960359596; 9/12/97)

Exposing Asthmatic Employee
to Smoking Violated NA

The Postal Serviceviolated the Nationd
Agreement by exposing an asthmatic employeein
her work areato smoking by her postmaster and
subjecting her toretdiation and discrimination for
filing agrievance protesting smoking by her
postmaster, Arbitrator Dean ruled.

Thegrievant wasrequired to use 100 hours of
sck leavewhen she suffered an asthmatic attack
after being exposed to smoking by her postmaster.
Her dutieswere substantialy dtered and duties
associated with her bid job asaclerk typist were
reassigned to another employee after shefileda
grievancechdlenging the postmaster’ sactions.

Theunion argued that the Postal Service
violated itsobligation to provide safeworking
conditionsand subjected thegrievant to vindictive
retdiationfor filingagrievance. The Service
contended that the grievancewas untimely filed,
the postmaster had not actually smoked inthe
grievant’swork area, and therewasinsufficient
proof that cigarette smoke actually caused the
grievant’sasthmatic reaction. Inaddition,
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management contended that therewasno
deliberate maliciousnessonthepart of the
postmaster and he acted within hisrightsin
assigning someof thegrievant’sdutiestoaClaims
and Inquiry Clerk.

Thearbitrator rejected management’s
arguments. Heheld that the Servicewaived its
objectionsto untimelinesssinceit had not raised
themintheearlier stepsof thegrievance
procedure. Hefound the grievant’stestimony to
bemore crediblethan the postmaster’ sand that
the postmaster’ shostility towardsthegrievant may
have accounted for hissmoking inamanner which
falledto minimizethede eteriouseffectsonthe
grievant. Hea so determined that thegrievant’s
medical report and her testimony were sufficient to
establish that the grievant’ sexposureto the
postmaster’ s smoking caused an activation of her
asthmatic condition. Hefurther held that the
Postal Serviceviolated the Agreement, and the
postmaster acted malicioudy, by assigningthe
grievant’ sdutiesto another employeeat another
facility to which most operationswererel ocated.
Thearbitrator then ordered that the grievant have
her sick leaverestored, that she bereassigned to
the new headquartersfacility, and that
management ceaseand desist from any future
harassment of thegrievant. (AIRS#24722,
24723, 24724 - USPS C90C-4C-C 94055705/
94058358/ 94063992; 8/9/95)

Removal for I nsubordination
Set Aside for Safety Reasons

Anemployee' sremoval, for failingtofollow a
direct order/insubordination, was set aside by
Arbitrator Klein.

Thegrievant, adistribution clerk, wascasing
mail when shediscovered a“wet spot” onapiece
of flat mail located in acontainer fromwhich she
had beenworking. Shetook thetray containing
theflat pieceto her supervisor and stated that
since shedid not know what the wet substance
was, shedid not want to handletheitem. The

supervisor told the grievant that the spot was
water and instructed her to proceed with her
casing duties. When sherefused to pick upthe
mail, headvised her of the consequences of non-
compliance but shedid not obey theorder. The
grievant indicated that shewasafraid for her safety
if she should comeinto contact with the substance
onthemail and that shewasnot wearing
waterproof gloves.

Thearbitrator held that the grievant was
denied due process since shewas not afforded an
opportunity to give her account of theincident
prior to being sent home. Inaddition, he ordered
that theremoval berescinded becausethe Service
failed to take an appropriate responseto a
reasonable safety concern. He also ordered that
thegrievant be madewholefor her losses.
(AIRS#23247 - USPS#J90C-1J-D 94013819;
9/21/94)

Use of Hampersfor NM Os
Violated NA

A violation of the National Agreement existed
dueto the use of hampersto transport non-
machineable outside parcels(NMOs) from
associate officesto the Pittsburgh BMC,
Arbitrator Kleinruled. Sheissued aceaseand
desist order directing the Postal Serviceto notify
all officesthat NM Os can no longer be shipped to
theBM C in hampersfor any reason, includingthe
shortage of equipment.

After October 1990, NM Oswere no longer
placedin over theroad (OTR) containersfor
shipment but rather wereloaded on palletsand
“shrink-wrapped” with plastic when palletswere
loaded to capacity. Asaresult of the dispatch of
NMOson pallets, associate officesno longer had
sufficient OTRsfor conveyance of NM Osback to
the BM C and then placed NM Osin hampersfor
shipment totheBMC. Since October 1990, the
Postal Service acknowledged thisproblem and the
prohibition againgt shipment of NM Osin hampers
tothe BMC, but did not correct the unsafe
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condiition.

Thearbitrator ruled that “[t]he evidence
establishesbeyond areasonable doubt that the
Postal Serviceisinviolation of Article14 and
Handbook PO-502 by allowing an unsafe
working conditionto continuefor threeyears.”
Sheordered that the Servicenotify all officesthat
NMOscan no longer be shippedtotheBMCin
hampersfor any reason, including the shortage of
equipment. Shedeclined to direct management to
return to theprocedure of utilizing OTRsto
dispatch NMOsto associate officesonthebasis
that the determination of whether toload NMOs
by useof palletsor OTRsisdiscretionary with
management. (AIRS#22329 - USPS#E7C-2F-
C 42736; 12/20/93)

Compliancewith Award
on Safety Violation Ordered

A prior award’s cease and desist order was
continued in acasein whichthe Postal Service
violated safety provisionsof the Agreement by
shipping non-machinable outside parcels(NM Os)
to the Pittsburgh BMCin hampers. Arbitrator
Klein specified that Pittsburgh BM C management
shall require strict adherenceto the PO-502
Handbook asit pertainsto the shipment of NMOs
toitsfacility.

On December 20, 1993, Arbitrator Klein
found that the Postal Service had failed to adhere
to safety provisionsof Article 14 and the PO-502
Handbook by not ensuring that non-machinable
outside parcelswerenot shippedtotheBMCin
hampers (AIRS#22329). Thearbitrator
indicated that aclear violation existed and the
basisof the prohibition against parcelsin hampers
is“safety-related” i.e., “thereisarisk of injury
when bending at thewai st to pick up heavy items.”
Sheissued acease and desist order and directed
the Postal Servicetonotify all officesthat NMOs
can no longer be shipped to the BM C in hampers
for any reason, including the shortage of
equipment. Sheasoindicatedthat “*[t]here must

be strict adherenceto Section 253.333 of the
Container Methods Handbook PO-502 in order
to ensurecompliancewith the safety

respong bilitiesand obligationsset forthin Article
14.”

Subsequent to the award, BM C management
and Allegheny Areal abor Relations personnel
sent | ettersto various offices stating that hampers
were being received and should not be used for
shipping tothe BM C in accordance with
Arbitrator Klein's1993 award. However, the
problem continued and the Pittsburgh Metro Area
Postal WorkersUnionfiled acivil action against
the Postal Servicein 1995. A judgeordered that
the case beremanded to Arbitrator Kleinfor
clarification of theaward becausethe award used
theterm* Pogtal Service’ without specifying
whether it related to theregion or the national
union.

At the hearing on remand, the unionindicated
that it was seeking to enforcetheprior awardin
thiscase. It acknowledged that the award was
regiond innatureand applied only tothe
Pittsourgh BMC located in Warrendale, Pa. The
union argued, however, that the cease and desist
order was clear and required strict compliance
with the PO-502 Handbook and Article 14. 1t
asserted that management isobligated to do more
than send out noticesand must enforce established
regulationsand ins st on adherenceto thetermsof
the PO-502 Handbook.

The Postal Service contended that it complied
withtheaward by notifying al officesinitsservice
areaof the cease and desist order and the need to
adhereto provisionsof the PO-502. It aso
asserted that the award wasbinding only onthe
Pittsburgh BMC and not on all other officeswhich
send NMOsto the BMC.

Arbitrator Kleinindicated that theintent of the
award wasto apply to the manner inwhich
NMOsarriveat the Pittsburgh BMC, and not to
thesituation of how NMOsarrive at another
BMC. Shestatedthat “Postal Service” inher
prior award meansthe Pittsburgh Bulk Mall
Center and “it isincumbent upon Management at
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that facility to enforcethe safety provisionsof
Article 14 and Section 253.333 of the PO-502
Handbook.” Thearbitrator further said that the
award was" enforceableaswritten if Management
implements measuresto do so.”

Theaward wastwo-pronged, the arbitrator
said, and required both notification to offending
officesof the need to comply with established
regulationsand a so strict adherence with Section
253.333 of the PO-502 Handbook. It “indicates
that APWU employeesat the PittsburghBMC
havetheright towork under safe conditionsand
thisincludes being ableto unload NM Oswhich
have been shipped in accordance Postal
Regulations,” according to Arbitrator Klein. “The
lack of compliance with the second part of the
award suggeststhat Management hassmply
chosentoignorethe safety factorsinvolvedin
unloading NM Osfrom hampers,” thearbitrator
sad.

Thearbitrator then sated that “if the offending
offices e ect to continueviol ating the Handbook
provision at issue[by sending NMOsto Pittsburgh
inhampers], the Union may have no dternative but
to grieve each occurrence and seek additional
input from other Arbitratorsand/or monetary
remedies. ...” (AIRS#29150 - USPS#ET7C-
2F-C 42736; 4/2/98)

Operation of BCS/OCR
MachinesViolated NA

ThePostal Serviceviolated the National
Agreement by not enforcing arulerequiring that
two inchesof mail beleft at the entrance of the
stacker when BCS/OCR machinery isoperating
whilemail isswept from theentrance of the
stacker, Arbitrator Nathan ruled. Hedetermined,
however, that the Servicedid not violatethe
Agreement whenitimplemented aquick change
procedurefor pulling off mail fromtheBCS/OCR
machines. Thearbitrator ordered that the Service
ceaseand desist fromfailing to enforcethetwo
inchrule.

During operation of the BCS/OCR machines,

mail ismoved fromthefeeder into stackerswhere
itisheldinan upright position by aplateor blade.
It isthen moved along down the stacker by a
screw-like mechanism or auger whichrotatesat a
highrateof speed. Whenthereisno mail inthe
stacker, the auger isexposed and when spinning, it
could cause someinjury to an employee' sfinger
tipswhen he or sheremovesor sweepsmail from
the stacker. Because of thisrisk, thebasic
requirement in sweeping isto prohibit employees
from placing her/hishandsor fingersin front of the
blade or platewhilethe machinery ison and the
auger isspinning unlessthereisat least two inches
of mail inthe stacker. Twoinchesof mail should
cover the exposed portion of theauger. If al of
themail isremoved fromtheunit, inthecaseof a
“completesweep” , the machine must be shut off.
AttheRoya Oak, Michiganfacility, management
instituted apartial sweep whichwasreferredto as
aquick changeor quick drop whenthemachineis
stopped while theplateislifted and mail ispushed
back from the entrance of the machineand not
actualy removed from the stacker but themachine
isrestarted without two inchesof mall left at the
entrance of the stacker. A grievancewasfiled
challenging the quick change procedure asbeing
unsafe becausetherewasarisk that the
employee' sfingersmight touch theauger. A
Settlement was entered into with management
which provided that BCS unitswould be shut of f
whilemail processorsare performing pull-down of
the stacker unitsonamail run. However, ayear
|ater, management reingtituted the quick change
procedures. Another grievancewasfiledanda
settlement identical tothe previousonewas
entered into. Management subsequently did not
comply with thissettlement agreement.

Theregafter theunionfiled anunfair |abor
practice charge because of the Postal Service's
refusal to abide by the grievance settlements.
However, these chargeswere deferred pending
theoutcome of thearbitration case. Theinstant
grievancewasfiled chalenging the Postal
Service' sfailureto abide by the settlement
agreementsand asserting that management
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violated safety provisionsof the National
Agreement initsoperation of theBCSOCR
equipmen.

Theunion argued that the quick change
procedureviolated safety provisionsbecausethere
must betwoinchesof mail inthe stacker if the
equipment isrunning when mail isswept. It
asserted that thetwo inchesof mail formsa
protectiveshield against injury toanemployee's
fingersby theauger. The union further contended
that the plate may not block all accessto the auger
if lessthantwoinchesof mail isinthe stacker
when the sweeper compl etesthe sweep. It
maintained al so that the settlementswere clear and
unambiguousand should have been complied with.

The Postal Service countered that therewas
no violation of theNational Agreement. It
asserted that the presence of the plate protects
against contact with the augur during the quick
changeprocedures. It thusargued that it wasnot
required to havetwoinchesof mail whilethe
machinery isoperatedinthismanner.

Management a so argued that itsagreementsdid
not cover quick change or drop procedureswhen
themail isno longer near thefront of the
mechinery.

Thearbitrator ruled that unlesstheauger is
covered by at least twoinchesof mail it presentsa
danger to employeeswhenthe OCR/BCS
equipment isoperating. He observed further that
the handbooks and manualsall requirethat two
inchesof mail beleft inthe stackerswhen the
equipment isoperating and that thisrulewas not
being enforced at thisworkplace. Hethusfound
that “[t] o the extent that the Postal Service permits
employeestoremoveall mail formthefront or
entrance of astacker whilethemachinery is
operating thereisaviolation of the Agreement.”

Thearbitrator then determined that whenthe
mail ismoved downthe stacker sothat itisno
longer near the entrance with theauger during
quick change proceduresthereisnoreasonto
requirethat there betwo inchesof mail at thefront
of the stacker when the machineisoperating.
“Oncethemail ispulled away, or swept fromthe

entrances of theauger, thereisnolonger any risk,”
thearbitrator found. Therefore, heruled that
implementation of the quick change proceduredid
not violatethe Agreement and its continuation after
the earlier settlementswasnot contrary to those
settlements.  (AIRS#22054 - USPS#C7C-4B-
C 30354; 9/18/93)

Exposureto Paint
FumesViolated CBA

ThePostd Service' srefusal to grant
employeesadministrativeleaveduetotheir
exposureto paint fumesviolated the National
Agreement, Arbitrator Grabbruled. Hedirected
that theemployeesbegiven adminigirativeleave
for timethey took off work during painting.

Whilethecelling of themain post officein
Hint, Michiganwasbeing spray painted,
employeescomplained that the paint fumes made
them nauseous and madeit impossiblefor themto
continueintheir duties. One employeerequested
adminigtrativeleave and threerequested sick
leave, but the requestswere denied and they were
instructed to takeleave without pay. Management
did not supply them with maskswhen they
complained of thefumes. Whentheemployees
returned to work thefollowing day, aplastic
screen had been draped to cover ninefoot
openingsintothegrievant’swork placeand they
were provided with paper masks.

The Postal Serviceargued that only four out of
80 to 100 employeeswho wereat work inthe
general areaof the painting complained and | eft
work. It asserted that plastic drapeswere put up
not to prevent the spread of fumes but to keep
overspray from damaging computerized
equipment. The Service contended aso that none
of thecriteriafor granting adminigirativeleave
werepresentinthiscase.

Theunion asserted that management violated
Article 14 of the Nationa Agreement by not
providing safeworking conditions. It argued that
once management provided employeeswith
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masks, they did not have problems.

Thearbitrator found that the grievantshad
been made physicaly incapabl e of working
because of the paint fumes. Hesaid that even
though otherswerenot affected smilarly, thiswas
not dispositive. Hedetermined that management
demonstrated that ahazard existed by givingthe
employeesmasksthe day after they requested
leave. Moreover, according to thearbitrator,
“certainly ‘paint fumes arenot listed asevents
which can permit Adminigtrative Leave, but the
National Agreement isvery clear onthemandate
tofurnishasafework place.” “Inaddition,” he
said, “it would not takeagreat deal of imagination,
giventheneedto provide asafework place, to
stretchthe ELM criterion of treatment for on-the-
jobinjury to cover AdminigrativeLeaveinthe
instant case.” (AIRS#11843 - USPS#CAC-4B-
C 17331, 6/16/87)

Unsafe Oper ation of
Parcel SlidesViolated NA

ThePostal Service' soverriding of sensors
resultinginthebulldozing of mail over thetop of
didesviolated the National Agreement, Arbitrator
Rimmel ruled. Heordered that the Service keep
supervisorsfrom operating the CCR console
except in casesof emergency and conduct an
immediateinvestigationinto operationsrelated to
the parcel dide, develop an appropriatejob safety
analysisandimplement it within 30 daysof the
award.

Thegrievant, aclerk who performed keying
work, wasrequired to work at the bottom of the
parcel dideswhen the deflector shiedldwasusedto
plow mail onthe conveyor belt onto the parcel
dide. Sensorswereblocked and the mailflow
overridesthe sensor and plowsmail on top of
other mail causing anunsafecondition. The
problem of overriding sensorsand bulldozing mail
was brought to management’ sattentionand
severa Step 2 settlementswereissued to stop this
practice. Moreover, supervisorsparticipatedin

overriding sensors.

Theunion contended that the Postal Service
violated Article 14 by dlowing mail tobe
bulldozed over thetop of dides. It asserted that
thisproblem existed because an override button
had been used by supervisorson many occasions
to push parcelsdown dideseven after the
automatic safety control has shut off the conveyor
belt dueto mail buildup onadide. Theunion
requested that the appropriate remedy would be
remova of theoverridebutton, prohibiting
supervisorsfrom operating mail flow equipment,
and acompl eteinvestigationinto thematter for the
purpose of making the operation safe.

The Service countered that it iscommitted to
safeoperationshbut it isessentid that override
buttons be maintai ned on the equi pment for
efficiency reasons. It argued that theunion has
failed to show that the buttonisunsafeor that an
unsafecondition existsintheareaof thedides.

Thearbitrator found that the matter of parcel
didesand theuse of an override button onthe
feeding conveyor system hasnever beenfully
resolved between the parties. Hedetermined that
safety commitmentsmade by the Servicein prior
Step 2 settlementswere binding but that line
management was not complyingwiththese
settlements. Arbitrator Rimmel found that
“athough the Service hascommitted that
supervisorswould not usethe CCR equipment,
they continueto do so in other than emergency
situations.” “Inother words,” hesaid, “ inthe
absence of an emergency, thisequipment should
beonly used by the mail flow coordinator in
accordancewiththedirectivesof locd
Management.”

Based ontheevidenceand anon-site
ingpection of relevant areas, thearbitrator found
that thereisa*legitimate purposefor theoverride
button.” Hedetermined that “the button needsto
beoperated in certain limited circumstancesfor
the purpose of keeping themail flow going.”
“However,” hecontinued, “thisoverride button
should not beused indiscriminately or to bulldoze
mail onto unprotected dides.” Hethenruledthat
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the Postal Serviceneeded to” solidify itssafety
directivesandimplement themattersthat it has
said should be part of the safe operation of the
parcel dides.” Hesaid that though hewould not
direct that the override button beremoved, he
would direct the Servicetoimmediately conduct a
full review of thematter and submit ajob safety
analysisto beimplemented within 30 daysof the
award. (AIRS#16992 - USPS#EAC-2F-C
8720; 4/10/90)

| nadequate Custodial Staffing
Constituted Safety Violation

ThePostd Service' sfailureto providetwo
custodiansto maintain the conditions of safety and
health called for by theM S-47 violated the
Nationa Agreement, accordingto aruling of
Arbitrator Martin. Thearbitrator ordered that the
one person custodia staff beincreased to two
custodians, as soon as practicable, with 40 hours
of overtimeto the custodian and/or 40 hours of
PTFtimeassigned to the section until theposition
isfilled.

In 1989, the budget for the Deadwood, South
Dakota Post Officewasreduced and anew form
4582 was prepared which reduced manpower to
1.4 custodian positions. Sincethat time, the
Deadwood, South Dakota Post Office had eight
employees, including one custodian. Inaddition,
ten hours per week of time by part-timeflexibles
wasdlocated to assist the custodian. A grievance
wasfiled complaining of thelack of adequate
custodia timeto maintainthebuildinginasafeand
sanitary condition.

Theunion argued that thispost office hasbeen
understaffed for at least 12 yearsand cutsinthe
budget should not beabasisfor determining
manpower staffing. 1t asserted that theonly
criterionfor staffingistheM S-47 and
management should be compelled to staff
according to thismanua which providesfor the
safety and hedth of employees.

The Postd Service maintained that therehave

been no complaintsregarding safety and health
problemsduring thelast few yearsand therefore
thisgrievancelacksmerit. It asserted further that
saffing isadequatefor thefecility.

Citinglanguagefrom Arbitrator Gamser’s
award in#A8-NA-0375, Arbitrator Martin
stressed that the M S-47 hasbeenissued to
providetherequired safety and health conditions
inthe post office. Hesaid that thismanual
provides*thecriterion whichmust beusedto
evaluatethe safety and health conditions’ and
“[cJompliancewiththeM 47 isahedthand
safety requirement, and if the Grievance speaks
only of safety and hedlth, itincludesthereby
compliancewiththeM $47.”

Thearbitrator then found that the 4582
prepared by management in 1989 reduced the
number of frequenciesto aminimum, disregarded
certain areasand “ generally must befound to be
aninadequate guideto the required number of
Custodian hoursat Deadwood.” He observed
that the building wasnot clean and “it was obvious
that oneman, even with ten hourshel p per week,
could not maintainit.”

“Oneof the optionsthat Management does
not haveisto maintain an unsafeand unclean
building becauseit cannot afford to keepit clean
and safe,” thearbitrator stated. “ Any employee of
the Postal Serviceiscontractually guaranteed a
safeareainwhichtowork,” hecontinued,” and
Management can either maintainitsbuildingsor
shut them down; they may not alow themto
becomeunsanitary and unsafe.”

Arbitrator Martin then found that “ no lessthan
two Custodiansare needed to maintainthe
conditionsof safety and health called for through
theM $47, and to comply with the numberswhich
would be generated through the implementation of
that manual.” (AIRS#19398 - USPS#C7T-4R-
C 21287; 11/1/91)

Page 40

July 2002



CBR

Use of 8-Shelf Cart
Congtituted Violation

ThePostal Service' saddition of an eighth shelf
toa7-shelf cart created asafety hazard and
violated theNational Agreement, Arbitrator
Caraway ruled. He ordered that the Service
ceaseand desist fromthe use of 8-shelf carts.

Management normally used 4, 6 and 7-shelf
cartsfor in-plant and vehicletransport operations.
However, because of heavy mail volume, it
decided to add an eighth shelf to a7-shelf cart.
Asaresult, the capacity of the cart wasincreased
from 35to0 40 traysand an additional 100 pounds
of weight would be added to thecart. Thiswas
estimated to increasethe 8 pound push required to
start a7-shelf cart moving to a9 pound pushto
movethe8-shelf cart.

The Postal Service contended that the
grievancewasinarbitrable becauseit wasnot filed
within 14 daysof thedatethe actua modification
occurred. It asserted dsothat it had theright to
modify the cart and other carsused at thefacility
areequa inweight and sizetothiscart. The
Service maintained further that the use of the 8-
shelf cart waslimited to in-plant purposesand
therefore should not create asafety hazard.

Theunion contended initialy that it did not
know when theactual modificationwasfirst
completed and filed agrievance assoon asit was
aware of the 8-shelf cart. It argued that the cart
was overloaded and created asafety hazard.
Moreover, the P-13 Handbook specificaly limits
thesizeof cartsto 7-shelf carts, theunion
asserted. Theexcessiveweight towhich
employeesare exposed constitutes asafety hazard
and poses persona injury risksto employees, it
continued.

Thearbitrator ruledfirst of al that the
grievancewastimely filed. 1t determinedthat it
concerned acontinuing violation of the P-13
Handbook and the National Agreement. Hethen
observed that the P-13 Handbook limits cartsto
threesizes, 4, 6, or 7 shelves, and theload height

to no morethan 63 inchesfor cartsused for in-
plant movementsof short distances. Hefound that
the 8-shelf cart hasaheight of 72to 74 inches.
Hethen stated that “ the addition of an 8-shelf is
contrary to theintent of the P-13 Handbook.”
Arbitrator Caraway further found that the
additional 100 poundsof weight from theextra
shelf congtituted a“ significant weight increase’ and
giventhedistancethe cart would havetotravel
from the casing areato the dock, pushing the cart
would require*“aconsderable physicd effort.” He
thus concluded that the addition of the 8-shelf cart
“creates an unnecessary safety hazard” and
violated the National Agreement. (AIRS#3595 -
USPS#S1V-3D-C 26854, 6/25/84)

FailuretoProvide
Bullet-Proof Glass Violated NA

ThePostd Service' sfailureto provide security
for window clerksintheform of bullet-proof glass
onthecounter violated the National Agreement,
Arbitrator Cohenruled. Heordered that the
Postal Serviceingtall protectiveglassfor the
windows.

ThiscasearoseintheHint, Michigan post
officeafter theunionfiled agrievanceasserting
that therewasno security to prevent window
clerksagainst possibleinjury fromthepublic. It
requested that protective glassbeinstalled at the
main officewindowsor uniformed security guards
be stationed inthe main officelobby. Severa
window clerkstestified that they had been
subjected toirate customerswho threatened them
with violenceand spat onthem. Thoughthey
were aware of warning buzzersthat had been
installed to usein case of danger, use of the
buzzerswould requirethem to move andleavethe
counter open. Inaddition, awitnesstestified that
though therearefivevideo camerasat thefacility,
several of them areaimed improperly, do not
work, and are not monitored. The Postal Service
produced apostal inspector who testified that
there had been no robberiesat the post office or
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any shortage of fixed credits. A post office
manager testified that there had been no evidence
of assaultsby customersonclerksinthemain
lobby of the Post Office. However, she
acknowledged that some carriershad been
assaulted ontheir routes.

Theunion argued that therewas no protection
againg violent and unstableindividuaswho are
customersat the post office. It asserted that the
video camerasareineffectiveand thebuzzer darm
systemscannot be used quickly and effectively. It
argued that when guardswere present inthe
lobby, lesstroublearose. The Postal Service
countered that for at |east fifteen years, no clerks
had been assaulted, robbed or injured at the Post
Office. Therefore, it contended that thereisno
reason to placeaguard in thelobby or glasson
thescreenline.

Arbitrator Cohen stated that “[d] espitethe
fact that no robberies had taken placein the Post
Office, | believethat the Union hasmadeastrong
casethat security isinadequate for thewindow
unit.” Hefound that therewasashowingthat a
clerk had been spit at, and evidence of “violent
abuse, curaing, andthelike’ by customers
towardsclerks. Thearbitrator stated that “[t]he
need for security should beanticipated” and “[i]t
should not requiretheinjury of aclerk or the
robbery of the Post Officeto causethe Postal
Servicetoact.” Moreover, “verbal abuseand
threats cannot be discounted” even though no
physical harm hasoccurred, he stated.

Arbitrator Cohenthen ruled that aminimum,
“placement of bullet-proof glassonthe counter is
areasonablerequest.” (AIRS#847 - USPS
#CB8C-4B-C 20477; 6/30/82)

Ban Against Chair Use
Violated CBA

The Postd Service' sban against chairsbeing
used on the* Scan-Where-You-Band” encoding
operation violated the National Agreement,
Arbitrator Fragnoli ruled. Thearbitrator found

that the chairswere not removed for safety
concernsurgent enough to allow an abrogation of
past practice and achangein working conditions
without first addressing suchissueswith the

L abor-Management Safety Committee.

OnMarch 1, 1994, management at the Tampa
Post Office banned the use of rest barsand chairs
intheareaof two conveyer beltsused for labeling
packagesfor ddlivery tovariousairlines. Clerks
assignedto labeling themail stood or used rest
barsor small swivel stoolsbetween each conveyor
belt and encoded information onasmall
keyboard. They then took the packagesfromthe
bt totheir left, label ed them and placed them on
theconveyor totheright. Anelevenyear
employeetestified he used both chairsand rest
barsand sincethey have been removed hehas
had trouble with hiskneesbecause of thetwisting
motion onthetray sidewhen hebendstoread zip
codes. Heindicated that in asitting position he
did not need to twist hislower body and that at
theend of hisshiftsheisvery fatigued. This
employeefurther stated that beforethe ban, he
used the chairsand rest barsfor two yearswhen
the new Scan Where You Band devicewas
ingtituted. Another employeetestified that using
chairsonthetray sidewasnever aproblem and
hiskneesand back hurt when hedid not use of a
chair.

Theunion argued that the use of rest barsand
chairswas an established past practicewhich had
lasted over the course of two contracts. It
asserted that management unilaterally discontinued
their usewithout bargaining which violated past
practiceand Article 37, Section 5 of the
Agreement. Theunionfurther contended that
therewasno indication that any injurieshad
resulted fromtheir use. However, it conceded that
useof chairsandrest barsinthesack (large
package) areacould create safety problems.

ThePogtal Serviceargued that use of chairs
and rest bars presented asafety hazard in the new
operation involving the Scan Where You Band
device. It presented testimony of an employee
who indicated that therest bar and chair create
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safety problemson the sack conveyor whenthe
clerk hasto move sacks and boxesfrom onebelt
toanother. Inaddition, asafety specialist tetified
that it wasimpossibletolift or twistinastting
position and thereforerest barsand chairswerea
safety hazard.

Thearbitrator found that “ asufficiently long
past practiceexisted of alowing employeesto sit
or leanwhileat the Scan Where You Band” area.
In addition, she observed that therewasno
evidenceof any injury usingthesedevicesand
thereforetestimony by the Service' ssafety
specidist that chairswere unsafewas* suspect.”
Moreover, thearbitrator found that amanagement
task force did not evenlook into the possibility
that the chairsor rest barswereunsafeduring their
consideration of the new equipment and therewas
no showing that “ safety wassuch an overriding
and urgent concern that thelocal Safety
Management Committee could not beallowed to
review theissue.”

Thearbitrator found that sincechairsprovide
thesamerelief fromfatigue, no remedy will be
granted inregard to rest bars despite the mandates
of Article 37, Section5. (AIRS#26408 - USPS
#H90C-1H-C 94036862; 12/3/96)

FailuretoProvideM edical-
Health ServicesViolated NA

ThePostal Service' sfailureto provide
medical-health servicesto employeeson Tour 1in
the Portland, Maine Post Officeviolated the
National Agreement, accordingtoaruling by
Arbitrator Liebowitz. Thearbitrator ordered that
the Serviceisto beaccorded contractually-
provided discretion to determine how serviceswill
be provided including ready availability of therest
roomwith bed, properly maintained and stocked
medical/hedth suppliesand drugs, theavailability
of serviceslikethose provided by thenurseson
other tours, with particular referenceto non-
emergency situations, and up-to-date CPR and
firstad certifications.

A grievancewasfiled chalenging thefalureto
haveaquadified medicd practitioner availablefor
the safety and health of employeeson Tour 1. The
union asserted that the Portland Post Office has
determined the** highest standards of occupational
medical care’” by assigning nursesto Tours2 and
3, but has subjected Tour 1 employeesto
disparate treatment by not making such services
avallabletothem. Nurses hoursat thefacility are
7:00 AM until 3:30 PM and 3:00 PM until 11:30
PM. Therefore, some Tour 1 employeeswho
report at 10:30 PM havean hour’sevening nurse
coverage. Theevidence showed that nurses
provide non-emergency servicesandthereisa
room with abed inwhich an employeecanrest.
Employeesonall tourshavereceived CPRandin
someinstances, first aidtraining but thisis
emergency training and doesnot involvetreatment
of conditions such asheadaches, or other illnesses
whileonduty. These employeesalso do not
adminigter toitemsinfirst ad cabinets. An
ingpection of themedical cabinetsrevea ed that
they werenot fully stocked and keptinaclean
and sanitary condition.

Thearbitrator found that theevidence
establishesafailure by management to comply
with requirements of the EL-806 Sections411,
422.1, and 422.2. Inaddition, he concluded that
management hasfailed to provideto Portland Tour
1 employees”*thehighest quality treatment as
delineated in Section 862.1 [of theELM] or the
“*highest tandards of occupationa medica care,
adviceand treatment’” asset forthin Section
862.2[of theELM].” Moreover, hefound that
the evidenceisincons stent with meseting the
requirementsof National Agreement Article14.1
to“‘ provide safeworking conditionsindl . ..
ingdlations.’” Inaddition, he concluded that “the
evidence showsno convincing reasonsfor treating
Tour 1 employeesheredifferently fromthoseon
Tours2and 3.” However, giventhediscretionary
nature of languagein Article 14.3.C and thefact
that gaffing isamanagement function, Arbitrator
Liebowitz determined that the Servicewasto be
accorded the contractually-provided discretionin
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making adetermination how servicesincluding
those provided by nurseson other tourswith
particular referenceto non-emergency Stuations.
(AIRS #200392 - USPS #N4C-1K-C 26402;
10/30/87)

In asubsequent award by Arbitrator
Liebowitz inthiscase, he noted that hehad
retained jurisdiction aspart of the award because
of the* necessarily flexiblenature of theremedy.”
Heindicated that though the award does not
requirethat anursebehired for Tour 1, because
that would be beyond hisjurisdiction, it does
require”‘theavailability of serviceslikethose
provided by the nurses on the other tours, with
particular referenceto non-emergency Stuations.””
Hethen found that though management had taken
someremedia stepsto comply with theaward, he
did not see“what steps management hastaken as
to provision of themedical-health services
discussed in my Opinion and Award to employees
on Tour 1in Portland beyond those having to do
with medica suppliesandtrained personndl.” He
concluded that theremedy called for wasto
“reiteratetheorigina award” andindicated that a
claim of non-compliancewould be subject to the
grievance-arbitration procedure. (AIRS#12859
- USPS#N4C-1K-C 26402; 4/26/88)

USPSRequired to Comply
with Local Building Code

The Postal Servicewasrequired to comply
with the South FloridaBuilding Codeinthe
construction of adataroominsideapostal facility,
Arbitrator Baldovinruled. Heordered that the
Postal Servicerequest that acompetent and
qudified South FloridaBuilding inspector givean
advisory opinion asto the extent to which thedata
room satisfied thelocal code. Intheevent the
dataroomisfound to violatethe code, it must be
brought up to code standards asaresult of the
advisory inspection, according to thearbitrator.

The Postal Service constructed aroomto
house computer equipment on theworkroom floor

of afacility whichincluded windowsand doors,
interior and exterior walls, and adropped acoustic
callingwithamechanical cooling systemaboveit.
A grievancewasfiled asserting that the Postal
Servicefailed to comply with the South Florida
Building Codein constructing thisroom.

However, no onefromthe South FloridaBuilding

I nspector’ s officewas consulted about theroom
and did not render an opinion asto theextent to
whichthe Codeappliesto aninternal freestanding
room or structure. Thestewardwhofiledthe
grievance specified thefollowing asdeficienciesor
safety concernswith theroom: (1) the absence of
adouble header inthedoor at the north bearing
wall; (2) roof joists 24 inches on center should be
16 incheson center; (3) stud wall face plates
should beanchored in concrete seveninches, not
four inches; (4) romex wirewasused instead of
conduit; (5) gypsumwith acoat of stucco and
paint used on exterior walls.

The Serviceargued that it was not required to
comply with the South FloridaBuilding Code. To
support thiscontention, it submitted alegal
memorandum from the USPS L aw Department
AtlantaField Officewhich stated that “‘ [t] he
Postal Servicestrongly believesthat it has
sovereignimmunity with respect to stateand local
building permit and zoning regul ationsand permit
feeswith respect to any renovationsfor whichthe
Postal Servicehascontracted...””

Theunion countered that the M S-1
Handbook concerning Operation and
Maintenanceof Real Property stateswith regard
to structurd featuresof USPSbuildings:
“*Compliancewith local codesor ordinancesor
modd building codeisrequired asaminimum
standard.””

Onthebasisof the M S-1 Handbook, the
arbitrator concluded that “ at | east with respect to
USPSbuildings, more specifically thestructura
featuresof USPSbuildings, the Servicehas
voluntarily established compliancewith local codes
asaminimum standard for such buildings.”
“Therefore,” thearbitrator stated, “ even assuming
asclaimed by the Servicethat itisnot required by
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law to abide by loca building codes, the Service
hasdetermined that it will comply with such codes
asaminimum standard with respect to the
structural featuresof USPSbuildings(MS-1, 6-
101and 102) ... [and)] . .. [tJhisminimum
standard expressedinMS-1, 6-102 isasdlf
imposed criteria. ...” Arbitrator Baldovin further
found the“modd building code’” towhichtheMS-
1 refers“embracesandincludesal thecriteria
contained in the South FloridaCode’. . . because
“itissafeto assumethat amodel building code
would not run contrary to local codesand
ordinances.”

Thearbitrator then reasoned that only a
qudified South FloridaBuilding inspector can
determinewhat portionsof thebuilding codeare
applicableto thefreestanding room, if the code
appliesto such aroom, and what portionsof the
code have not been complied with, if thecodeis
found to apply totheroom. Hethusordered that
the Service obtain an advisory opinionfroma
HoridaBuilding inspector onthisissueand bring
theroom up to code standardsif necessary asa
result of thisinspection. (AIRS#25300- USPS
#H90T-1H-C 93010102; 3/26/96)

Ban on Per sonal Fans
Violated Binding Past Practice

The Postal Service' sdirectivethat persona
fanswould no longer be permitted onthe
workroom floor viol ated an established past
practiceand the National Agreement, Arbitrator
Williamsruled. Hedirected that the order banning
theuse of fansberescinded immediately.

In 1986, management informed al clerksat
the Odessa, Texas Post Officethat personal fans
would not be permitted on theworkroom floor.
Sincethe 1970s, it was an accepted practicefor
employeesto use personal portablefanswhile
performing stationary casing duties. A new air
conditioning unit and celling fanswere
subsequently installed but thefanswere only one
and one-hdf feet fromthecelling. Theunion

provided evidencethat temperaturesranging from
80 degreesand going as high as 84-85 degrees
occurred. ThePostal Servicetook readingswith
the highest temperature being 80 degreesand
someinthemid-70sor lower. However, the
Postal Service' sreadingsweretaken mainly at
night and the union’ sreadingsweretaken during
thedays.

Theunion argued that the Postal Service's
decision to banthefanscongtituted unilatera
action with violated an accepted past practice. It
asserted that though cellingsfanswereinstaled,
they did not hang below thelevel of thelightsat
ten feet of f thefloor asagreed to by the
postmaster and the union. The union contended
that temperatureswerewell above 80 degrees
evenwiththecelingfans. It maintained further
that therewas no proof that thefans constituted a
safety hazard sincethere have been no past
accidentswith fansand thefansused provided
protection against finger injuries. Inaddition, the
union argued that management did not meet its
burden of provingthat theuseof fansledto
inefficient operations.

The Postal Service contended that evenif
there may have been apracticeto allow fansinthe
past, atechnologica changewasingtituted
whereby air conditioning and celling fanswere
installed whichwould permit termination of the
practice. It asserted al so that fans presented
safety hazards because of problemswith extension
cords, the potential hazard of fingersbecoming
caught infan blades, and fansfalling off the cases
fromtimetotime. Moreover, the Serviceargued
that theuse of personal fanscreated inefficiencies
becauseit was necessary to movethefansduring
thetour which could adversely impact on mail
digtributiontime,

Thearbitrator found that therewasan
established past practice of dlowing fansonthe
workroom floor at thisfacility. Hedetermined that
theingtallation of celling fanswasnot conditioned
ontheeimination of persond fansand therewas
no bonafidetechnologica changewhichwould
allow for achangeintheexisting past practice.
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Hereasoned that theingtallation of celling fansdid
not remedy high temperatureswhichwerea
reason for allowing the use of persona fans. The
arbitrator further found that the use of personal
fansdid not create asafety hazard that would
justify elimination of the past practice. He
indicated that there had been noindustrial
accidentsfor twenty yearsat thisfacility, therewas
no evidencethat thefans' cordshad presented
problems, and therewere guardson thefans
which could prevent afinger being caughtinthe
fans. Thearbitrator also determinedthat it was
possibleto bolt thefansto the caseswhichwould
prevent them fromfaling off thecases. In
addition, he stressed that management was
obligated to provide hedl thful and safeworking
conditions, that ahealthful climatewould be72to
74 degrees, andtemperaturesat thisfacility
exceededthislevel. Moreover, thearbitrator
determined that the use of fansdid not adversaly
affect efficiency, but actualy improvedit. Hethus
ruled that management viol ated the National
Agreement whenit unilaterdly eliminated the
practice of using fanson theworkroom floor.
(AIRS#400585 - USPS#WAC-5S-C 36608; 6/
18/88)

Ban on GloveUseDuring
Manual Work Violated NA

ThePostd Service'srefusal toalow
employeestowear gloveswhilemanually
distributingthe mail violated Article 14 of the
National Agreement and an established past
practice, Arbitrator Eaton ruled. Heordered that
management alow thewearing of glovesas
established inthepracticeof the parties.

Over the course of severd years, distribution
clerksintheLasVegas, Post Officeused gloves
whilemanually throwing both lettersand flatsinto
cases. However, in 1982, management
announced that gloveswere not authorized for this
useontheworkroomfloor. Subsequently, a
grievancewasfiled chalenging management’s

actionasaviolation of past practiceand Article
14 of the Agreement.

Severd clerkstestified that for several years
prior to 1982, they used gloveswhilecasingthe
mail and most other female clerksa sowore
glovesfor thispurpose. Theseemployeestestified
that thereason they used gloveswasto protect
against paper cutsto their fingers, catchesto their
fingersfrom staplesor other objectsinthemail,
and other scrapes, cutsand sores. These
witnesses also stated that the use of gloves
increased their productivity becausethey wereno
longer concerned about minor injuriesand rashes
and could work faster and more comfortably. A
labor relationsrepresentativetestified that she
knew of no policy allowing glovestobeworn
during manud digtribution.

Theunion argued that therewas an established
policy of alowing clerkstowear gloveswhile
manually digtributing mail which management
arbitrarily rescinded. It asserted a so that theuse
of gloveswasrequired by Article 14 because of
accidents caused without them. Theunion
contended al so that thereisno prohibitioninthe
handbookson thewearing of gloveswhile
manually distributingmail. 1t indicated that the P-
13 Handbook issilent onthisissueand therefore,
itisoptiond to alow useof glovesfor manual
distribution aslong asthey do not interferewith
productivity or accuracy.

The Postal Service contended that the
Supervisor’s Safety Handbook (P-13 Handbook)
doesnot list manual distribution aswork that
should bedonewith gloves. It asserted alsothat
therefusal to allow gloveswasalong standing
practice astestified by amanagement officid.

Thearbitrator found that Section 543 of the
P-13 Handbook neither prohibited nor prescribed
useof glovesfor manua distribution, but
addressed two different and distinct Situations not
applicableinthiscase. Theseincluded when
glovesmust beworn for safety reasonsand when
they may not beworn for safety reasonsasinthe
case of machine operatorsor personsworking on
or near machinery, conveyors, drills, chaindrives
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or similar typesof mechanica equipment. Hethen
foundthat “the Union’stestimony that itisunsafe
towork without glovesismore persuasive than
management’scountervailing testimony that
productivity would suffer if they did.” “Whilethe
safety hazard isadmittedly not great,” the
arbitrator said, “the Union has satisfactorily
demonstrated that cuts, scrapes, and soresdo
develop, especidly onthe hands of women
distribution clerkswhenthey arenot dlowedto
wear gloves.” Heconcluded alsothat
management had not shown that use of glovesin
these circumstances decreases mail handling
efficiency. (AIRS#6427 - USPS#WI1C-5D-C
8814; 11/14/85)

String Top Prohibition
Violated NA

ThePostal Service sdirectionto supervisors
that wearing of string typetopswas prohibited
violated the National Agreement, Arbitrator
Dobranski ruled. Heordered that female
employeesof the Chicago Bulk Mail Center shall
be allowed to wear tops described as string type
tops.

IN 1982, the General Supervisor on Tour 2 at
the Chicago Bulk Mail Center sent aletter toal
supervisorsthat indicated that therehad beena
disregard of BMC Safety rulesand that many
employeesarenot in compliancewiththedress
code. Theletter stated that there should beno
string typetopsworn. Several femaeclerks
testified that supervisorsinformed themthat they
could not wear string typetopsbecausethey
presented asafety hazard and onetestified that
shewas placed off the clock for four hoursfor
wearing such atop. They indicated that the
preferred to wear thistype of top during hot
weather. Inaddition, they testified that they had
never beeninvolvedin any accidentswhile
wearing thetops. Moreover, oneemployee stated
that theonly difference between astring typetop
worn by femalesand tank topsworn by males,

which were accepted by management, wasthat a
wider band or strap existed onthetank top. A
ma e employeetestified that hewasissued aletter
of warning for wearing atank top but it was
rescinded in the grievance procedure. He stated
that he saw no significant difference betweenthe
tank topshewore and the kind worn by female
employees. Theunionintroduced acopy of the
dresscodeinto evidencewhich stated that “* Your
torso must be covered by apparel nothing less
than what isknown astank-top, whereby only
armsarebare’”.

The Genera Supervisor of theBM Ctetified
that hisletter wasissued to givedirectionto
supervisorswho werenot following the safety
rules. He stated that the upper torso wasnot
covered by the string typetop aswasrequired by
thedresscode. Inaddition, thissupervisor said
that the kind of top worn by the male employee
wasdifferent from the string-typetop worn by
femal esbecause more of historsowas covered.
Though he acknowledged that he did not know of
any accidentswhich had resulted fromwearing
tank topsor string typetops, hesaid that therewa
agreater risk from string topsof abrasions, bruises
andthestringshbreaking.

Theunion argued that management failed to
show that string typetopsworn by female
employeesactually caused accidents. Thoughthe
Serviceclaimed that thewearing of string type
topswereunsafe, they havefailed to show how or
why thewearing of thistype of top congtitutesa
safety hazard, the union contended. It asserted
asothat the Service selectively singled out string
typetopsfor prohibition but did not do so for tank
topsworn by men even though therewasno
sgnificant difference between thetwo.

The Postal Service contended that nothing less
than what isknown astank topsisappropriateto
wear and thetype of topsworn by female
employeesdo not fall withinthat definition. It
asserted that the dresscode policy itself isnot
being chalengedinthiscaseand al that
management hasdoneisto makeaclarification of
thedresspolicy whenitissued thedirective.
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Therefore, the Serviceargued that it did not have
to show the safety reasonsfor the dress code
policy inthiscase.

Thearbitrator found that the Serviceorigindly
predicated itsban on string typetops on safety
grounds asdemonstrated by theletter toits
supervisors, and thereforetheissue of safety
should be consideredinthiscase. He stated
thereforethat theissuewaswhether the Service
violated Article 14 of the Nationa Agreement by
issuing theletter of direction banning string type
tops. Heobserved, however, that therewasno
showing of accidentsor injuriesfrom thewearing
of string typetopsor any demonstration that more
bruisesor abrasionsresulted from wearing the
string-typetops. Accordingly, hefound that the
Postal Servicedid not establish that wearing of
string typetops constituted asafety hazard.
Arbitrator Dobranski further determined that there
wasno significant difference between tank tops
allowed by the dress code and the string type top
banned by management inthiscase. Hecited the
fact that the constructionissimilar in both kinds of
topsand theonly differencewasthat therewasa
dightly wider bandinthetank topsworn by male
employees. “Ineach case,” thearbitrator said,
“the garment permitsthe shouldersto be bareand
thedifference between themisoneof inggnificant
degreerather than one of fundamental differencein
kind.” Hethusconcluded that the string typetops
worn by femal e empl oyees are encompassed
within theterm tank top referredtointheBMC
dresscodeand theletter of direction therefore
wasinviolation of thedresscode. (AIRS#7247
- USPS#C1C-4A-C 10950; 7/24/85)

Safety Measures Ordered
for Mail Transportation

ThePogtal Service'sfailureto take adequate
measuresto protect the safety of MV Semployees
during transportation of mail fromthe Pittsburgh,
Pa. General Mail Facility tothe East Liberty
Station violated the Nationa Agreement and the

parties Loca Memorandum of Understanding,
accordingtoaruling of Arbitrator Fullmer. The
arbitrator ordered that driversbe provided with
assi stancethrough either the assignment of clerks
or riderswhen making deliveriesto the station.

After mail istransported by Motor Vehicle
Operatorsand Tractor Trailer Operatorsto the
East Liberty Stationin Pittsburgh, Pa., themall
must be unloaded by theMVO/TTOs. Drivers
usudly do not know theweight of the contentsin
four wheel cartssincethey are pre-loaded. When
thestationisclosed, thedriver must crossfour
lanes of highway, open the outer gateto the
station, go back to the unl oading dock, and unlock
thestation. Thesame stepshaveto betakenin
reverseoncethemail isunloaded. TheEast
Liberty Stationislocatedinahigh crime
neighborhood and an after hours saloonislocated
near thestation. During 1997 and 1998, the
partiesentered into several pre-arbitration
settlement agreementswhich stated that
management would provide assistancetoMVS
employeesto avoid accidentsand for security.
During the 18 monthswhichfollowed these
Settlements, the driverscontinued to have
problemswith overloaded cartswhich they had to
unload themsalves and threatening behavior onthe
part of after hours patronswhen they made
ddiveriesafter the station wasclosed. Theunion
thenfiled agrievance.

Theunion argued that the Postal Service
violated theNational Agreement by not providing
assistancefor driverswhenthey areunloading
mail. It contended that thedrivershavedifficulties
giventheweight and volumeof mail whenthey
haveto unload at the closed station without
assistance. Theunion asserted that thisoccurs
becausetrailersare pre-loaded and thedriversdo
not have knowledge of the contents. Moreover, it
maintai ned that unl oading proceduresat the East
Liberty Station arealso aproblem becauseitis
locatedinahighcrimearea.

The Postal Servicecountered that it hasbeen
dealing with the problemscited by theunionona
continuing basi sincluding changesmade by the
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Lead Manager, Transportation Networksafter the
grievancewasfiled. Thischangeinvolved delaying
thedispatch timesof thetrucksuntil thefirst Clerk
Craft employeesarriveat the East Liberty Station.
Asaresult, the station would be open when the
driversarrivethereand thedriversdid not haveto
park acrossthe street to open the gate. In
addition, membersof the Clerk Craft could assist
withtheunloading.

Thearbitrator noted that the provisions of
Article 14, Handbook PO-701, and the parties
local agreement apply inthiscase. He stressed
that “ Article 14, Safety and Health, requiresthe
Employer to provide safeworking conditionsand
to develop asafeworking force.” Heindicated
that the Handbook providesthat the Postal
Service should coordinate station dispatcheswith
managers, distribution, and station and branchesto
enhancetheflow of mail fromdistributionto
ddivery and when necessary, provide motor
vehicleoperatorswith keysfor stationsscheduled
torecelvemail prior toopening. Inaddition, the
parties |ocal agreement providesthat for
unloading mail at stationsor branches, thevehicle
driver will receiveass stance from unit personnd.
Arbitrator Fullmer thenfound that itisunsafefor
driversto unload overloaded cartsoff their trucks
without assistance. Heindicated that the Lead
Manager required that prior to dispatch, whenitis
discovered that |oads are too heavy, they should
be corrected. However, thearbitrator found that
sincemany of the shipmentsare pre-loaded, this
processwasinsufficient. He stated that given
delayed dispatch schedul es, assistance can be
made availablefromridersthat areavailableor
from Clerk Craft employees.

Arbitrator Fullmer found that safety problems
that occur because of crimein the areahave been
alleviated by stepstaken by theLead Manager in
delaying thedispatch timesothat thestationis
openwhenthetrucksarrive. Inthisway, hesaid
that driversareableto driveright up to theloading
dock and have clerkswork with them during the
unloading process.

Thearbitrator ordered that solong asthe

present conditionsprevail at the East Liberty
Station, driversshould be provided assistancein
making deliveries. Hedirected that if addiveryis
madeto the station during the hourswhenitis
open, then assi stance should be provided by either
assistance by Clerksassigned to the station, and/
or assistance by ridersassigned fromthe GMFto
ridewiththedrivers. Moreover, heordered that if
addivery ismadeduring hourswhenthestationis
closed, then assistance should be afforded by
assgning ridersfromthe GMF toridewith the
drivers. Thearbitrator indicated that if conditions
change, the Postdl Serviceshould retaintheright
tomovefor achangeinthisaward. (AIRS
#33545 - USPS#C98V-1C-C 99268267; 5/30/
2000)

Hot Working Conditions
Ruled Violation

The Postal Service sfailureto maintain normal
and safetemperaturerangesin the AtlantaBulk
Mail Facility’sAnnex Building during the summer
of 1998 violated the National Agreement,
Arbitrator Hardin ruled. Heordered that the
Serviceretain anindependent, licensed engineering
or testing firm chosen with the agreement of the
union to monitor daily temperaturevariationsat
representativework locationsinthe Annex from
June 1 through October 1, 2001. Inaddition, he
directed that thefirm chosen makeperiodic
reportsin duplicateto the Postal Serviceandthe
union. Moreover, heordered that if thereports
show that temperaturesat awork location exceed
78 degrees Fahrenheit during ten percent or more
of thetoursworked on Tours 2 or 3 that the
Postal Servicetakefurther measuresasmay be
required to bring thetemperaturerangetowithin
that prescribed by USPS manual s and handbooks.

Thiscasearose during the summer of 1998 at
the AtlantaBulk Mail Facility’sAnnex Building.
Temperaturesrose on Tour 3to ashigh as 102
degrees. Instead of closing thefacility,
management relaxed the dress code, provided
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cold beverages, dlowed liberad breaksintheair
conditioned break areas, and allowed thosewho
wished to go hometo leave but required themto
usescheduledleave. Asaresult, someindividuas
left and used annual leave, leavewithout pay, and
afew used sick leavewith appropriate medical
documentation. The Postal Service made some
changesinthehesting, ventilating, and air
conditioning systemsduring the summer of 1999.
However, these changeswere unsuccessful.
During the spring and summer of 2000, the Postal
Service made magjor additionsto the HVAC
system. However, the effectiveness of these
changeswasnot known at thetime of the hearing.

Theunionargued that working conditionsat
the Annex during much of the summer of 1998
violated Article 14’ srequirement to provide safe
working conditions. It asserted that the Postal
Servicedid not deny that the Annex Buildingwas
too hot for normal work, citing testimony of the
Manager of Distribution Operationsthat
temperaturesreached and exceeded 100 degrees
Fahrenheit on someevenings. Moreover, the
union cited thefact that the Servicealowed
employeesto leaveasif on scheduled leave
because of the heat. It requested that employees
who used personal |eave or leave without pay
because of the hot conditionshavetheir leaveor
pay restored by agrant of administrativeleave.

The Postal Service countered that theunion
falledto provethat working conditionswere
unsafe. It argued that evidencethat conditions
were hot and uncomfortablewereinsufficient. The
Service asserted al so that $100,000 worth of new
alr conditioning equipment hasbeeningtalled since
thesummer of 1998. Inaddition, it maintained
that granting administrativeleavewould be
inappropriatein thiscase becausethe conditions
of the ELM have not been met.

Thearbitrator indicated that “thefactsare not
serioudy indispute” and concluded that “[a] bulk
mail center with aninterior temperature of 102
degreesand humid, muggy, ambient airisnota
safeenvironment inwhichto performthefull range

of dutiesrequired of employeesassigned tothe
facility.” Accordingly, heruledthat the Postal
Serviceviolated Article 14. Inaddition, hecited
Arbitrator Nathan'scasein #C7C-4L-C 35592
(1994) as support for thisdecision and added as
did theother arbitrator that “‘ Maintenance Series
Handbook M S-49, Energy Conservation and
Maintenance Contingency Planning, requires
HVAC systemsbe set so that insidetemperatures
inworking areasregularly occupied rangefrom 65
degreesinthe cold monthsto 78 degreesinthe
warmmonths.’”

With respect to theremedy, Arbitrator Hardin
stated that though he had the authority to grant the
remedy sought by the union, hefound that the
requested remedy was*“incomplete.” He
reasoned that thelarger number of employeeswho
stayed at work would not be compensated under
the union’srequested remedy whereasthe others
wholeft might experience®awindfdl.” The
arbitrator then indicated that to provide uniform
lump sum paymentsto everyonewho worked at
the Annex, or those who worked on Tour 3 might
beinadequatefor those who found conditionstoo
difficult to be present at the Annex. Hetherefore
concluded that “ thereisno scheme of retroactive
compensation that would providereal justiceto
theaffected employeesasindividuas.” Arbitrator
Hardin found that instead of amonetary award, he
would requirethe Postal Service“to devote
equivalent resourcesto insuring that theworking
conditionsof Summer 1998 arenever again
inflicted upontheemployeesinthe Annex.” (AIRS
#34469 - USPS#H94C-1H-C 99262477; 10/
19/2000)

Rulere: OCR Light Practice
for JamsViolated NA

The Posta Service' sadoption of anew
procedurefor abating hazardous heat and light
exposurewhileclearing jamsfrom optical
character readersattached to FSM 881 mail
sorting machinesviolated the Nationa Agreement,
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Arbitrator Remingtonruled. Heordered that the
Postal Service cease and desist enforcement of its
work rulefor clearing jamson the FSM/OCR and
instead comply with the safety recommendations
of itsown occupationa medica consultant until
suchtimeasajointly conducted job safety analysis
iscompleted and itsrecommendationsare
approved by thelocdl joint |abor-management
safety and hedlth committee.

Thiscasearosein St. Paul, Minnesota. On
September 8, 1999, local management issued
instructionsto sorting machine operatorsto
discontinuethe practice of turning off the OCR
light when clearingjamsand instead avert their
eyessoasnottolook at thelight. Preceding
issuanceof thisingtruction, afull-timeregular clerk
complained of aneyeinjury resulting from
exposureto highintengity light from an OCR.
Though theemployee had turned thelight of f
before clearing ajam, which wasthe approved
safety procedure at thetime, shesuffered froma
case of welder’sburn and short-term headaches
aswell ascontinuing to experiencevision
problems. Following management’ sissuance of
the new procedure, agrievancewasfiled at Step
2 and thereafter referred to thelocal Safety and
Health Committee. Thecommitteewasunableto
resolvetheissue, and thereafter, the grievancewas
appeaedto arbitration.

Theunion argued that local management’s
changein proceduresviolatestherequirement to
provide safeworking conditions. It asserted that
management’ saction sacrificed safeworking
conditionsintheinterest of increased productivity.
Moreover, the union contended that the Postal
Serviceunilaterally developed thenew work rule
without review, discussion or negotiationwiththe
local Joint Labor-Management Safety and Health
Committee. Inaddition, it maintained that
management hasignored itsown medical advicein
order to speed up thework of mail sorting
machineoperators.

The Postal Service countered that it made
modificationsto the FSM/OCRsin December
1998 to eiminatelight leaksor light reflectionsand

these modificationswere considered satisfactory in
asubsequent OSHA inspection. It asserted that
thereisno significant ultra-violet or infrared energy
emitted by the OCR lamp, and thelamp does not
need to beturned off every timethereisajam.
The Servicefurther contended that procedures
smilar totheonesat thisfacility arefollowedin
other postal distribution plantsthroughout the
country, and thegrievanceisnot arbitrablesinceit
has nationa implicationsand should be heard at
thenationd levd.

Thearbitrator found that though theissuein
thisgrievancehaspotentia national implications,
modificationsto the procedure had been doneon
aloca level inthe past and therewasno showing
that thisprocedure was burdensome. Inaddition,
hefound that the Postal Service' sarbitrability
argument wasnot raised in atimely manner.

Arbitrator Remington then madefindingsof
fact after consdering the documentary evidence
andwitness' testimony. Hefound that thoughthe
OCR hasbeen modified to block light leakage and
reflection, thismodification doesnot address
direct exposureto light that ispossiblewhen ajam
isbeing cleared and the OSHA inspection report
doesnot addressthe clearing of jamswith thelight
onandisnot relevant. Inaddition, hefound that
someultraviolet lightisemitted fromthe OCR
lamp bulb but it does not appear that thislightis
hazardousunder normal operating conditions.
“However,” hestated, “itispossible, dthough
unlikely, that anindividua not wearing proper eye
protection could beinjured dueto ultraviolet light
fromthebulb whileajamisbeing cleared with the
lighton.” Moreover, hefound that “the safety
procedure disputed here makesno significant
provisionfor theabatement of highintengity light
or thermal exposurepossibly resultingfroman
employeeclearing ajamwith hiseyesaverted and
the OCR hood open.”

Arhbitrator Remington further relied uponthe
recommendationsof the Postal Service's
occupational medicine consultant whose* expertise
wasnot challenged by theunion.” Following his
observation of employeesoperating the FSM/
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OCR 881 mail sorter at the St. Paul facility in
December of 1998, thismedical doctor sent a
memorandum to the head of occupational safety at
the St. Paul Post OfficeMedical Unit which stated
severa recommendations. Theseincluded that
whenever OCRsarebeing cleared of mail, the
lightsshould beturned off beforetheareais
opened; safety glasseswith sdeshiddsand UV
protection should be used whenever clearing mail
that involvesthelighting and optical character
reading mechanism; and thelightsshould be
directly shielded from employees so that thedirect
escapeof light isprevented. A second
memorandum by thisofficial on January 27,1999
stated that he had modified hisopinion after
speaking with adoctor at the OSRM Sylvania
Research and Devel opment Department. Hesaid
that hebelieved*‘therisksaremuchless.””
However, hestressed that “[c]learly | think this
represents minimal hazard, but |

think the precautionswe put in placeare still
appropriate. .. [and] ... [i]f onegetsvery close
tothelight for prolonged periodsof time, thistill
could be somewhat of aproblem but | think the
present operation iscertainly within acceptable
limitswith therecommendationswe placed inthe
past.” Thearbitrator noted that the consultant
reiterated thispositionin histestimony at the
hearing. Hesaid he agreed with the reasoning of
the occupationa medicineconsultant that ““[w]hile
therisk of injury from OCR light emissionsis
admittedly minimal, therewoul d appear to be
insufficient justificationtoignorethat risk when
smpledternativesto abateit areavailable.”
Moreover, thearbitrator said that “it isinexplicable
that the Employer perssted iningtituting anew
procedurefor clearingjamswithout at least having
an On-the-Job Safety Review/Anaysis’ and
without making a“good faith effort toresolvethis
matter through the Joint Safety & Health
Committee process.”

Accordingly, thearbitrator found that the
Postal Serviceviolated the National Agreement
when local management ingtituted anew
procedurefor clearing jamson an FMS/OCR on
September 8, 1999. (AIRS#34978 - USPS
#198C-11-C 99271887; 11/23/2000)

Contracted Body/Fender Work
Congtituted Unsafe Condition

ThePostal Serviceviolated the National
Agreement by alowing motor vehiclebody and
fender work to be performed by asubcontractor
which resulted in unsafe conditions, Arbitrator
Gudenberg ruled. Heordered that the Postal
Service ceaseand desist from having work
performed by this subcontractor which doesnot
meet the safety requirementsdefinedinthe
Nationa Agreement.

Thiscasearoseinthe Albany, New York
postal facility after the Postal Service
subcontracted vehiclerepair work to an outside
body shop. Theunionfiled agrievanceasserting
that the subcontracting of critical body work was
not properly performed and asaresult, the safety
of driverswasjeopardized. It requested that the
work which was subcontracted bereturned to the
bargai ning unit and bargai ning unit employeesbe
compensated for al hoursthe outside contractor
spentinrepairingthevehicle. Atthehearing, the
union presented avideotape of avehicleaswell as
testimony of two employees, aL evel 6 Mechanic
andalLevel 7 Body and Fender Repairman.
Thesewitnesses said that the vehiclehad many
defectsafter being repaired by asubcontractor
and these defectsincluded rivetsthat were not
properly tightened, postal logo stripesthat had
bubbled, use of improper fasteners, aswell as
other defects. A Form 1767 wascompleted by a
steward whichindicated that thework performed
by the contractor wasimproper. Inaddition, the
unionintroduced into evidenceavehicle
mai ntenancework order showing that anumber of
repairshad been madeto thevehicleby
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employeesfrom thevehiclemaintenancefacility
after it had been repaired by the subcontractor.
Moreover, the union presented an extract of the
LLV Body Service Manud into evidencethat
explained the proper proceduresfor repairing
vehicleslikethe one upon which work had been
done by asubcontractor. The Service presented
no testimony to contradict the union’sevidence.
Arbitrator Gudenberg found that theunion did
not specificaly claim that management failedto
givedueconsderationtothefactorsset outin
Article32.1.A whenit subcontracted out the
vehiclerepair work. Inaddition, hefound that
therewasno evidenceintroduced which
supported such acontention. Instead, hesaid,
theunion’sgrievancereated to aviolation of
safety provisonsintheNationa Agreement which
arecontainedinArticle 14. Thearbitrator then
concluded “[t]he evidence, which wasunrefuted,
did establish serious safety questions’ and “[t]he
validity of these safety mattersmust be credited to
the Union since no other explanation was
presented nor wasthe Union’stestimony refuted.”
Hedetermined, therefore, that “[t|heUnion’'s
safety concernsasdefined by the provisionsof
Article14 aremeritorious.” Hea sofound that
sincetherewasno evidencethat the Postal
Servicefailedto comply with Article 32 or of the
number of hoursof work performed by the
subcontractor, an award of compensation to
bargaining unit memberswas not appropriate.
However, hedirected that the Postal Service
ensurecompliancewith Article14inthe
performance of work. (AIRS#34952 - USPS
#B98V-4B-C 99245644; 12/11/2000)

Stopping I ngtallation-Wide
Safety M eetings Violated NA

ThePostal Service' sdiscontinuation of the
practice of conducting quarterly local Joint L abor-
Management Safety and Health Committee
meetingson aningallation-wide basiswith
representativesfrom management and al Olympia,

Washington areaunionsviolated the National
Agreement, Arbitrator Hauck ruled. He ordered
that the Service hold loca Joint Safety and Health
Committeemeetingson aningadlation-widebass
(plant, main offices, stations, etc.) with
representativesfromal unionsinvited to
participate.

Thiscasearosein Olympia, Washingtonwhen
local management first informed thelocal unionon
November 26, 1999 that the Plant and Customer
Servicessectionsof the OlympiaPost Officemust
conduct separate Safety and Health Committee
meetings. It stated specifically that the Olympia
P& DF and the Olympia Post Office are separate
unitsand each will conduct their own meeting.
Over the course of several months, management
and the union exchanged correspondence
concerning their different opinionsincludingthe
definition of afacility andingtalation. Theparties
aso mutudly agreed totimelimit extensonsfor
filingaStep 1 grievanceuntil March 10, 2000 at
whichtimethe Step 1 meeting occurred.

Thearbitrator determined that the past
practicein Olympiaasfar back as 1982 wasfor
the Joint L abor-M anagement Safety and Hedlth
Committeetoinclude representativesfrom
management and all unions. A June1999
Memorandum of Understanding betweenthe
partiesstated that “‘ [t]hose of ficesthat havean
established program (e.g. Safety Captain) inwhich
they regularly meet with union representativesto
discuss safety concernsare not required to modify
their existing program to conform to these
procedures.”” AnAugust 4, 1999 joint document
of the partiesread that “‘ the provisonsof existing
contractual obligationsshouldinnoway be
changed or altered. . . [and] . .. Therefore, there
would be no changeto the existing membership of
thejoint Safety and Health Committee.”” In
addition, thisdocument stated that “‘ such pre-
established, active safety programsare not subject
to modification and may continueto operate
effectively under thisagreement.”” Thearbitrator
further indicated that the partiesagreethat the
scopeof “ingtalation” did not changefor
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contractual purposeswith restructuring.

Theunion argued that the Postal Service
violated Articles 14.4, 19, 38.2.B and other
sectionsof the National Agreement aswell asthe
Guidelinesfor Local Joint Labor-Management
Safety and Health Committees, EL-809, March
1982. Theunion stated that the Olympia
installation consstsof aProcessingand
Digtribution Facility (P& DF), amain office,
Westside Station, Lacey Station and Tumwater
Station, whichwered | within 15 minutes of each
other. It asserted that the parties’ past practiceis
that the Joint L abor-M anagement Safety and
Health Committee has consisted of representatives
from management, the APWU, theNALC, the
NPMHU, andthe NRLCA from at least February
1982. Theunion contended that several
agreements between the partieshaveindicated
that therewould be no changeto theexisting
membership of the Joint Safety and Health
Committees. Inaddition, it maintained that Article
38.2.B further indicatesthat the parties
understandingisthat thetermingtallation
encompassesafacility or facilitiesthat are
consdered onefor hiring, negotiatingal.ocd
Memorandum of Understanding, Joint Safety and
Health Committeesand other contractual matters.
Theunion contended that the Service unilaterally
ceased to hold Joint Local Safety and Health
meetingswith dl unionsrepresentedin violation of
theNationa Agreement.

The Postal Servicecountered first of al that
thegrievancewasnot proceduraly arbitrablesince
theunionfalledtofilethegrievanceinatimely
fashion. Itasoarguedthatitsdecisontohold
separate Safety and Health Committee meetings,
oneat the P& DF and one at the Olympia Post
Office, did not violatethe Agreement sinceArticle
14.4 requiresthat at each postal ingtallation having
50 or more employees, aJoint L abor-
Management Safety and Health Committeewill be
established. ThePostal Service contended that in
1997, anew Olympia P& DF was created and
both the Olympia P& DF and the Olympia Post
Officehave 50 or moreemployees. The Service

further contended that the Postal Employee Safety
Enhancement Act requiresit to conduct separate
Safety and Health Committee meetingsand the
exclusion of the other unionsfromthe Safety and
Health Committee meeting at the OlympiaP& DF
isdueto the absences of membersof those
bargaining unitsinthat facility. Moreover,
management asserted that itscurrent practicein
Olympiaissmilar tothat in Seettle, Washington.

First of dl, thearbitrator considered the
Service' sargument that the grievancewas
inarbitrable. Hefound that therewasno evidence
that the grievance was not substantively arbitrable.
Then addressing theissue of procedura
arbitrability, Arbitrator Hauck stressed that the
U.S. Supreme Court inthe SteelworkersTrilogy
of 1960 “ directed that doubts concerning the
arbitrability of adispute should beresolvedin
favor of arbitration.” Hethenfound that theunion
filed thegrievancewithin mutual ly agreed extended
timelimitsfor filing at Step 1, and the union did not
reasonably learn that the Agreement wasviolated
until the Postal Servicerefused to continue
ongoing discussionsof thedispute. Accordingly,
hefound that the matter wasarbitrable.

Turning to the merits, Arbitrator Hauck
indicated that the contract termsinstalation and
facility inrelationto Articles14.4 and 38.2.B, and
the EL-809 may be ambiguousbut the parties
past practice may establish the meaning of the
ambiguousterms. Hefound that the past practice
existing sinceat least February 1982 wasto have
one Joint Labor-Management Safety and Health
Committeewithrepresentativesfromdl Olympia
unionsand management, and inaddition, it
included having ingalation-wide meetingswhich
did not change until two yearsafter the P& DC
wasopened. Thearbitrator also noted that
“[b]ecausethe evolving guidefollowed by
arbitratorsin mattersof thistypeistoresolve
doubt against the party proposing to changethe
constructive meaning and interpretation of
ambiguousterms, such asingtallation, the
Arbitrator must resolve existing doubt regarding
thisparticular portion of the parties’ dispute
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against the Service.” Hefurther indicated that he
would not rely onthe practicein Seattleas
affectingthe Olympiapostd facility. Hethusruled
that “in Olympia, Washingtontheterminstallation
means, as described by the Union, the combined
Olympia P& DF and OlympiaPost Officefor
purposes of the Joint L abor-M anagement Safety
and Health Committee established pursuant to
Article14.4 and EL-809.”

Moreover, Arbitrator Hauck rejected the
Postal Service'scontentionthat it could not
consder evidenceincluding theMOU signed by
the partieson June 8 & 9, 1999 and the document
developed by the APWU and USPS on August 4,
1999, sinceit wasnew evidencewhichwasnot
introduced until just beforethe arbitration hearing.
Heindicated that “ new evidence which comesto
light after the grievance has been processed but
beforethe hearing should ordinarily be admitted,
provided the other party is protected from
surprise.” Hefound that sincethe Servicesigned
theJune8 & 9, 1999 MOU and the August 4,
1999 joint document, the Postal Servicewas not
surprised or prevented from reviewing or
responding to thisnew evidence. Thearbitrator
determined that sincethe MOU and Joint
Document wereexecuted very closeintimetothe
grievance, hefound that these documentswere
relevant to the union’s contentionsand helped
establishthat theformer Joint L abor-Management
Committee should be continued. Hethusruled
that “ the continued practice of holdingsingle,
rather than two (2) separate, Quarterly Joint
L abor-Management Safety and Health Committee
meetingsin Olympiaisin conformancewith Article
19 and other portionsof the National Agreement.”
In addition, thearbitrator said that therewasno
support for the Postal Service'sclamthat the
changeto two separate Joint L abor-M anagement
Safety and Health Committeeswasan OSHA
requirement. (AIRS#35443 - USPSHE98C-4E-
C 00120252; 4/12/2001)

Dust from M achine Cleaning
Constituted Safety Violation

ThePostal Serviceviolated the National
Agreement by failingto provideasafeand
nonhazardousworkplace dueto themannerin
whichit dedlt with dust generated by maintenance
proceduresused to clean mail processing
equipment, Arbitrator Vaughnruled. Inreaching
thisdecisonwhich affectsthe Raeigh, North
CarolinaP&DC, thearbitrator indicated that this
caseinvolvesaconditionwhich should be
explored at thenational leve “ sncemany facilities
nationwide usethese machinesand sinceeffective
solutionsto thisnationa problemwoul d benefit
from thekind of attention and resourcesnational
handling can bringto bear.”

Astotheremedy inthiscase, thearbitrator
ordered that the Postal Service ceaseand desist
fromusing compressed air in excessof 30 psi to
cleanthe OCR, BCSand DBCSmachinesat the
facility; provideworking vacuum cleanerstodl
technicianscleaning such machines; direct and
monitor techniciansto ensure maximum use of
vacuumsand minimum use of compressed air and
providetechnicianswith sufficient timeto utilize
such cleaning techniques;, cleanfloors, traysand
other accessible, non-vertical surfacesin proximity
to the machines on the same or morefrequent
bas sthan the machines; develop amechanismto
clean other surfacesin proximity to themachines
which accumulatedust onaperiodic basis,
provide dust masksto employeesand warn
employeesin advance of cleaning and not require
employeesto reenter work areaswhilelevelsof
dust hazardousto health and/or safety remain. In
addition, Arbitrator Vaughn directed that
management makediligent effortsto dleviatethe
problemsof dust aggravated by cleaning, report to
theunion at least quarterly astoitsefforts, and
respond promptly and substantively to union
complaintsandinquiriesonthisissue, inwriting, if
requested.

ThiscasearoseintheRaleighP&DCasa
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result of dust from cleaning of mail processing
equipment. Thecleaning processat thefacility is
supposed to be completed onceaday andis
supposed toinclude vacuuming dirt and debris
frommachines. However, testimony of severd
employeesindicated that vacuumingisonly used
infrequently. Instead the machinesare cleaned by
using ahosewith compressed air and blowing the
dust, dirt, and debrisout of the machine. Before
cleaningisconducted, mail processing employees
are supposed to be warned and removed from the
area. However, testimony of several employees
indicated that they are not warned or removed
from the areaor must report back to thework
areaimmediatdy after cleaningwhilealarge
concentration of dustisintheair. Theair pressure
of the blowing equipment issupposedto beat a
low pressureof 30 psi, but the union produced
evidencethat cleaning occursat much higher
pressures. 1N 1997, theunionfiled agrievance
challenging the methods used to clean automated
equi pment that produced an excessive amount of
dust and debris. The Postal Service settled the
grievance by stating that money had been
requested for filter systemsfor OCR and BCS
equipment and that the systemswould run through
themachinesand for themost part would eliminate
dustintheair. However, nofiltration systemwas
purchased or installedintheRaleigh P& DC. A
HR Specidist testified that afilter sysemwas
never purchased becausethe sametypeof system
did not work inanother facility. Inaddition, she
stated that the agreement did not comply with
budget procedures. Thegrievanceinthiscase
wasinitiated on March 3, 2000 aleging that Mall
Processorsand ETswereexposed to high
concentrations of noiseand dirt asaresult of
BCS, DBCSand OCR maintenancecleaning. It
asserted that itsrequestsfor correction of this
condition since 1996 had not resulted inany
changes.

AnET 9, whoworked in the past asan MPE
6and 7, testified that cleaning isperformed
between 7:00 AM and 3:30 PM with DBCSs
being cleaned anytime during thetour and OCRs

being cleaned beforenoon. Heindicated that he
cannot removeall thedirt and dust from machinery
with avacuum and therefore, it isnecessary to use
blowing equipment. Hestated that dust particles
remainintheair for along timeafter thecleaning
hasbeenfinished. Hetestified that thoughtheair
pressure of the equipment is supposed to be 30
psi, there are no gaugesto determinethe pressure.
In addition, hesaid that the pressureisdetermined
by theregulator to which al automation equipment
isattached and therefore more than 30 psi of
pressureisused. Thisemployeefurther stated that
signswarning employeesof cleaningareplacedin
theaide. Another ET testified that compressed
air isused to cleanthemachines, it runsoff the
house compressor and regulator, andis
approximately 50to 60 psi. Heindicated that he
has been instructed to vacuum out the machines
only sometimesbut that heinformsemployees
when heisgoingto clean the equipment. Hesaid
that when compressed air isused, mail, paper, and
dust are blown out and afterwardslight dust and
dirtremainsinthear.

A Mail Processor, whoworkson aBCS,
testified that dl cleaningisperformed by blowing
and when blowing hasbeen performed, dust
accumulatesintheair and later fallsfromtheair
and settleson people. Inaddition, hetestified
that dust congtantly fallsoff of overhead
equipment. Hestated also that employeesare
instructed to return to themachinesimmediately
after blowingisperformed. Hesaid that he has
suffered from somerespiratory problemsand
othershaveaswell. Another Mail Processor, who
isasteward and onthe Raleigh P& DC Safety
Committee, testified that employeesreturntothe
work areafollowing cleaningwhiledustistill in
theair. Sheindicated that in 1996, the problem of
dust became amajor one and employees
complained of headachesand runny noses. In
addition, the steward testified that employeeshave
experienced such other adverse hedlth effectsas
snusconditionsand runny eyes, and shehas
suffered from throat problemsand nosebleeds.
She stated that shefiled severa reportsof an
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unsafe condition dueto the dust from 1996
through March 2000, and theissuewasraised in
Safety Committee meetingsin February 2000,
January 2001, and March 2001. A Mailhandler,
who isaSafety Captain and amember of the
Safety Committee, testified that the dust hangsin
theair, iskicked up fromthefloor, andisblown
into adjacent areas, and that the union hasraised
theissuewith the Postal Serviceonaquarterly
basis. Also, the Safety Committee Minutesreflect
that on February 22, 2000 and March 27, 2000,
theunionraised theissue of dust ontheworkroom
floor asaresult of the blowing process. An
additiona employee, whoworksasaMail
Processor, testified that whileworking at the Bar
Code Sorter she experienced breathing problems,
nasal congestion and nosebleed problems.

Thearbitrator indicated that he conducted a
stevigt of theareaduring the hearing, and found
that dust flew everywhereand wasintheair and
on many surfaceswhen machineswere cleaned by
using air nozzles. Henoted that thetechniciandid
not use avacuum and therewasno vacuumin
sight. A labor educator from astate Safety and
Health Project tetified that under the
Occupational Safety and Health Act, the Postal
Servicehasagenera duty to provideemployees
with aplace of employment that isfreefrom
recognized hazards. Sheindicated that the Postal
Serviceissubject to OSHA requirements. This
witnesstestified further that therewereno
recommended exposurelimitsfor paper dust, and
that permissibleexposurelimitsfor other dust
addressed in OSHA standards are not sufficient to
protect employeesfrom ahazard.

The Supervisor of Maintenance Operations
said that though maintenanceemployeesare
required to vacuum beforeusing blowing
equi pment, vacuuming al one cannot completely
cleanthemachinery. Hetestified that employees
arerequiredtoleavethework areabefore
blowing isconducted, and that Signsare supposed
to beplacedintheaidesbefore cleaning isstarted.
However, he conceded that he did not know how
soon after the cleaning processemployeesare

required toreturn to their work areas. The SMO
testified that the building wherethe equipment is
located isequipped with anair filtration system.
Heclamedthat cleaningisperformed at 30 ps,
but admitted that house air pressureis90to 100
psi. AnHR Specialist testified that test results
indicatethat thefacility fallswithin OSHA limits
with regard to dust and noise, and that adequate
measures have been takento reducethelevel of
dustinthefacility.

Theunion argued that the Postal Service's
effortsto resolvethe problem of dust from
cleaning automeation equipment have been
insufficient and incongstent. Inaddition, it
asserted that management failed to comply withits
commitment asaresult of resolution of aprior
grievanceto purchaseandingtall filtration systems
at thislocation. Theunion argued that the Postal
Servicefailed to maintain aproper air pressure of
30 ps in cleaning the equipment, and did not
removeemployeesfromtheareaduring cleaning.
It asserted that the testing the Postal Service
conducted did not establish that therewasa
hazard, sincethe permissibleexposurelimitsset by
OSHA arenot sufficient to protect employees
from respiratory problemsand occupational
asthmathat may devel op from shorter, but more
concentrated exposureto dust. Inaddition, it
mai ntai ned that though the Postal Service
obligated itsalf to only request funding for a
filtration syslemin the prior grievance settlement,
the Postal Service could haveresolvedthe
probleminthiscaseby ingtaling suchasystemor
andternative systemif theformer systemwasnot
feasible. It requested that the Service berequired
toinstall such asystem asaremedy for the
violation.

The Postal Service countered that the
evidence establishesthat it hastaken adequate
measuresto prevent an unsafe condition. It cited
itswitnesses' testimony that they haveinstructed
both mai ntenance employeesto usevacuums
beforeair pressureto clean themachinesand mall
processorsto leavetheareabeforecleaningis
performed. Moreover, the Service maintained that
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testing that it has conducted showsthat thelevels
of dust and noiseasaresult of cleaning were
permissible under OSHA standards. It therefore
contendsthat the union hasfailed to show that
such conditionshave created asafety hazard. In
addition, it asserted that the union did not show
that employeeshavefiled clamsfor onthejob
injuriesasaresult of noise or dust exposure. It
maintained that thefacility hasafacility-wideair
filtration system and thereforean additional
filtration systemisunnecessary. The Service
further argued that the remedy from the 1997
grievance should not be considered because
referenceto thisresolution wasnot madeinthe
current grievance and thereforeisanew argument.

Arbitrator Vaughnindicated that under Article
14 and the Employee and L abor Relations
Manud, the Postal Servicehasanobligationto
provide safeworking conditionsfor itsemployees
and must maintain theworkplaceinasafeand
sanitary condition, including occupational heglth
and environmental conditions. Inaddition, he
stressed, the Service hasan obligation under the
genera duty clause of the Occupational Safety and
Health Act to provide employeeswith asafe
workplace. Thearbitrator then ruled that the
Postal Serviceviolated both Article14 andits
genera duty to provide employeeswith asafeand
nonhazardousworkplace by themanner inwhichit
dealt with dust generated by cleaning mail
processing machines. Heindicated, however, that
therewasinsufficient evidenceto establisha
contractua violation dueto management’s
measuresto handle noise generated by the
cleaning proceduressince no sgnificant evidence
wasoffered to provethisissue.

Inreaching hisdecision, thearbitrator noted
that the Postal Service had recognized for years
that the dust from cleaning the machinery created
unsafeconditionsasindicated by itsprior
resolution of 21996 grievance. Hefurther found
that the current building filtration system doesnot
effectively cleantheair. Inaddition, hedetermined
that mai ntenance employeesdid not usevacuums
to clean the equipment but rather used air pressure

whichresultedinblowndirt and dust being
catapulted into theair and remaining therefor
sometime. Thearbitrator found further that
employeesaredirected to resumework
immediately after cleaningiscompleted and
therefore are exposed to dirt and dust which
remainsfloatingintheair. “...[W]arning
employeesthat the cleaningisabout to occur and
temporarily relocating them to an adjacent work
areadoesnot prevent them from becoming
exposed, onadaily basis, to high concentrations
of theairborne particulate matter,” thearbitrator
reasoned. “Better notice, abroader evacuation
and atimeof return which recognizesthe dust
hangingintheair areneeded,” accordingto
Arbitrator Vaughn. Inaddition, hestressed that
“[a]lny delay can be shortened by using cleaning
regimenswhichleavelessdustintheair.”
Tofurther support hisdecision, thearbitrator
foundthat air pressureusedin cleaningisnot being
doneat 30 psi but at higher levels. Moreover, he
indicated that evenif onewereto accept the
Postal Service' sargument that dust levelswere
within permissiblelimits, the Postal Servicehasa
genera duty both under the ELM and thegenera
duty clause of the Occupational Safety and Health
Actto provideasafeworkplace. Hefound that
evidence showing that employeeshave suffered
adverse health consequencesfrom exposureto
dirt and dust issufficient to provethat the Postal
Service hasnot met thisduty. Moreover, he
stressed that the Nationa Agreement doesnot
state merely that the Postal Servicemust providea
workplacethat complieswith OSHA levelsbut
rather restatesthe general duty clause of OSHA.
“Had the Postal Servicedesired to absolveitself
fromagenera obligation to provideasafework
place, it could have proposed that it would be
obligated to provideawork place which meets
minimum OSHA requirements,” thearbitrator
said. “Itdid not do so, and, therefore, itsreliance
onthe*Industrid HygieneReport, reflecting that
itsdust levelswerewithin applicable OSHA limits
doesnot insulateit fromitsobligation under the
Agreement,” hecontinued. “Where, ashere, there
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issufficient proof that peak period exposure
produces objective, substantial adverse health and
safety impact, proof that |onger term exposureis
within OSHA PEL sisnot sufficient,” Arbitrator
Vaughn stressed.

Moreover, according to thearbitrator, the
evidence showsthat these conditionshave existed
for yearsand the Postal Servicedid not address
them despite being confronted with the problemin
Safety Committee M eetingsand by aprior
grievance. “...[T]heEmployer voluntarily
entered into asettlement agreement in resol ution of
the 1997 grievance and then proceeded to neglect
both theterms of that agreement and any other
diligent effortsto actualy correct theproblem,” the
arbitrator said. “Therecord persuades methat
L ocal management hasbeen, put most charitably,
neglectful of itsobligationsto theemployeesand,
more probably, disngenuousinitsstated
commitment to solvingthisproblem. .. [and] ...
[t]hismust cease,” he stressed.

However, Arbitrator Vaughn declined to order
installation of afiltration syssemdueto prior
reportsthat it wasnot effectiveand his
observation that afilter systemwould not prevent
substantial exposureif the Postdl Service
continued to usehigh pressureair to clean
unvacuumed machinesand left floor, trays, and
surfacesuncleaned. (AIRS#35681 - USPS
#D98C-1D-C 00109382; 5/7/2001)

Changesin Safety Policy
Violated NA

ThePostal Service'sunilatera changeinits
safety policy violated the Nationa Agreement,
Arbitrator Croninruled. Heordered that the
Service ceaseand desist from such unilatera
action; promptly rescind thetwo unilateral changes
inthe safety program; and afford theunion an
opportunity to bargain, i.e. to meet and confer or
discussthe substance, implementation, and effect
of any such safety policy changesthat significantly
affect or haveasubstantia impact ontheterms

and conditions of employment of theemployees
involved.

Thiscasearose at the Denver, Colorado
BMC. OnMarch 2, 1995, the plant manager
issued anoticethat advised employeesof the
importanceof notifying their supervisor or
manager immediately when ajob related accident/
incident occurs. Inaddition, the notice stated that
inthefuture, when any employeefailsto
immediately report ajobrelated accident/injury ...
theemployee’'sclaim for compensation benefits
may be controverted and correctivedisciplinary
actionfor not complyingwiththiswrittendirective
may also betaken. Theunionthereafter fileda
grievanceand an unfair labor practice chargewith
theNational Labor Relations Board.

Theunion contended that the Service'snotice
made changesinitssafety policy that directly
affect wages, hoursand other termsand
conditionsof employment. It pointedtothe
provison’schangeinthetimewithinwhichinjuries
areto bereported, itsindication that thefallureto
immediately report an accident/injury may resultin
aclamfor compensation benefitsbeing
controverted, and that correctivedisciplinary
actionmay betakenfor falingtoimmediately
report an accident/injury. Theunionargued that
the Postal Servicewasrequired to bargainingood
fathregarding the safety policy changes, citing
Article5. Moreover, it cited provisionsof the
ELM including Section 542.112 and 544.212 that
indicatethat aCA-1 beprovided withintwo
working days but not morethan 30 daysfollowing
aninjury.

The Service maintained that its 3/2/95 notice
wassmply arestatement of itsexisting safety
policy and did not congtitute achange. To support
itsargument, it relied on provisionsof asafety
policy statement i ssued 9/8/92 that required that
employeesreport accidentsto their supervisors
immediately, regardlessof the seriousnessof the
accidents, and that failing to observe safework
practicesand instructionsmay resultin corrective
actionuptoandincluding discharge. Moreover,
management cited ELM Section 814 which
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indicatesthat itistheresponsbility of al
employeestoimmediately report any accident or
injury inwhichthey areinvolvedtotheir
SUPErVIsors.

Thearbitrator indicated that theinitia inquiry is
whether or not the 3/2/95 noticeisamere
restatement of theexisting policy or whether it
containschangesinthat policy. Hedetermined
that therequirement toimmediately informa
supervisor when ajob-related injury occursisnot
new or different from the safety policy that had
beenissuedin1992. Inaddition, heindicated that
under ELM Section 814.2, anemployeeis
required toimmediately report any accident or
injury totheir supervisor. Arbitrator Cronin
concluded, however, that thepolicy provisionsthat
prescribethat inthefuture, anemployee’'sclaim
for compensation benefitsmay be controverted
when hefailstoimmediately report ajob-related
injury and that correctivedisciplinary action may
betaken for not complying withthe policy were
changed provisions. Hedid not agreewiththe
Service' sargument that these provisionswerenot
achangebased on prior policy that indicated that
failing to observe safework practicesand
instructionsmay result in appropriate corrective
action being taken. Thearbitrator stressed that
theseprovisionsrelateto the manner inwhich
employeesare expected to perform their work
tasksand not to possibledisciplinary actionfor
fallingtoreport ajobinjury immediately asset out
inthe 1995 policy. Hethen concluded that the
Postal Servicewasrequired to bargain about such
changesin accordancewith the Nationa
Agreement and Section 8(d) of theNational
Labor RelationsAct. Since management did not
bargain with the union over these changes, the
arbitrator determined that aviolation of the
National Agreement existedinthiscase. (AIRS
#36533 - USPS#E90C-1E-C 95045567; 10/31/
2001)

Suspensionsfor Violating
Safety Rule are Set Aside

ThePostal Servicelackedjust causefor
placing an employee on three emergency
suspensionsand a 14-day suspensionfor violating
asafety ruleregarding thewearing of gloveswhile
working on an AFSM 100 machine, according to
aruling by Arbitrator Thomas. Thearbitrator
sustained thegrievanceand ordered that dl
referencesto these actionsbe expunged fromthe
grievant’spersonnd file.

Thegrievant, aFlat Sorting Machine Operator
at theMorganfacility inNew York City, worked
on Flat Sorting Machines881 and 1000 and asa
relief employeeonthe AFSM 100 machine. On
three occas ons between January 14 and February
6, 2001, he was placed on emergency
suspensionsfor working onthe AFSM 100
machinewithwork gloves. Thereafter, on
February 28, 2001, hewasissued a 14-day
suspension for committing an unsafe act by
wearing gloveswhileworking onthe AFSM 100
machine. The Supervisor of Digtribution
Operationstestified that the grievant was observed
wearing cloth-type gloveson January 14, 2001.
Heasserted that the grievant could suffer aninjury
if hishand was sucked into themachineand
therefore, heinformed thegrievant totakehis
glovesoff. Hetestified that thegrievant refused
and he placed him on an emergency suspension.
On February 6, 2001, the grievant was observed
wearing the sametypeof clothgloveswhile
working onthe AFSM 100. Whenthegrievant
wasinformed to stop wearing thegloves, the
grievant told the SDO that he was going to work
with hisgloveson. Hethenwasplaced onan
emergency suspension. Thiswitnessconceded
that the report that hewrote on the January 14,
2001 incident did not statethat the grievant
refused to takehisglovesoff. Hesaid that hewas
not sureif thegrievant gave himaForm 1767
complaining of asafety and healthhazard. A
Safety Specidist for thefacility testified that on
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January 31, 2001, the grievant was observed
wearing canvasgloves, wasinformed by his
supervisor to stop wearing thegloves, and
continued loading themachinewith hisgloveson.
Hesaid that he explained to thegrievant why the
glovesaredangerousand thegrievant indicated
that he had experienced some paper cutsthereby
feeling adanger if gloveswerenot worn. He
conceded that employeesare now using latex
gloveswhileworking on the machinesbecause of
theanthrax hazard, but differentiated thistype of
glovefromthetypethegrievant waswearing
becauseit hasatight fit. The Safety Specialist
said, however, that thereisapotentia for ahazard
from any typeof glovewhen anemployeeis
clearingajamor reachinginto afeeder of the
machine. Hesaid hedid not recall receivinga
Form 1767 regarding wearing gloveswhile
working onthe AFSM 100 machine. He stressed
that the machine manufacturer recommendsthat
employeesnot wear gloveswhile operating the
AFSM 100 and there had been an experience
wherean employee’ shand had gotten caughtin
thefeeder part of themachinery. Inaddition,
another Supervisor of Distribution Operationswho
workedinthefacility in January 2001 testified that
he observed thegrievant wearing gloveswhile
working onthe AFSM machine on January 30,
1001. Hesaid that hetold the grievant that it was
ahazardto perform thework with gloveson, but
thegrievant said not wearing the gloveswould
damagehishands. Hethentold himto stop
working and placed him on an emergency
suspension. Inaddition, hetestified that the
grievant had not provided him withaForm 1767
regarding wearing gloveswhileworking onthe
AFSM 100.

A third Supervisor of Distribution Operations
testified that heissued thegrievant al4-day
suspension and was asked to issue the suspension
by the Manager of Distribution Operations. He
also acknowledged that beforeissuing the
suspension, hedid not conduct apredisciplinary
interview and wasgiven afactua report from
another management representative outlining the

need for thedisciplinary action. Thegrievant
testified that when heworked the AFSM 100
machinewithout gloves, hehad injured hishands
by getting paper cutsand cutsto hiscuticles.
Therefore, hedecided to wear glovesto protect
hishands. Healso testified that hewroteup a
Form 1767 concerning the safety hazards of not
wearing glovesand did not receive an answer. On
each occasion when management told himto take
off thegloves, hetold the supervisorsthat he had
to protect hishands and wasthen placed onan
emergency suspension. Heaso remindedthe
supervisorsthat he had giventhem aForm 1767
and had not received an answer.

The Postal Service contended that the grievant
violated theruleat thetimethat prohibited the
wearing of glovesat the AFSM 100 machineand
therefore, the grievances should bedenied. It
asserted that theseruleswerefor safety reasons
because serious potential injury could occur. In
addition, the Service maintained that each
emergency placement wasawarningtothe
grievant to not wear glovesand thereforeit could
properly issueadisciplinary suspension.

Theunion countered that the grievant did not
disobey adirect order to not work onthe
machinery with hisgloveson becausethe Postal
Serviceremoved the grievant from the equipment
after heexplained that he had to protect hishands.
Moreover, thegrievant filled out aForm 1767
about working the AFSM without glovesthat was
not answered by management. Inaddition, the
Servicedid not conduct apredisciplinary interview
of thegrievant beforeissuing the 14-day
suspension and the supervisor whoissued the
suspensionwasmerely following anorder of his
supervisor. It therefore requested that the grievant
be madewhole, haveall timethat hewasplaced
onan emergency placement restored, and al
records concerning the placement and 14-day
suspension expunged from hisrecords.

Thearbitrator observed that the Agreement
providesthat an employeemay bedisciplined for
falling to observe safety rulesand that Article 16.7
providesaprocess by which management may
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immediately placean employeein off duty status
without pay a sofor failing to observe safety rules.
However, shenoted that Article 14 providesthat it
ismanagement’srespons bility to ensurethat there
aresafeworking conditionsinall present and
futureingtallationsand to devel op asafeworking
force. Moreover, the Agreement providesthat if
anemployeebelievesheor sheisbeing required
towork under unsafe conditions, theemployee
may notify hisimmediatesupervisor “*whowill
immediately investigatethe condition and take
correctiveactionif necessary,”” according to the
arbitrator.

Arbitrator Thomasthen foundfirst of al that
thegrievant did not havethe opportunity to
disobey adirect order because after he explained
that hewaswearing gloves, the Postal Service
“amply removed himfromthemachineandtold
himtogohome.” Inaddition, shedetermined that
therewasno dispute that the grievant reasonably
fearedfor hissafety and he notified the Postal
Serviceof hissafety concernsinwriting. She
credited thegrievant’ stestimony aong with
testimony of asupervisor that shewasinthearea
when the grievnat wrote out aForm 1767 onthe
useof gloveson January 14, 2001. Thearbitrator
thus concluded that the grievant followed the
contractua procedurefor reporting unsafe
conditionsyet the Postal Servicedid not meet its
respons bility toinvestigatethecomplaint. In
addition, she said that an employeeisnot
obligated to comply with an order that threatens
hisor her health or safety. Also, shestressed,
“Article16.7 sauthorizationtoimmediately place
an employeeon emergency placement for failure
to observe safety rulesand regulations must be
reconciled with Article 14’ srequirement that the
employer will immediately investigatean
employee' scomplaint of unsafeconditionsand
takecorrectiveactionif necessary.” Thearbitrator
thus concluded that “[w]hen theemployer refuses
to consider whether itssafety rulesand regulations
arevaidinaparticular circumstance (asrequired
by Article 14), it smply cannot place an employee
on emergency placement for failuretofollow that

rule”

Arbitrator Thomasalso noted that the Postal
Servicehasfailed to explainwhy thegrievant
could not have been offered the alternative of
using latex gloves, which are now worn by
employeesusing thismachine. “Hadthe
investigation and ‘ corrective action’ been taken
pursuant to Article 14.2.a, such an dternative
could have beenraised,” accordingtothe
arbitrator.

Thearbitrator further found that the 14-day
suspension aso could not beupheld. She
indicated that the supervisor who issued the
suspension did not conduct apredisciplinary
interview or hisowninvestigation of thecharges
against thegrievant. Moreover, theindividua who
told the supervisor toissuethe suspension wasthe
sameindividua who concurredinthediscipline.
Therefore, shefound that the supervisor did not
make " anindependent decisionto issue[the
grievant] afourteen day suspension but, rather,
went through the motionsthat hewastoldto go
through.” “Thisprocedura error, dongwiththe
fact that [the supervisor] choseafourteen day
suspensionrather than alesser form of disciplineis
aufficient to sustain thegrievance,” accordingto
Arbitrator Thomas. (AIRS# 36927 - USPS
#A98C-4A-D 01101328, 01101337, 01101349,
A98C-1A-D 01124645; 1/16/2002)

Denial of Representation
on Federal Council Violated NA

ThePostal Serviceviolated the National
Agreement by denyingthe APWU/NALCa
representative onthe Field Federal Safety and
Health Council, Arbitrator Blochruled. He
ordered that management ceaseand desist from
excludingan APWU/NAL C representativefrom
membership ontheField Council.

Thiscasearosein Columbus, Ohiowhere
therewasaCentral Ohio Field Federa Safety and
Health Council and alocd Safety and Health
Committee composed of membersof the APWU,
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NALC, andtheMail Handlersunions. It also
arose under the 1981 National Agreement
negotiated betweenthe APWU, NALC and the
Postal Service. During 1981 and 1982, aletter
carrier representing the APWU and NALC onthe
local Safety and Health Committee served asa
liasontotheField Council. Inlate 1982 or early
1983, the Columbusregiona office of the Postal
Service appointed amember of theMail Handlers
Unionto serve asarepresentative onthe Field
Council. The APWU protested and argued that
the National Agreement that had been negotiated
between the APWU, NALC, and the Postal
Servicerequired representation by oneof the
APWU/NALC membersat the Field Council level
asprovidedinArticle 14, Section 9. It asserted
that thetermunionsasusedin Article 14 referred
only to unionscovered by the Nationa
Agreement. ThePostal Service countered that as
required by Article 14.9, onerepresentative of the
unions meant arepresentative of thethreeunions
includingtheMail Handlers. Management
maintained that whilethe Mail Handlersnegotiated
aseparate agreement in 1981, thelanguage as
originaly negotiated referred to thethreeunions
and had not been changed. Atthearbitration
hearing, theMail HandlersUnionrequested the
right tointervene.

Arbitrator Bloch found that therewereno
groundsby whichtheMail HandlersUnion’s

request for intervention should begranted. He
relied onthefact that theissueinthiscasearose
under an agreement covering only the APWU,
NALC, and the Postal Service. Hefurther
determined that the Agreement’sreferencetoa
representative of the unionsdoesnot mean unions
“other than theoneswho are party” tothe
Agreement. Thearbitrator stressed that the
Agreement “isclearly restricted to the APWU and
theNALC, asindicated by the Preambleto the
Agreement and Article 1 —Union Recognition,
which among other things, expresdy excludes
Mail Handlers.” Without “explicit reference’ to
theMail Handlers, therefore, thelanguage could
not have been referring tothat union. Since“the
L abor Agreement incorporatesrightsand
obligationsin Article 14, Section 9, that flow to
thepartiestotheagreement,” “[t]hat language
neither establishesrightsnor placesconstraintson
others, whose respectiverightsare determined by
their agreements,” according tothearbitrator.
SincetheMail Handlersunion negotiated itsown
agreement with the Postal Servicein 1981, he
said, theterm*®*unions” in Article 14, Section 9
did notincludethat union. Accordingly, Arbitrator
Blochruledthat * by excludingan APWU/NALC
representativefrom membershipontheField
Council, Management hasviol ated theterms of
Article14.9 of theNational Agreement.” (AIRS
#3269 - USPS#H1C-4F-C 15924; 7/5/84)

July 2002

Page 63



CBR

S& H National L eve Settlements

USPSMust Allow Entry
by Union Safety Experts

In aStep 4 settlement, the Postal Servicehas
agreed that itisobligated under Article23toalow
authorized representatives of theunion, including
safety and health expertswho arenot onthe
union’spayroll, to enter postal ingtalationsfor the
purposeof performing and engaging in officia
union dutiesand businessrelated to theNational
Agreement. It further acknowledgeditsobligation
under Article 14 of theNational Agreement to
provide safeworking conditionsinal present and
future postal installations. See pages 82-83.

Use of Radio Headsets
by Employees

Insaveral national level settlements, the Postal
Serviceand the APWU have agreed that the“ use
of radio headsetsis permissibleonly for
employeeswho perform dutieswhile seated and/
or stationary and only where use of aheadset will
not interferewith performance of dutiesor
congtitute asafety hazard.” Thesettlements
further statethat “[€]mployeeswill not be
permitted to wear or useradio headsets under
other conditions, including but not limited to: while
walking or driving; near moving machinery or
equipment; whileinvolvedinora business
communications, whilein contact with, or inview
of, the public; or wherethe headset interfereswith
personal protective equipment.” Seepages84-
86.

Union RepresentativesM ay
Participatein I ngpections

InaStep 4 settlement, the Postal Service has
agreed that Article 14 givesunion representatives
theright to participatein inspectionsconducted in
accordancewith Article4, Section 8. The
Settlement provided that “[t]heunion
representatives, obvioudy, havetheright to make
their own notesand draw their own conclusions
from theinspection and request the opportunity to
discussthemwith management.” Itindicated,
however, that “[t]hey may or may not beinvited to
aninternal management meeting to discussthe
resultsimmediately after theinspection.” See
pages 87-88.

Useof Mercury Vapor
Lighting

The Postal Serviceand APWU have agreed
that mercury vapor lighting used by the Postal
Servicemust comply with food and Drug
Administration Standard 21 CFR 1040.30. See
pages 89-90.
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ARTICLE 14
SAFETY AND HEALTH

Section 1. Responsibilities

It 1s the responsibility of management to provide safe
working conditions in all present and future installations and
to develop a safe working force. The Union will cooperate
with and assist management to live up to this responsibility.
The Employer will meet with the Union on a semiannual
basis and inform the Union of its automated systems
development programs. The Employer also agrees to give
appropriate consideration to human factors in the design and
development of automated systems. Human factors and
ergonomics of new automated systems are a proper subject
for discussion at the National Joint Labor-Management
Safety Committee.

Section 2. Cooperation

The Employer and the Union insist on the observance of safe
rules and safe procedures by employees and insist on
correction of unsafe conditions. Mechanization, vehicles and
vehicle equipment, and the work place must be maintained in
a safe and sanitary condition, including adequate
occupational health and environmental conditions. The
Employer shall make available at each installation the
appropriate forms to be used by employees in reporting
unsafe and unhealthful conditions. If an employee believes
he/she is being required to work under unsafe conditions,
such employees may:

(a) notify such employee’s supervisor who will
immediately investigate the condition and take
corrective action if necessary,

(b) notify such employee’s steward, if available, who
may discuss the alleged unsafe condition with such
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employee’s supervisor,

(c) file a grievance at Step 2 of the grievance procedure
within fourteen (14) days of notifying such
employee’s supervisor if no corrective action is taken
during the employee’s tour, and/or

(d) make a written reportto the Union representative from
the local Safety and Health Committee who may
discuss the report with such employee’s supervisor.

Upon written request of the employee involved in an
accident, a copy of the PS Form 1769 (Accident Report) will
be provided.

Any grievance filed in accordance with Section 2. (¢) above
which is not resolved at Step 2 may only be appealed to the
local Safety and Health Committee for discussion and
decision or may be appealed directly to arbitration within
21 days after receipt of the Employer’s Step 2 decision.
Any such appeal to the Safety and Health Committee must
be made within fifteen (15) days after receipt of the
Employer’s Step 2 decision unless the parties agree to extend
the time for appeal. The committee shall meet to discuss the
grievance at the next regularly scheduled Safety and Health
Committee meeting. Any grievance not resolved by the
committee may be appealed directly to arbitration within 21
days of the committee’s review. If appealed to the
regularly scheduled local Safety and Health Committee,
the parties representatives shall be prepared to present
the issue to the committee with their assessment and
resolution.

Any grievance which has as its subject a safety or health
issue directly affecting an employee(s) which is subsequent-
ly properly appealed to arbitration in accordance with the
provisions of Article 15 may be placed at the head of the
appropriate arbitration docket at the request of the Union.
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Section 3. Implementation

To assist in the positive implementation of the various
programs:

A. There shall be established at the Employer’s
Headquarters level a Joint Labor-Management Safety
Committee and a Joint Labor-Management Ergonomics
Committee. Representation on the Committees, to be
specifically determined by the Employer and the Union,
shall include one person from the Union and representatives
from appropriate Departments in the Postal Service. Not
later than 60 days following the effective date of this
National Agreement, designated representatives of the
Union and Management will meet for the purpose of
developing a comprehensive agenda which will include all
aspects of the Employer’s Safety Program and Ergonomics
Program. Subsequent to the development of this agenda,
priorities will be established and a tentative schedule will be
developed to msure full discussion of all topics. Meetings
may also be requested by either party for the specific purpose
of discussing additional topics of interest within the scope of
the Committees.

The responsibility of the Safety and the Ergonomics
Committees will be to evaluate and make recommendations
on all aspects of the Employer’s respective Safety and
Ergonomics Programs, to include program adequacy, field
implementation, studies for improving the work environment,
training, and unsafe conditions. To support this process the
Employer shall establish a fund of $500,000 within ninety
(90) days of the effective date of this Agreement. In January
2002 and 2003 the Employer will replenish the fund to its
original amount. The Fund shall be supervised by the Joint
National Labor-Management Safety Committee.
Disbursement of the funds for any expenditures shall be
authorized by the chairperson of the Committee.
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The Chairman will be designated by the Employer. The
Employer shall furnish the Union information relating to
injuries, illness and safety, including the morbidity and
mortality experience of employees. This report shall be in
form of reports furnished OSHA on a quarterly basis. The
Headquarters level Committee will meet quarterly and the
Employer and Union Representatives will exchange
proposed agenda items two weeks before the scheduled
meetings. If problems or items of significant, national nature
arise between scheduled quarterly meetings either party may
request a special meeting of the Committee. Either party will
have the right to be accompanied to any Committee meeting
by technical advisors.

B. There shall be established at the Employer’s Area
level, an Area Joint Labor-Management Safety Committee,
which will be scheduled to meet quarterly. The Employer
and Union Representatives will exchange proposed agenda
items two weeks before the scheduled meetings. If problems
or items of a significant Area nature arise between scheduled
quarterly meetings, either party may request a special
meeting of the Committee. Either party will have the right to
be accompanied to any Committee meeting by technical
advisors. Representation on the Commiittee shall include one
person from the Union and appropriate representatives from
the Postal Service Area Office. The Chairman will be
designated by the Employer.

C. The Employer will make Health Service available for
the treatment of job related injury or illness where it
determines they are needed. The Health Service will be
available from any of the following sources: U.S. Public
Health Service; other government or public medical sources
within the area; independent or private medical facilities or
services that can be contracted for; or in the event funds,
spaces and personnel are available for such purposes, they
may be staffed at the installation, The Employer will
promulgate appropriate regulations which comply with
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applicable regulations of the Office of Workers’
Compensation Programs, including employee choice of
health services.

D. The Employer will comply with Section 19 of the
Williams-Steiger Occupational Safety and Health Act.

Section 4. Local Safety Committee

At each postal installation having 50 or more employees, a
Joint Labor-Management Safety and Health Committee will
be established. In installations having fewer than 50
employees, installation heads are encouraged to establish
similar committees when requested by the Union. Where no
Safety and Health Committee exists, safety and health items
may be placed on the agenda and discussed at labor-
management meetings. There shall be equal representation
on the Committee between the Union and management. The
representation on the Committee to be specifically
determined by the Employer and the Union shall include one
person from the Union, except in installations with two or
more APWU crafts where up to two persons may be
designated by the Union, and appropriate management
representatives. The Chairman will be designated by the
Employer.

Itis recognized that under some circumstances, the presence
of an additional employee employed at the installation will
be useful to the local Safety and Health Committee because
of that employee’s special expertise or experience with the
agenda item being discussed. Under these circumstances,
which will not normally be applicable to most agenda items,
the employee may, at the request of the Union, be in
attendance only for the time necessary to discuss that item.
Payment for the actual time spent at such meetings by the
employee will be at the applicable straight-time rate,
providing the time spent is a part of the employee’s regular
workday.
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Section 5. Subjects for Discussion

Individual grievances may be made the subject of discussion
during local Safety and Health Committee meetings, in
accordance with Article 14, Section 2.

Section 6. Employee Participation

It is the intent of this program to insure broad exposure to
employees, to develop interest by active participation of
employees, to insure new ideas being presented to the
Committee and to make certain that employees in all areas of
an installation have an opportunity to be represented. At the
same time, it is recognized that for the program to be
effective, it is desirable to provide for a continuity in the
committee work from year to year. Therefore, except for the
Chairman and Secretary, the Committee members shall
serve three-year terms and shall at the discretion of the Union
be eligible to succeed themselves.

Section 7. Local Committee Meetings

The Safety and Health Committec shall meet at least
quarterly and at such other times as requested by a
Committee member and approved by the Chairman in order
to discuss significant problems or items. The meeting shall
be on official time. Each Committee member shall submit
agenda items to the Secretary at least three (3) days prior to
the meeting. A member of the Health Unit will be invited to
participate in the meeting of the Labor-Management Safety
and Health Committee when agenda item(s) relate to the
activities of the Health Unit.

Section 8. Local Committee Responsibilities
A. The Committee shall review the progress in accident

prevention and health at the installation; determine program
areas which should have increased emphasis; and it may
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investigate major accidents which result in disabling
mjuries. Items properly relating to employee safety and
health shall be considered appropriate discussion items.
Upon a timely request, information or records necessary for
the local Safety and Health Committee to investigate real or
potential safety and health issues will be made available to
the Commuttee.

In addition, the Committee shall promote the cause of
safety and health in the installation by:

.

Reviewing safety and health suggestions, safety
training records and reports of unsafe conditions or
practices.

Reviewing local safety and health rules.

Identifying employee unsafe work practices and
assisting in enforcing safety work rules.

Reviewing updated list of hazardous materials used
in the installation.

Identifying areas in which it is appropriate to require
the presence of an additional person while
maintenance work assignments are performed in
hazardous areas to ensure adequate safety precau-
tions.

Once such work assignments are identified, the
committee will develop an on-the-job safety review/
analysis (Form 1783) to document that an additional
person will be used to avoid or minimize identified
hazards.

The Committee shall at its discretion render reports to the
installation head and may at its discretion make
recommendations to the installation head for action on
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matters concerning safety and health. The installation head
shall within a reasonable period of time advise the
Committee that the recommended action has been taken or
advise the Headquarters Safety and Health Committee and
the President of the local Union as to why it has not. Any
member of the Committee may also submit a written report
to the Headquarters Safety and Health Committee in the

event the Committee’s recommendations are not implement-
ed.

Upon proper written request to the Chairman of the
Committee, on-the-spot inspection of particular troublesome
areas may be made by individual Committee members or a
Subcommittee or the Committee as a whole. Such request
shall not be unreasonably denied. When so approved, the
Committee members shall be on official time while making
such inspection.

The Union representatives from the local Safety and Health
Committee may participate on the annual inspection,
conducted by District safety and health services personne] in
the main facility of each Processing and Distribution Center,
Facility and BMC, provided that the Union represents
employees at the main facility of the Processing and
Distribution Center, Facility or BMC being inspected. In no
case shall there be more than one (1) Union representative on
such inspections except in 200 man-year facilities where up
to (2) union representatives may participate.

The Union representative from the local Safety and Health
Committee may participate on other inspections of the main
facility of each post office, Processing and Distribution
Center, Facility, BMC, or other installation with 100 or more
man years of employment in the regular work force, and of
an individual station or branch where the station or branch
has 100 or more man years of employment in the regular
work force, provided that the Union represents employees at
the main facility or station or branch and provided that the
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Union representative is domiciled at the main facility or
station or branch to be inspected. If the Union representative
to the local Safety and Health Committee is not domiciled at
the main facility or station or branch to be inspected and if the
Union represents employees at the main facility or station or
branch, at the Union’s option, a representative from the
Committee may participate on the inspection (at no
additional cost for the Employer) or the Union may designate
a representative domiciled at the main facility or station or
branch to be inspected to participate on the inspection. In no
case shall there be more than one (1) Union representative on
such inspections,

The Union representative from the local Safety and Health
Committee may participate on the annual inspection of each
installation with less than 100 man years of employment in
the regular work force, where such Committee exists in the
installation being mspected. In those installations that do not
have a Safety and Health Committee, the inspector shall
afford the opportunity for an APWU bargaining unit
employee from that installation to accompany him/her
during these inspections.

B. An appointed member of a local committee will
receive an orientation by the Employer which will include:

1. Responsibilities of the Committee and its members.
2. Basic elements of the Safety and Health Program.
3. Identification of hazards and unsafe practices.

4. Explanation of reports and statistics reviewed and
analyzed by the Committee.

C. Where an investigation board is appointed by a Vice-
President, Area Operations or a District Manager, Customer
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Services to investigate a fatal or serious industrial non-
criminal accident and/or injury, the Union at the installation
will be advised promptly. When requested by the Union, a
representative from the local Safety and Health Committee
will be permitted to accompany the board in its
investigation.

D. In installations where employees represented by the
Union accept, handle and/or transport hazardous materials,
the Employer will establish a program of promoting safety
awareness through communications and/or training, as
appropriate. Elements of such a program would include, but
not be limited to:

1. Informational postings, pamphlets or articles in Postal
and Area Bulletins.

2. Distribution of Publication 52 to employees whose
duties require acceptance of and handling hazardous
or perishable items.

3. On-the-job training of employees whose duties
require the handling and/or transportation of
hazardous or perishable items. This training will
include, but is not limited to, hazard identification;
proper handling of hazardous materials; personal
protective equipment availability and its use; cleanup
and disposal requirements for hazardous materials.

4. All mailbags containing any hazardous materials, as
defined in Publication 52, will be appropriately
identified so that the employee handling the mail is
aware that the mailbag contains one or more
hazardous material packages.

5. Personal protective equipment will be made available

to employees who are exposed to spills and breakage
of hazardous materials.
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Section 9. Field Federal Safety and Health Councils

In those cities where Field Federal Safety and Health
Councils exist, one representative of the Union who is on the
Local Safety and Health Committee in an independent postal
installation in that city and who serves as a member of such
Councils, will be permitted to attend the meetings. Such
employee will be excused from regularly assigned duties
without loss of pay. Employer authorized payment as
outlined above will be granted at the applicable straight time
rate, provided the time spent in such meetings is a part of the
employee’s regular work day.

(The preceding Article, Article 14, shall apply to
Transitional Employees)

ARTICLE 15
GRIEVANCE-ARBITRATION PROCEDURE

Section 1. Definition

A grievance is defined as a dispute, difference, disagreement
or complaint between the parties related to wages, hours, and
conditions of employment. A grievance shall include, but is
not limited to, the complaint of an employee or of the Union
which involves the interpretation, application of, or
compliance with the provisions of this Agreement or any
local Memorandum of Understanding not in conflict with
this Agreement.

Section 2. Grievance Procedure Steps
Step 1:

(a) Any employee who feels aggrieved must discuss the
grievance with the employee’s immediate supervisor within

90

July 2002

Page 75



Page 76

CBR

MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING
BETWEEN THE
UNITED STATES POSTAL SERVICE
AND THE
AMERICAN POSTAL WORKERS UNION. AFL-CIO

Re: Correction of Unsate Conditions

The Amerncan Postal Workers Union, AFL-CIO ("APWU") and the United States Paostal Service
("USPS") recognize the impartance of providing a safe ana healthful workplace for all postal
employees. The parties acknowledge the passage of the Postal Employee Satety Enhancement
Act ("PESEA") by Congress on September 29, 1998, and in concert with the provisions of
PESEA, the parties agree to implement its provisions in the Postal Service by taking the following
actions:

1. The parties encourage the resolution of unsate conditions at the lowest level in the
organization. in accordance with our current procedures, an empioyee or a union
representative may dentify and discuss an alleged unsafe condtion with their immediate
supervisor, who wili investigate and take corrective action if necessary and within their

authonty. \f unresaived, the issue will be recorded including all retevant facts and referred to
the parties’ designated representatives identified in Secuon 2 beiaw.

The local parties will designate a facility union and management representative at all plants,
bulk mail centers. airmail centers, the district main post office (which will aiso cover the
stations/branches), and vehicle maintenance facilities. These representatives will meeton a
regular pregetermined basis to review and attempt to resoive the referred safety and heaith
issues.

A. The management and union representatives should have sufficient authonty and
knowledge to resolve safety issues in an expeditious manner. As necessary, the parties
will utihize available safety, maintenance, and other appropnate fesources to deveiop

poassibie resolutions i

To the extent 1ssues are agdressed on one tour in muiti-tour faciites. the same 1ssue will

not be a topiC {or AISCUSSION On another tour as long as the 1Issue 1S penaing resolution
with the parties representatives.

Those offices that have an established pragram (e.g.. Satety Captain) in which they

requiarly meet with union representatives to discuss satety concerns are nat required to
modify their exising program to contorm to these procedures

Satety 1ssues oniginaung in all offices not identified in Section 2 above and unresaived in

discussions between the union or empioyee and management representatives may be
processed 1n accoraance with the reqular grievance proceaure

if possible. management will try to immeadiately resolve satety 1ssues as they are brought ta
its attention In the meetings descrbed above. The parties recogmize. however. that certain
safety 1ssues cannot be resolved immeaiately. Forinstance. a satety issue brought to
management's attention might have national implications or would require enqineenng
changes which faciity management is incapable of resolving at the level to wiich the intial
comptaint 1s brought, or may require the use of outside resources 1o resolve There may be
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nstances when it may not be possible to resoive the 1ssue due to disagreement between the
representatives over the nature of the safety issue itsetf. the necessary aitermnative
resolutions, or the extent of work that needs to be performed to correct the situation. The
parties’ representatives may mutually agree to refer an unresoived issue to the
and Health Committee.

local Safety

The parties agree that bargaining unit empioyees will utilize these procedures to naufy
management ot workplace satety 1ssues for resolution. To this end. the unian at

both the
national and local level will notify bargaining unit empioyees bath verbally and through their

wrtten commuricatons verucles to communicate any safety matters to s fepresentatives so
they can raise and resolve them, if possible, through this procedure.

This Understanding and its procedures are for the purpose of further providing a safe and
healthy workplace through timely recognition and tesolution of safety issues and is not
intended to deprive any bargaining unit employes of his/her nght to noufy appropriats third
parties. 1tis the intent of this agreement to impiement this process to atiow employees and
the union to bning safety 1ssues to management's attention so they can be expeditiously
addressed in a tmely manner without invoking an administrative procedure and atendam
litigation which would have a deiaying effect on any resolution 10 the satety issue.

The parties agree that any issues regarding nationatly deployed equipment or 1ssues that
have national implication are 10 be jointly forwarded by the iocal parues to the Vice President,

Labor Relations and Director, industnal Relations (APWU) for reterral to the national Jaint
Labor-Management Safety Committee.

The parties agree to modify the language in bold print on page 80 of tha 1998-2000 colisctive
bargaining agreement as follows: Any grievance filed in accordance with Section 2. (¢)
above which is not resoived at Step 2 may be appealed to the local Safe

ty and Health
Committee for discussion and dacision or may be appealed directly to arbitration
within 21 days after receipt of the Employer's Step 2 decision. Any such appeal to the

Safaty and Heaith Committes must be made within fifteen (15) days after receipt of the
Employer's Step 2 decision uniess the parties agree to extend the time far appeal. The
Committee shall meet and discuss the grievance at the next regularly scheduled Safety
and Heaith Commuittee mesting. Any grievanco not resolved by the committee may be
appealed directly to arbitration within 21 days of the commuittee's review. if appeaied to
the regularly scheduled local safety and heaith commuttee. the parties’ representatives shall
be prepared to present the 1ssue (0 the commuttee with their assessment and resolution.

The parties will imptemnent this process and name representatives to beqin meeting within 6Q

days of the signing of this agreement. This agreement and its procedure are in addition to the
contractual obligauons of both parties and in no way changes or alters those provisions.

... § =
/ hn E. Potter
Senior Vice President
Qperations
U.S. Postal Service

r./2/%% L\ gy
Date/ ' :

Cate ~

William Burrus

Executive Vice President

Amerncan Postal Warkers
Unton, AFL-CIO
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August 4, 1999

VICE PRESIDENTS, AREA OPERATIONS
MANAGER, CAPITAL METRO OPERATIONS

SUBJECT: Correction of Unsafe Conditions

This is a follow-up to the June 14 memorandum from Jack Potter informing you of the
memorandum of understanding (MOU) with the American Postal Workers Union, AFL-CIO
(APWVU) establishing an internal process to jointly resolve unsafe conditions. This document
was jointly developed by the APWU and USPS and reflects common understandings of the
interpretation and application of the provisions of the MOU,

1. Item 2 of the agreement states that "the local parties (USPS and APWU) will designate a
facllity union representative and management representative.” Does this mean one

representative for both parties per facility or can there be more than one, such as one on
each tour?

The agreement requires that oﬁe management and one union representative be designated
for the identified facility. There is no requirement to establish teams for each tour.

2. Hem 2 also identifies all plants, bulk mail centers, airport mail centers, the district main office
(which will also cover the stations/branches) and vehicle-maintenance facilities are required
to designate union and management representatives. Northem Virginia District, for example,
does not have a district main office. The largest post office in the district is Alexandria, which
is an associate office, In fact, all of Northem Virginia's post offices are associate offices with
their own stations and branches. Does this memo apply to them as weil?

A team is to be established only for the district main post office and its stations and branches.
Teams are not required for other associate offices. In associate offices unresolved safety

and health issues may be processed in accordance with-Article 14 of the National
Agreement.

3. In Alexandria, we have a joint Safety and Heaith Committee with the APWU and NALC. This
is a common practice in associate offices. The language in the APWU contract pemmits
discussion of items in the grievance process, but the NALC contract does not. Should we
have separate committees now or just wait to see if it is a problem. Item 2C Indicates that
modifications to existing programs are not required,

The agreement clearly states in Section 8, that the provisions of existing co'ntractual

obligations should in no way be changed or altered. Therefore, there would be ro change to'
the existing membership of the joint Safety and Health Committee.
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4. What defines a committee or other safety program in Section 2.C.?

An organized safety program or committee should:

+ Consist of at least one postal management representative and one APWU representative
« Meet regularly to discuss safety and health probiems
o Actively resolve safety and health issues

Such pre-established, active programs are not subject to modification and may cantinue to
operate effectively under this agreement.

5. Does this agreement eliminate use of PS Form 1767, Report of Unsafe Condition or Hazard?
No.

6. If we have a joint labor/management Safety and Heaith Committee, do we also have to
designate facility representatives and follow the agreement?

Yes.

7. May the parties initiate a safety issue when preparing the agenda for the Safety and Heaith |
meeting?

Yes.

William Burrus.
Executive Vice President
U.S. Postal Service | American Postal Workers Union, AFL-CIO

cc. Area Managers, Human Resources
District Managers
Plant Managers
Managers, Vehicle Maintenance Facilities
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112 STAT. 1572 PUBLIC LAW 105-241—SEPT. 28, 1998

Public Law 105-241
105th Congress

An Act
Sept. 28, 1998 To make the Occupational Safety and Health Act of 1970 applicable to the United
[S. 2112) States Postal Service in the same manner as any other employer.

Be it enacted by the Senate and House of Representatives of
Postal Employees the United States of America in Congress assembled,

Safety
Enhancement SECTION 1. SHORT TITLE.
ct. - .
39 USC 101 note. This Act may be cited as the “Postal Employees Safety Enhance-

ment Act”.

SEC. 2. APPLICATION OF ACT.

(a) DEFINITION.—Section 3(5) of the Occupational Safety and
Health Act of 1970 (29 U.S.C. 652(5)) is amended by inserting
after “the United States” the following: “(not including the United
States Postal Service)”.

(b) FEDERAL PROGRAMS.—

(1) OCCUPATIONAL SAFETY AND HEALTH.—Section 19(a) of

the Occupational Safety and Health Act of 1970 (29 U.S.C.

668(a)) is amended by inserting after “each Federal Agency”

the following: “(not including the United States Postal Service)”.

(2) OTHER SAFETY PROGRAMS.—Section 7902(a)(2) of title

5, United States Code, is amended by inserting after “Govern-

ment of the United States” the following: “(not including the

United States Postal Service)”.

SEC. 3. CLOSING OR CONSOLIDATION OF OFFICES NOT BASED ON
OSHA COMPLIANCE.

Section 404(b)(2) of title 39, United States Code, is amended
to read as follows:
“(2) The Postal Service, in making a determination whether
or not to close or consolidate a post office—
“(A) shall consider—
“(i) the effect of such closing or consolidation on the
community served by such post office; |
“(ii) the effect of such closing or consolidation on
employees of the Postal Service employed at such office;
“(iii) whether such closing or consolidation is consistent
with the policy of the Government, as stated in section
101(b) of this title, that the Postal Service shall provide
a maximum degree of effective and regular postal services
to rural areas, communities, and small towns where post
offices are not self-sustaining;
“iv) the economic savings to the Postal Service result-
ing from such closing or consolidation; and
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PUBLIC LAW 105-241—SEPT. 28, 1998 112 STAT. 1573

“(v) such other factors as the Postal Service determines
are necessary; and
“(B) may not consider compliance with any provision of
the Occupational Safety and Health Act of 1970 (29 U.S.C.
651 et seq.).”.

SEC. 4. PROHIBITION ON RESTRICTION OR ELIMINATION OF SERVICES.

(a) IN GENERAL.—Chapter 4 of title 39, United States Code,
1s amended by adding after section 414 the following:

“§415. Prohibition on restriction or elimination of services

“The Postal Service may not restrict, eliminate, or adversely
affect any service provided by the Postal Service as a result of
the payment of any penalty imposed under the Occupational Safety
and Health Act of 1970 (29 U.S.C. 651 et seq.).”.

(b) TECHNICAL AND CONFORMING AMENDMENT.—The table of
sections for chapter 4 of title 39, United States Code, is amended
by adding at the end the following:

“415. Prohibition on restriction or elimination of services.”.
SEC. 5. LIMITATIONS ON RAISE IN RATES.

Section 3622 of title 39, United States Code, is amended by
adding at the end the following:

“(c) Compliance with any provision of the Occupational Safety
and Health Act of 1970 (29 U.S.C. 651 et seq.) shall not be consid-
ered by the Commission in determining whether to increase rates
and shall not otherwise affect the service of the Postal Service.”.

Approved September 28, 1998.

LEGISLATIVE HISTORY—S. 2112:

CONGRESSIONAL RECORD, Vol. 144 (1998);
July 31, considered and passed Senate.
Sept. 14, considered and passed House.
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UNITED STATES POSTAL SERVICE
ROOM 9014

475 L'ENFANT PLAZA SW
WASHINGTON DC 20260-4100

TEL (202) 268-3816

FAX (202) 268-3074

OFFICE OF THE
ASSISTANT POSTMASTER GENERAL
LABOR RELATIONS DEPARTMENT

Mr. William Burrus
Executive Vice President
American Postal Workers

Union, AFL-CIO

1300 L Street, N.W.
washington, DC 20005-4128

Re: HAC-4G-C 24864
CLASS ACTION
SOUTH BEND IN 46624

Dear Mr. Burrus:

On April 21, 1992, Thomas E. Keefe, Jr., met with Cliff
Guffey in a prearbitration discussion of the above-
referenced case.

The matter presented by you as well as the applicable
contractual provisions have been reviewed and given careful
consideration.

The USPS and the APWU agree that the following terms will
settle the issue in dispute.

1.

The Postal Service acknowledges its obligation under
Article 14 of the National Agreement to provide safe
working conditions in all present and future postal
installations and to develop a safe working force. The
union will cooperate with and assist management to live
up to this responsibility.

The Postal Service also acknowledges its obligation
under Article 23 of the National Agreement to allow,
with reasonable notice, duly authorized representatives
of the Union to enter postal Lnstallations for the
purpose of performing and engaging in official Union
duties and business related to the Collective Bargaining
Agreement. Such representatives need not be on the
employee’s payroll and may include "safety and health
experts." All such representatives must adhere to the
terms and conditions of Article 23.
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Please sign the attached copy of this letter acknowledging
your agreement with the settlement, withdrawing H4C-4G-C
24864 from the pending arbitration list.

Sincerely,

. 'Downes

Direc Executive Vicé President

Office of Contract American Postal Workers
Administration Union, AFL-CIO

Date /7/— 2) -1 bate  ¥-J P-4

Enclosure
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Urantn States Posia Seavice
475 L'Enant Puaza SW
Waswcton DC 20260

Mr. Jim Lingberg

Director

Maintenance Craft Division

American Postal Workers
Union, AFL~CIO

1300 L Street, N.W.

Washinqton, DC 20005-4128

Re: H7C-3B~C 36947
CLASS ACTION
LITTLE ROCK AR 72231

Dear Mr. Lingberg:

Recently, we met to discuss the above-captioned grievance at the
fourth step of our contractual grievance procedure,

This grievance concerns the usage of wireless radio headsets used
by employees on the Small Parcel Bundle Sorter.

We agreed that usage of wireless personal portable radios or tape
cassette headphones may be permitted in the same situations and
circumstances where such equipment is permitted on other automated
equipment.

We reaffirm the Personal Portable Radio or Tape Cassette
Headphones policy which was published in Postal Bulletin 21397,
dated March 31, 1983!

The following applies to offices which permitted radio
headset use prior to November 25, 1982:

The use of radio headsets is permissible only for employees
who perform duties while seated and/or stationary and only
where use of a headset will not interfere with performance of
duties or constitute a safety hazard. Employees will not be
permitted to wear or use radio headsets under other
conditions, including but not limited to: while walking or
driving; near moving machinery or equipment; while involved
in oral business communications; while in contact with, or in
view of, the public; or where the headset interferes with
personal protective equipment.
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Lingberg 2

We further agreed that this understanding should be applied to the
fact circumstances of this case.

Please sign and return the enclosed copy of this letter as your
acknowledgment of agreement to remand this case.

Time limits were extended by mutual consent.

Sincerely,
, . . *
Kathleen Sheehan Jz Liﬁg}qgg g/
Grievance and Arbitration ional Representative-at-Large
Labor Relations Maintenance Craft Division

American Postal Workers
Union, AFL-CIO

Date: 2/L9A73

July 2002 Page 85



CBR

The following constitutes full and complete settlement of all
grievances and unfair labor practice charges {nitiated as a
result of the "Policy on Personal Portable Radio or Tape
Cassette Headphones” contained in Postal Bulletin $21379,
dated November 25, 1982, All pending unfair labor practice
charges concerning this matter, including 5-CA-14364-P,
1-CA-20635-P, 4-CA-13428-P, 9-CA-19165-P, 15-CA-B798-P,
19-CA-15344-P, 21-CA-21826-P, and 33-CA-6319-P, will be
withdrawn,

The following applies to office s which permitted radio
headset use prior to Novemder 25, 1982:

The use of radio headsekts is permissible only

for employees who perform duties while seated
and/or stationary and only where use of a headset
will not Interfere with performance of duties

or constitute a safety hazard. Employees will

not be permitted to wear or use radio headsets
under other conditions, including but not limited
to: while walking or driving; near moving machinery
or equipment; while involved in oral business com-
munications; while in contact with, or i{n view of,
the public; or where the headset interferes with
personal protective equipment,

/ Zf;"z&z
' »
25 A x :
:;}. rican Posfal Workers ational c{ation of

Union, APL-CIO Letter iers, APL-CIO

ChLL

. Postal Service
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UNITED STATES POSTAL SERVICE
476 L'Enlant Plaza, SW
Washington, DC 20280

August 20, 1982

Mr. Gerald Anderson

Executive Aide, Clerk Craft

American Postal Workers Union, AFL-CIO
817 - 14th Street, NW

Washington, DC 20005

Re: G. Wilson
Lansing, MI 48924
B1C-4B-C-386

Dear Mr. Anderson:

On August 4, 1982, we met to discuss the above-captioned
grievance at the fourth step of our contractuval grievance
procedure.

The matters presented by you as well as the applicable
contractual provisions have been reviewed and given careful
consideration.

The question in this grievance is whether or not management
violates Article 14 of the National Agreement as it concerns
the involvement of union representatives in local safety
ingpections, The local Union refers, also, to Articles §,
15 and 19, as being violated.

After reviewing the file, it appears that the Union’s primary
argument in this case is that local management failed to
comply with Executive Order 12196, Federal Register/Volunme
45, Number 205, Occupational Safety and Health
Administration, rules and regulations. Specifically, that
part which required the safety and health inspector to confer
with the official in charge of the work place ... and with an
appropriate representative of the employees of the
establishment 1s alleged to be violated. This rule applies
when safety and health inspections are conducted by
inspectors authorized, pursuant to E.0. 12196, to carry out
inspections for the purpose of Sub-Part D of the regulations
(a person having equipment and competence to recognize safety
and/or health hazards in the work place).
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We have determined that the safety inspection discussed in
this grievance was not the type of safety inspection
discussed in E.O0. 12196, It was an inspection conducted
pursuant to Article 14, Section 8, of the National Agreement,
vhich also allows for the participation of Union
representatives on annual inspections. Clearly, E.O. 12196
is not applicable in this case.

It is, therefore, the position of the Postal Service that
Article 14, entitles the Union representatives the right to
participate in the inspecticn only. They may or may not be
invited to an internal management meeting to discuss the
results immediately after the inspection.

The Unjon_representatives. obviously, have the_yight to make
t]aeﬁ _own _notes and draw their own conclusmns from the
mspect:on n and r rgg}_:est “the opport,g_nitz__to discu_s_s them with
manageﬂt._‘_@ey may even file a_grigvance. In_any_case, the
local Safety and uenlth Committee as constituted under the
1981 National Agreement can be the appropriate forum for
discussion and resolution of this dispute,

1f you agree with our assessment above, we can remand this
case to Step 3 to be handled by the parties at that level or
to be referred to the local Safety and Health Committee.

Please sign the attached copy of this decision as your
acknovledgment of agreement to remand,

Sincerely,
,-"
I d
Robert L. Eugene Gerald Anderson .“

Labor Relations Department Executive Aide, Clerk Craft
American Postal Workers Union,
AFL-CIO
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UNITED STATES POSTAL SERVICE
473 L'Enfant Piazs, SW
Washingten, 0C 30200

February 2, 1982

Mr. Gerald Anderson

Executive Alide, Clerk Craft

Anerican Postal Workers Onion, AFL-CIO
817 -~ 1l4th Street, XW

Washington, DC 20005

Re: R. Parker
Orlando, FL 232802
B8C~3W-C=-35843

Dear Mr. Anderson: ig- 5- 37‘?

On Janvary 19, 1982, we met with you to discuss the
above-captioned grievance at the fourth step of our

contractual grievance procedure as set forth in Article XV,
Section 2 of the National Agreement.

The matters presented by you as well as the applicable
contractual provisions have been reviewed and given careful
consideration as to the question of safety under Arxticle XIV,
Section 1 of the National Agreexent, relevant to the U. S.
Postal Service's use of mercury vapor lamps.

Our investigation reveals that there are no Occupational
Safety and Health Administration (OSHA) standards established
regarding the use of mercury vapor lamps. However, the Pood
and Drug Administration, Bureau of Radiological Realth (BRH)
Standard 21 CFR 1040.30 has been complied with by the O. S.
Postal Service, in that, self-extinguishing lamps are
utilized, thus, alleviating the danger of broken outer globes
and subsequent exposure to ultraviolet radiation.

The recommended workroom lighting system employs 400-watt
high pressure sodium or 400-watt metal hallide HID fixtures
designed for a S0 footcandle general lighting level with
naximum and minimum levels not more than 1/6 above and below
this design value, supplemented with case lights for task
lighting. The HID lighting should only be used when mounting
height is fifteen (1S5) feet or greater.

July 2002 Page 89



CBR

It {s sutually aqreed that local aanagement will conduct an
on-site evaluation to ensure compliance with 21 CPR 1040.30
and that the metal hallide fixtures are judiciously placed so
a3 not to cause significant disconfort to postal employess.

Please sign and return the attached copy of this decision as
your acknowledgnent of agreement to resolve this grievance,

Sincerely,

Harvey am
Labor Relations Department Executive Aide, Clerk Craft

Merican Postal Workers Union,
ArL-C10
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Number Name
AS-556 Asbestos Management Guide (May 1998)
EL-810-91-6 Asbestos-Containing Materials Control Program.
EL-810-94-3 Asbestos-Containing Building Materials Control Programs
EL-810-98-1 Asbestos-Containing Building Materials Control Program

EL-830-1999-5

Control of Asbestos Exposure From Brake And Clutch Repair And
Service

EL-830-95-2 Control of Asbestos Exposure from Brake and Clutch Repair and Service
EN-05-18-98 Asbestos Control Programs

HR-0511-95 Asbestos Containing Materials

HR-05-30-95 Asbestos Medical Surveillance

Letter May 11, 1995

Assessing Asbestos-Containing Materials and Air Monitoring

Letter May 30, 1995

Asbestos: Medical Surveillance and Documentation of Potential
Exposures

Letter May 30, 1995

Asbestos Exposure and Medical

MMO-029-00 Asbestos Work Practices
MMO-045-93 Asbestos Control
EL-810-2000-2 Bloodborne Disease Exposure Control Plans
EL-810-92-4 Bloodborne Disease Exposure Control Plans
Bloodborne Disease Exposure Control Plans - This instruction is
EL-810-95-3 obsolete. It was replaced by MI-EL-2000-2
Poster 265 Drugs by Mail
Pub 14 Prohibition and Restrictionon Mailing Animals, Plants, and Related Matter
ERM-03-29-01-2 Facility Safety Coordinator Training
HR-07-14-99 Safety Tool Kit
EL-810-93-1 Confined Space Safety
NIOSH Report NICSH 94-110 - Lifting Manual

ERM-03-29-01-1

Acciddent Reduction Action Plan

Pub 18

Manager's Guide to Understanding Affermative Action

AS-850-2001-2

Emergency Evacuation and Fire Protection - This instruction replaced
Ml AS-510-98-3.

EL-810-96-1

Response to Hazardous Materials Releases

EL-860-1999-3

Anthrax, Emergency Response to Mail Allegedly Containing Anthrax

PS FORM 2162

Burglary and Robbery Countermeasures Program

PS FORM 7498-D

Facilities Environmental Checklist

PS FORM 7531

Case Activity Report - External Crimes

PUB 159-B Contingency Planning — Civil Disorders and Natural Disasters
PUB 159-C Contingency Planning For Bombs and Bomb Threats
PUB 275 Post Office Robbery
SOP-527 Plan for Weekly Fire Alarm Test

Emergency Evacuation and Fire Protection - This instruction is
AS-510-98-3 obsolete. It was replaced by Ml AS-850-2001-2
RE-4 Standards for Facility Accessibility hy the Physically Handicapped
AS-510-97-6 Environmental Integration in the New Construction Process
AS-550 Paper and Paperboard Recycling Guide and Plan
AS-550-85-18 Clean Air Act Compliance
AS-550-91-10 Pollution Prevention Program
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EL-810-91-6 Asbestos-Containing Materials Control Program.
AS-550-92-2 Waste Reduction

AS-550-92-7 Stormwater Management

AS-550-95-9 Underground Storage Tank Management

AS-550-96-4 National Environmental Policy Act Operational Guidance
AS-550-96-5 Environmental Compliance Quality Assurance Review Guide
AS-550-A A Paper and Paperboard Recycling Guide

AS-550-B Paper and Paperboard Recycling Plan

AS-551 Clean Air Act Compliance Handbook

AS-552 Pollution Prevention Guide

AS-554 Water Reference Guide

AS-554-A Water Management Guide

AS-554-B Water Conservation Guide

AS-554-C Vehicle Washing Technologies

AS-554-D Water Permitting Guide

AS-555 Environmental Compliance Quality Assurance Review Guide
AS-555 Environmental Compliance Guide

EL-510-97-6 Environmental Integration in the New Construction Process

PS FORM 2282

Facility Evaluation Sheet (Space & Condition)

PS FORM 8194

Environmental Conditions, Record of

PS FORM 8195

Operational Environmental Checklist

RE-6

Facilities Environmental Guide

SOP-S01A Recycling Lamps Batteries & Plastic
SOP-S01B Grease Rags & Absorbent Materials
SOP-5824 Procedure for Disposal of Used Oil
SOP-825 Disposal of Hazardous wastes
SOP-S826 Process Industrial Waste

Pollution Prevention Plan MPF

Pollution Prevention Plan VMF

Pollution Prevention Program
EL-307 Guidleines on Reasonable Accommodation

Letter July 28, 1983

Postal Bulliten - Anti-Fatigue Matting

NIOSH Report HETA-2000-0014-2792

NIOSH Report HETA-92-0073-2337

Safety Alert Antifatigue Floor Matting

AS-504 Space Requirements

AS-510-83-1 USPS Maintenance of Leased Facilities

AS-510-87-13 Building and Site Design Safety Requirements

AS-510-87-3 Compliance with OSHA Standards — Facility Construction Program
AS-510-91-5

AS-510-94-1 Changes in Facility Design after Project Approval
AS-520-81-11 Facility and Equipment Safety Design and Acceptance Review
AS-520-96-9 Facility Planning Concept

AS-550-97-6 Environmental Integration in the New Construction Process
AS-558 Facility Energy Management Guide

AS-819 Universal Wiring Standards

ASM Chapter 5

Facilities and Equipment

EL-800

Managing Contract Safety and Health Compliance

EL-810-84-3

Safety and health Change Board
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EL-810-91-6 Asbestos-Containing Materials Control Program.
HR-02-25-00 Contractor Safety & Health Guidance
PS FORM 919 Facility Planning Data
PS FORM 929 Major Facility Planning Data
RE-13 Repair and Alteration of Real Property Facilities
139 CFR part 233 Inspection Service-Inspector General Authority
39 CFR part 447 Rules of Conduct for Postal Employees
MS-56 Fire Prevention and Control
SOP-S08 Hot Work Permits
Procedures for Reporting Releases of Hazardous and Regulated
AS-550-96-8 Substances to the Environment
PUB 52 Acceptance of Hazardous, Restricted, or Perishable Matter
EL-810-96-2 Hazard Communication Programs
Pollution Prevention - Postal/ Environmental, Protection Agency Targeted
MMO-054-97 Chemicals
MMO-061-81 Material Safety Data Sheets (MSDS)
MMO-081-99 Hazard Communication and Material Safety Data Sheets
OSHA 3111 Hazzard Communication
SOP-S07 MSDS Approval
AS-550-92-8 Hazardous Waste Management
AS-553 Hazardous Waste Management
DMM (Mail Acceptance)
EL-810-82-6 Hazardous Materials Spill or Leak Standard Operating Procedures
EL-810-90-6 Hazardous Materials Spill or Leak Standard Operating Procedures
EL-812 Hazardous Materials and Spill Response

Letter April 21, 1998

Hazardous Materials and Dangerous Goods in the Mail (4/21/98)

Letter June 16, 1998

MMO-029-95 PCB Lamp Ballast Disposal
MMO-050-97 Coin Cup Liners
MMO-059-88 Anti-Intrusion Divice
MS-39 Flouresent & Mercury Vapor Lighting
Notice 107 Somethings Were Never Meant to be Mailed
0S-04-21-98 Hazardous Materials in the Mail
Pub 2 Packaging for Mailing
SOP-S06 Hazardous Spill Leaks & Emergency Plan
EL-810-2000-1 Hearing Conservation Programs
EL-810-94-2 Hearing Conservation Programs
AS-550-95-10 Integrated Pest Management
MS-47 Housekeeping - Postal Facilities
AS-550-97-4 Facility Energy Management Program (Indoor Air Quality)
ASHRAE 62 Ventalation for IAQ
ASHRAE 62a Addendum to Ventalation for IAQ
HR-05-11-99 Dust Control
Announced or Unannounced Inspection of Postal Facilities by OSHA
EL-810-81-10 Personnel
EL-810-1999-1 Lead Hazard Management
MMO-031-94 Lead Exposure in Construction (Lead Based Paint)
OSHA Inter. Lead OSHA Interpretative Letter - re-analysis type
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EL-810-91-6

Asbestos-Containing Materials Control Program.

MMO-055-83

Lighting Guidelines

Letter Jan. 19, 2001

Lockout, Postal and Plant Equipment letter of 1/19/01

Automation, Mechanization, and Building Machinery and Equipment

MMO-027-95 Lockout Procedures

MMO-038-94 OSHA Lockout Tagout Procedures
MMO-039-89 Electrical Plug Lockout Device
MMO-055-94 Dock Levelers, Safety Lockout and Maintenance Procedures
MMO-079-99 Lockout issues fro NTSN Tech

PO-502 Container Methods

MMO-020-86 Material Safety Data Sheet Database
MMO-038-82 Material Safety Data Sheet Requests
HR-05-25-99 Implementation OSHA Management
OSHA OSHA Regulatory Status November 2000
OSHA OSHA Injury lliness recordkeeping

OSHA 101 Injury/liiness Report

OSHA 200 Log OSHA 200 All-in-One

OSHA 2056 All About OSHA

OSHA 2098 OSHA Inspections

OSHA 3071 Job Hazard Analysis

OSHA 3154 Heat Stress

OSHA 7 Notice of Alleged Safety & Health Hazard
OSHA Facts New Ways of Working

PO-730-89-02 Accident Investigation - Tort Claim Activities
Poster 42 Fair Labpr Standard Act

SOP-510 Contractor Safety on Postal Property
OSHA 3000 Employer Rights

OSHA All About OSHA

EL-540-87-3

HR-10-05-98 Employee Safety Enhancement Act

Letter Oct. 5, 1998

Interim Guidance on Compliance with the Postal Employees' Safety
Enhancement Act (USPS Ltr. 10/5/98)

Decision

DBCS Accu-sort Light

EL-810-2000-2

Personal Protective Equipment and Respiratory Protection Programs

EL-820-1998-3

Procuring Prescription Safety Glasses

EL-820-80-4 Procurement of Perscription Safety Glasses

Guide Respiratory Protection Program Guide (Dec. 2000)

HR-02-02-98 OSHA Respiratory Protection Final Rule

HR-08-18-94 Revised OSHA Standard on PPE

Letter Aug. 18, 1994 New/Revised OSHA Standards on Personal Protective Equipment
MMO-022-90 Personal Protective Equipment

OSHA OSHA Respiratory Protection Final Rule-Interim Guidance

Program Guide

Personal Protective Equipment Program Guide (Oct. 2000)
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EL-810-91-6

Asbestos-Containing Materials Control Program.

Safety Tool Kit

Respiratory Protection Program Guide

Safety Tool Kit

Personal Protective Equipment

EL-540-91-1 Job-Related First Aid Injuries
EL-860-98-2 Employee Medical Records
ERM-03-26-01 OSHA Recordkeeping Reviews

Letter June 7, 1999

Safety and Health Training Records (USPS Ltr. 6/7/99)

OSHA

Recordkeeping Requirements, OSHA Injury / lliness

PS FORM 1767

Report of Hazard, Unsafe Condition or Practice

PS FORM 1769

Accident Report

Pub 540 A Guide for Managing Injuries

Pub 549 FOIA Requests for Postal Service Records
Traumatic Injury Accident Reporting

EL-801 Supervisor's Safety Handbook

EL-802 Executive's and Manager's Safety Compliance Guide

EL-803 Maintenance Employee’s Guide to Safety

EL-806 Health and Medical Service (plus supplement: CPR Booklet)

EL-810 OSHA Programs

EL-814 Employee Guide to Safety

EL-921 Supervisors Guide to Grievences

ELM 13 Chapter 8 - Issue 13

ELM 14 Chapter 8 - Issue 14

ELM 15 Chapter 8 - Issue 15

ELM 16 Chapter 8 - Issue 16

MMO-004-97 Maintenance Safety Checklist

PO-510-89-05 Transportation Management ServiceCenter Operating Requirements

PO-516 Highway Contractor Safety

PO-530-89-1 Processing trailer Damage

Poster 296 Notice of Reward

Pub 32 Glossary of Postal Terms

Pub 518 Supervisor's Guide, Employee Assistance Program

Pub 519 Employee Assistance Programs

Pub 519a Programa De Assistencia Para Empleados

Policy on Diversity

PS FORM 1784 - A

PS FORM 1784 - B

PS FORM 1784 - C

Safety and Health Deficiency Report

Buddy System (APWU

Document)

System™ for Maintenance Personnel. - Article 14 Section 8.A.5

EL-314

You and the USPS

Lertter Oct. 5, 1998

Interim Guidance on Compliance with the PESEA

MOU/Burrus Memo

Correction of Unsafe Conditions

MS-10

Floors - Care & Maintenance
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EL-810-91-6 Asbestos-Containing Materials Control Program.
MS-63 Maintenance Operations Support
Notice 71 Bombs by Mail
PO-701 Fleet Management
Alcohol and Drug Testing of Employees With a Commercial Driver's
PO-720-95-2 License
MMO-030-01 AFSM100 Start Warning Fault
MMO-064-99 Hazardous Frieght Elevator Gate
Safety Alert Steel Mail Sorting Units - Safety Alert
Guidelines for Local Joint Labor-Management Safety and Health
EL-809 Committees
EL-809T Committees

PS Form 1783

On-The-Job- Safety Review / Analysis

Pub 129 Safety Talks

HR-05-27-99 Safety & Health Commitment

HR-06-08-99 Safety & Health Commitment

MS-24 Heating, Cooling and Ventilating

MS-49 Energy Conservation and Maintenance Contingency Planning
Letter June 7, 1999 Safety & Health Training Records

SOP-S16 Lockout-Tagout Procedures Training

Training Program-USPS

Training for Supervisors Reasonable Accomidations

Training Program-USPS

Training Program-USPS

Accident and the Claims That Follow

Training Program-USPS

Duty to Provide Information to the Union

EL-810-82-2 CONCERN - A Management Safety Training Program
EL-810-82-3 Program

EL-810-83-2 the OSHAct and Postal Service Program
HR-06-07-99 Safety & Health Training Records

MMO-071-97 Maintenance Safety Video

AS-816 Open VMS Security

OSHA OSHA's Workplace Violence Prevention Program
Policy Policy on Sexural Harrasne

Policy Policy on Sexual Harrasment 1994

Policy Policy on Sexual Harrasment 1998

Policy Policy Statement on Drug Abuse

Policy Policy Statement on Sexual Orientation

Poster 21 Policy on Sexual Harrassment

POSTER 26 Letter and Package Bomb Indicators

Poster 61 Policy Statement on Drug Abuse
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EL-810-91-6 Asbestos-Containing Materials Control Program.
Poster 62 A Violence-Free Workplace is Everyone's Responsibility
Poster 72 Equal Employment Opportunity Is The Law
PS FORM 7532 Robbery Report
Pub 107 Crisis Management Plan for Incidents of Violence in the Workplace
Pub 108 Threat Assessment Team Guide
PUB 176 Carrier Robbery/Assault
PUB 302 Crime Prevention Tips For Postal Employees
Pub 307 STOP Unsolicited Sexually Oriented Advertisement In Your Mail
PUB 348 Window Services Crime Prevention Booklet
Pub 45 A Violence-Free Workplace
Pub 533 Employee's Guide to Understanding Sexual Harrassment 2000
PUB 54 Notice of Bomb Threat
Pub 552 Manager's Guide to Understanding Sexual Harassment 1998
Pub 552 Manager's Guide - Sexual Harrassment 1999
Pub 553 Employee's Guide to Understanding Sexual Harrassment 1998
Pub308 Guide for Victims & Witnesses of Federal Crimes
RE-5 Building and Site Security Requirements
Report USPS Commission on a Safe Workplace
Report Sexual Harrassment in the Federal Workplace
SOP-S11 Suspect Parcel & Bomb Threat
Sexual Harassment
MS-1 Operation and Maintenance of Real Property (Section10)
Pub 281 Don't Take the Bait
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